
SELECT BOARD MEETING AGENDA* REVISED 8.04.2023 
Donn B. Griffin Room, Town Hall 

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 
Executive Session 5:00 P.M. 
Regular Meeting 6:00 P.M. 

Monday, August 7, 2023 
 

Remote Participation Optional: 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

https://meet.goto.com/794056629 
You can also dial in using your phone. 

Access Code: 794-056-629 
United States: +1 (571) 317-3122 

 
*As required by Open Meeting Law, you are hereby informed that the Town will be video and audio taping as 
well as live broadcasting this public meeting.  In addition, anyone in the audience who plans to video or audio 
tape this meeting must notify the Chairman prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Pursuant to MGL c.30A section 21 (a)(3) to discuss with respect to collective bargaining for all town 
unions and the Chair has determined that open session would have a detrimental effect on the town’s 
bargaining position; Harwich Employees Association (HEA) 

B. Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, sec. 21(a)(2) to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with 
non-union personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with non-union personnel: Town 
Administrator 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
V. JOINT MEETING WITH THE SELECT BOARD AND CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
 A. Discussion on Intermunicipal Agreement with Cape Cod Technical High School 
 *JOINT MEETING IS CANCELLED 
 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. Approve Select Board Meeting Minutes: 
  1. July 24, 2023 
  2. July 31, 2023 
 B. Appoint Kyleigh Lopes and Charles McCaffrey as Student Officers as recommended by  
  Chief of Police 

C. Approve the miscellaneous committee reappointment list 
D. Accept a gift to the town from Guild of Harwich Artists of a bench, including installation, at Doane 

Park  
E. Approve the following Committee Appointments as recommended by the Select Board Interview 

Committee: 
1. Sophia Pilling, Conservation Commission, term to expire 6/30/2026 
2. Brad Hinote, Real Estate & Open Space Committee, term to expire 6/30/2026 

  
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Debrief on Select Board Working Group Session held on July 31, 2023 
B. Discussion and vote on Select Board process of comprehensive review of committees 
C. Discussion and vote on dissolving inactive committees 
D. Vote to approve the proclamation recognizing September as National Suicide Prevention 

Awareness Month in the Town of Harwich  
E. Vote to appoint a Town of Harwich Representative to the Cape Media Board of Directors 
F. Discussion on upcoming changes with Comcast 
G. Discuss Annual Non-Resident Taxpayers meeting  
H. Vote to authorize the Chair to sign a letter of support for the Harwich Fire Association 

renovation of 203 Bank Street 
 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Vote to waive the Town’s Right of First Refusal for the sale of 17 Woody Glen Road formerly known 
as 140 Oak Street 

B. Approve and authorize the Chair to sign a permanent easement totaling 760 Square Feet for 
MassDOT at Saquatucket Harbor for the sidewalk installation on Route 28 

 
IX. CONTRACTS 

A. Vote to approve and authorize the Chair to sign a contract amendment in the amount of $6,500 
for Spencer Preservation Group for design services for Brooks Academy Museum 

B. Discussion and possible vote to execute a Grant Agreement between the Town of Harwich and 
the Harwich Conservation Trust relative to the construction of the Cold Brook Ecological 
Restoration Project - $1,500,000 

C. Discussion and possible vote to execute a License Agreement between the Town of Harwich and 
the Harwich Conservation Trust relative to the construction of the Cold Brook Ecological 
Restoration Project 

https://meet.goto.com/794056629
tel:+15713173122,,794056629


 
 

X. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
XI. SELECT BOARD’S MEMBER REPORT 
 
XII. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
*Per the Attorney General’s Office: The Select Board may hold an open session for topics not reasonably 
anticipated by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting following “New Business.” If you are deaf or hard 
of hearing or a person with a disability who requires an accommodation contact the Selectmen’s Office at 508-
430-7513. 
 
Authorized Posting Officer: Posted by: ________________________ 
 Town Clerk 
   Date:  
Danielle Freiner, Executive Assistant  August 3, 2023 
 
 



CONSENT AGENDA  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 1 

                                                                    MINUTES 
SELECT BOARD 

HARWICH TOWN HALL 
MONDAY, JULY 24, 2023 

5:15 P.M. – EXECUTIVE SESSION 
6:00 P.M.  - REGULAR MEETING 

REMOTE PARTICIPATION OPTIONAL

SELECTMEN PARTICIPATING: Mary Anderson, Julie Kavanagh, Donald Howell, Michael 
MacAskill and Jeffrey Handler 

ALSO PARTICIPATING:  Town Administrator Joseph F. Powers 

CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Anderson called the Select Board’s meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.  

Mr. Handler moved that the Select Board enter into Executive Session as listed below, 2nd

by Mr. Howell. The vote was 5-0-0 with Ms. Anderson, Ms. Kavanagh, Mr. Howell, Mr. 
MacAskill and Mr. Handler all voting aye by roll call.  

Mr. MacAskill requested that the Chair work with the Town Administrator to facilitate the Select 
Board being able to stay in the Griffin Room for their future Executive Session meetings, rather 
than using the Select Board’s Library. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A. Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, sec. 21(a)(3)To discuss strategy with respect to litigation as 

the Chair has declared that an open session may have a detrimental effect on the 
litigating position of the Town.  In addition to a general discussion of litigation matters, 
the following cases may be discussed: 
Bogen v. Guillemette, Chief of Police of the Town of Harwich; Town of Harwich 
Conservation Commission v. Smith; 3137, LLC, et al. v. Town of Harwich, et al.; 
Ember Pizza, Inc., et al. v. Town of Harwich, et al.; Ember Pizza, Inc., et al. v. Town 
of Harwich and ABCC; Port v. Harwich Local Licensing Authority; Seal Pub v. 
Harwich Local Licensing Authority; Hall’s Path Enforcement; 
Jeffrey E. Jones, et al. v. Town of Harwich, et al.; Jones v. Harwich Board of Health 
and  
Town of Harwich; King and James M. Kelly v. Harwich Conservation Commission; 
King and Kelly v. Walter Diggs et al. and the Harwich Conservation Commission; 
Michael LeBlanc and Sheila LeBlanc, Trustees of the Radar Realty Trust v. Harwich 
Conservation Commission; McCourt, et al. v. Town of Harwich Zoning Board of 
Appeals, et al.; Novak v. Town of Harwich Conservation Commission; 
Walsh Brothers Building Company, Inc., et al. v. Harwich Conservation Commission, 
and Town of   Harwich; Winston and Plunkett v. The Planning Board and the Royal 
Apartments LLC, et al 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 2 

Wise v. Harwich Planning Board 
B. Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, sec. 21(a)(2) to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for 

negotiations with non-union personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with non-
union personnel: Town Administrator 

Ms. Anderson called the meeting back to order following Executive Session. No decisions were 
made on Executive Session item A and no discussion was had on Executive Session item B.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Harwich Chamber of Commerce Executive Director Cyndi Williams was present to report on 
Wednesday’s Port Summer Nights. This Wednesday there is an extra special event where people 
can purchase a ticket to win a chance to drive in the Seaside Lemans. Tickets are $50.00 and the 
winner will be drawn on September 9. Also on Wednesday, Firefly Boutique will be having a 
summer trunk show.  

Mr. Powers reported that this afternoon, representatives from Mass Department of Environmental 
Projection held a TEAMS call with Town Managers and Town Administrators from the South 
Coast, Cape Cod and the South Shore. This was to make the public aware that they have made a 
tentative determination to deny the application as submitted by HOLTECH regarding their request 
to discharge waste from the Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station into Cape Cod Bay. There is now a 
period of public comment that will run through August 28, 2023.  

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. Public Hearing - Approve the Alteration of Premises application submitted by Cape 

Roots Market LLC d/b/a Cape Roots Market and Café location at 557 Route 28. 
Alteration consists of adding additional interior and exterior seating. 

Mr. Handler read the legal notice.  

Gabe and Brooke Leidner were present.  

Mr. Handler moved to open the public hearing, 2nd by Mr. Howell and approved 5-0-0.  

Richard Waystack was present and stated that he is a direct abutter to this property. The Leidner’s 
have done a great job with this building. He noted that they are looking to increase some seating 
and are not looking to become a bar. Mr. Waystack said that this building faces the same parking 
woes as everyone else downtown. Mr. Waystack encouraged the Select Board to approve this 
application request.   

Mr. MacAskill moved to close the public hearing, 2nd by Mr. Howell and approved 5-0-0.  

Mr. MacAskill moved to approve the Alteration of Premises application submitted by Cape 
Roots Market LLC d/b/a Cape Roots Market and Café location at 557 Route 28. Alteration 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 3 

consists of adding additional interior and exterior seating, 2nd by Mr. Howell and approved 
5-0-0.  

Mr. Howell wanted the application to know that the public in general loves Cape Roots and that 
he wishes them well.  

JOINT MEETING WITH THE SELECT BOARD AND BYLAW CHARTER REVIEW 
COMMITTEE 

A. Discussion on letter dated June 13, 2023, from Bylaw Charter Review Committee 
addressed to the Select Board 

Linda Cebula called the meeting of the Bylaw Charter Review Committee to order. Present were 
Linda Cebula, Sandra Hall and Anita Doucette.  

A letter dated June 13 was submitted to the Select Board. Ms. Cebula stated that this conversation 
is so that her committee can get clarity as to when the Bylaw Charter Review Committee can have 
access to some of the $75,000 funds that were passed at the October 2022 Special Town Meeting. 
They have discussed at a previous meeting how they would like to go forward. 

Mr. Powers stated that in the motion that was adopted, the article was restricted to only charter 
and general bylaw review.  

Mr. MacAskill said that he has read the letter submitted and that he has a different take on this 
and knows that there are 2 processes. Right now, we would have to have an elected group, if we 
are looking to have an independent set of eyes on the charter. While he does support hiring a 
consultant, he does not support hiring a consultant for the current charter by law review. He would 
like a consultant to look at the charter first and then make recommendations. Mr. MacAskill is 
not in favor of just handing over money for the Bylaw Charter Review Committee to hire a 
consultant and start the process.  

Ms. Kavanagh didn’t disagree with Mr. MacAskill and said that she has no problem moving 
forward in the process but agreed that we need someone to look at the charter from a generic point 
of view and then ask questions and provide suggestions.  

Mr. Howell said that he doesn’t know how you would be able to have someone come in under a 
contract and review a charter generically. There must be some context on why the town did what 
they did with the charter. He does not see how this can be done without a partnership of some 
sort. Mr. MacAskill responded that certainly the Bylaw Charter Review Committee would be 
involved at some point, unless the Select Board wanted to go the route of having a fresh 5 member 
elected board working with them.  

Ms. Cebula read section 7-16-1 from the Harwich Chater and talked about how often the charter 
should be reviewed. She noted that there is a way that we can all work together and that the charter 
clearly says that the Bylaw Charter Review Committee is supposed to be reviewing the charter 
and making recommendations. A concept that was talked about at a previous meeting was that 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 4 

there would be a consultant to support the review and that each committee member would be 
assigned sections of the charter for an in-depth review. They would then hold 2 public hearings 
to gain input from the community. Input would also be requested from the Select Board, Town 
Administrator, Town Clerk and the various boards and committees. The committee is looking to 
know where the Select Board would like to go before a consultant is hired for this review.  

Mr. MacAskill said that he would like a fresh set of eyes on this. There has been a long-standing 
charter review committee except for when they took a year off. This has been discussed globally 
for at least 5 years with a lot of the same complaints, pointing in different directions and legal 
opinions. A consultant that does this for a living would be able to look at the charter and tell 
everyone involved where we need to go. He personally would not want to see this review come 
from the current committee.  

Ms. Cebula said that she does think that there is more experience in looking at charters from her 
committee than the Select Board. In the charter itself, it says that the Bylaw Charter Review 
Committee should be doing this. She would like to see how everyone can work together on this.  

Mr. Handler commented that he does not have a total history of the Bylaw Charter Review 
Committee with the Select Board but noted that we all agree that hiring a consultant would be in 
the best interest for the Town of Harwich and that everyone agrees that the charter needs to be 
looked at. He would be in favor of the Select Board and Bylaw Charter Review to come up with 
framework that the consultant can use to begin the review.  

Mr. Kavanagh feels that everyone agrees that we need to assess where we can make the charter 
meld together like it is supposed to and look at the areas that might need to be revised. She would 
like to see us move forward on an RFP to bring a consultant on board and added that it would be 
important to have the consultant at the hearings. Ms. Cebula responded that Ms. Kavanagh’s 
thoughts make perfect sense and wants to include the provision that the consultant reports go to 
both the committee and the Select Board.  

Ms. Anderson asked Mr. Powers about a possible vendor. Mr. Powers responded that from his 
experience and the fact that our code book is a product of theirs, suggested General Code. He also 
wanted to put it out there that the amount of $75,000 was put out there as that is his signing 
authority. As the Chief Procurement Officer, he does not think that we will need to use anywhere 
near the $75,000 and added that an RFP might not be necessary if it does not go over $50,000. 
General Code would be contact and contracted toto analyze the charter and bylaws. From his 
perspective, this is a policy decision that starts and ends with the Select Board, that is influenced 
by a committee that they appoint and has an advisory requirement to the Select Board at some 
level.  

Ms. Anderson said that when Mr. Powers explained General Code to her, it made sense as these 
are the people that are already involved in our code. They could do the review and make a 
presentation at a joint meeting for what Mr. Powers thinks would be less than $75,000 and then 
we could decide if a consultant is needed to do more and if we need an elected body to do a larger 
review.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 5 

Ms. Cebula asked Ms. Hall if she would give a quick dissertation on what an elected charter 
commission means.  

Ms. Hall started with the concept that was presented to them originally as they were given to 
understand would be a consultant to help guide the committee through the process of revamping 
the charter. She added that she does not know enough about General Code to make a comment 
either way. Ms. Hall talked about a previous consultant that was brought in through MMA. She 
noted that a charter commission is a 9-member elected commission that has to be initiated by a 
petition of 15% of the town’s registered voters from the last State election. She feels that it is a 
difficult process to get started. Her opinion is to have a 9-person elected commission that would 
take 12-18 months to do the work and also to hire a consultant in the mode of what MMA has. 
The charter commission would have hearings and meetings and put together a document for the 
town to vote on. The charter commission is an independent body that wouldn’t answer to the 
Select Board or Bylaw Charter Review Committee.  

Mr. Powers reported that if a municipality is contemplating significant changes to charters and 
reaches out to MMA, the first step they do is put you in touch with the MMA form of government 
committee, which he is one of the 9 members of. MMA does not immediately recommend vendors 
to anyone. They rely upon the form of government committee and comes to a community to 
advise on next steps.  

Mr. Howell said that we are entering our 10th month since this money was approved and have 
been complaining about this forever. He is frustrated because we are sitting here talking about 
how nothing is happening, while nothing is happening. Mr. MacAskill responded that there are 
projects on the procurement list that have been there since 2013, so 10 months doesn’t seem that 
long. He feels that Mr. Powers suggested path to move forward with our current vendor makes 
sense. He would like to start with an independent party to review the charter and then make 
recommendations to both groups.  

Mr. Handler asked what the time frame would be for the path that Mr. Powers suggested. Mr. 
Powers responded that there are several key considerations that impact upon procurement. Aside 
from this policy discussion, the only reason why he as Town Administrator did not move forward 
on this procurement is because of an amendment that occurred at Town Meeting last year which 
nullified a key compound to remove the zoning aspect of it for evaluation and this changed the 
tone and tenor of what was happening. There is nothing that prevents him as Town Administrator, 
other than intervention from the Select Board, to move forward on this.  

Ms. Cebula said that the committee is happy to work together if all of the same pieces of 
information are shared to both parties. Ms. Anderson promised that information would be 
distributed to both the committee and Select Board. Ms. Cebula added that we will find that there 
are very defined pieces of the charter that need attention. Ms. Anderson thinks that we all have a 
spot here or there that needs tweaking. She asked Mr. Powers if there is any reason that they 
couldn’t provide a joint list of items for particular sections. Mr. Powers responded that he has no 
objection to that request.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 6 

Mr. Handler asked for an understanding of the timeframe to move forward. Mr. Powers responded 
that he could start tomorrow with or without a vote of the board. If we are looking at this has a 
Chapter 30b of less than $50,000 to start, he can solicit 3 quotes of any codification company, 
modified to say that the must have direct knowledge from the Town of Harwich. Mr. Powers 
added that this can be a very busy time for New England representatives.  

Ms. Cebula commented that she does not see any reference to Select Board in the warrant article. 
Mr. Powers disagreed and pointed out the reference. The Select Board and Mr. Power as the Town 
Administrator have done procurement for the town. If we rely upon committees without 
employees, it is for advice and guidance.  

Ms. Hall feels that this does seem to be moving in a good direction, however, the genesis as 
outlined by Mr. Powers now does not sound at all like what he said to the committee at the time 
when he was looking for support for the article. She noted that it was presented to them as to be 
supporting the Bylaw Charter Review Committee to do a top to bottom review of the charter.  

Mr. Powers asked the Select Board not to take a consensus on a particular vendor tonight.  

Ms. Cebula asked if it would be okay with to hold a meeting sometime in mid-September to hear 
comment. No members disagreed.  

Ms. Cebula adjourned the meeting of the Bylaw Charter Review Committee.  

JOINT MEETING WITH THE SELECT BOARD AND TRAFFIC SAFETY 
COMMITTEE 

Linda Cebula called the meeting of the Traffic Safety Committee to order. Present were Linda 
Cebula, Linc Hooper and Gerry Beltis.  

A. Discussion and possible vote to approve the Cross Street recommendation from 
Traffic Safety Committee 

Ms. Cebula thanked Mr. Handler for attending their meeting. Cross Street from Route 28 to 
Pleasant Street is a narrow road with cars parked on both sides. When we have all of the activity 
that we do in Harwich Port, we end up with some parking issues. There are people that park there 
all day so they can go to the beach. In early 2023, neighbors on Cross Street put together a petition 
that they delivered to the Traffic Safety Committee, with some of their suggestions. The 
committee had a general discussion on July 5th to talk about the petition and come to some level 
of consensus on what changes might be made in the area. A memo dated July 11th was submitted 
to the Select Board for review. The committee did discuss something like “no beach parking” and 
if that would be feasible. No beach parking would require the Police Department to be watching 
the cars and the committee doesn’t think that the police could be expected to monitor the parking 
24/7. The committee ended up voting on a “no parking” on one side of the road, to present to the 
Select Board.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 7 

Ms. Anderson asked if there is a Police Officer on the committee. Ms. Cebula responded that 
there is, as well as a representative from the Department of Public Works. Their input on the 
committee has been invaluable.  

Chief of Police David Guillemette was present and stated that he is in full support of what the 
committee is presenting.  

Al (last name inaudible) was present and stated that he grew up on Cross Street and that his family 
owns George’s Pizza House. He noted that summertime is tough and while parking isn’t easy, he 
feels that the proposal is a step backwards. He acknowledged that Cross Street is narrow, and that 
people don’t want cards on their lawns every day, but that he doesn’t see another option. There 
was an issue with parking 20 years ago and then they lost more parking. While we do rely on 
tourists, there needs to be give and take. He stated that if you have a house behind a commercial 
zone, obviously there are going to be people on your lawn. The speaker does not think that the 
proposal will help the situation and that it is a step backwards and will be bad for local business.  

Brianna Woodward was present and agreed that this would be a step backwards, a waste of 
resources and more of a “not in my backyard” issue. For the most part, Ms. Woodward feels that 
80-90% of the people parking there have a food box in their hands. The economy is based on that.  

Elizabeth Harder was present speaking as a resident. She noted that Cranberry Liquors seems 
have good luck with keeping their 3 parking spaces open for their customers. She does not 
understand why the first 3 parking spaces on Cross Street, going North from Route 28, couldn’t 
be parking only for George’s Pizza. Ms. Anderson responded that the difference is that the 
Cranberry Liquors parking lot is privately owned where Cross street is a public road.  

Bernadette Waystack was present and said that parking doesn’t necessarily work at Cranberry 
Liquors and agreed that it is different for private lots versus public streets.  

Becca Ahrensfeld was present and stated that this problem was brought up because of safety on 
the road. People parking on lawns is not the issue here. The problem is that you cannot get down 
the road. There is road rage and people are parking incorrectly. Any one of the neighbors could 
have an emergency and an emergency vehicle could not get down the road. As far as parking, 
there are 3 spots next to George’s Pizza that are 2-hour parking. The other problem are the 
delivery trucks that come down and block the road at all hours of the day. There is a parking spot 
next to Dune that the committee is proposing to be live parking. If that was a designated spot, 24 
hours a day, that would be great. Ms. Ahrensfeld proposed that the 2-hour parking spaces be 
reduced to 1-hour. At the end of the day, we want our community to be safe.  
Spiros Christakis, owner of George’s Pizza was present and said that he both agrees and disagrees 
with what he is hearing. He knows that safety is the issue but feels that this is not the only road 
in Harwich that has a problem. The problem here is parking. As a business owner, he suggested 
a straight line of parking on the side of the street as Reciprocity and have time limited parking on 
the other side and have someone monitor it, with a suggestion that the town could monitor it. 
Every year parking spaces seem to be lost. Mr. Christakis suggested that the town stop issuing 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 8 

business licenses until the parking problem is fixed. He feels that Cross Street has been used for 
so many years without problem and asked how many accidents have happened on the street. No 
response was heard. While he is in total support of safety, he wants to see that work is done to 
support the businesses that in the town and that provide jobs for people in Harwich. Because of 
the music stroll, he suggested that instead of having people park in town, why isn’t there some 
kind of shuttle system.  

Mr. Beltis stated that when a meeting was held at the 204, a comment that he made as a private 
citizen was to ask people that live in the area to come up with a solution. The Traffic Safety 
Committee is advisory to the Select Board. The map that the committee is presenting was put 
together from comments of the people that live in the Cross Street area.  

Richard Waystack was present and stated that he is not sure where the town owns to the end of 
an area on the street. A number of years ago, people were putting posts between the sidewalk and 
the street. When these posts were installed, people were pushed to park further in the road. Many 
of the posts are now impediments and if they were removed, it may allow for better parking.  

Ms. Christakis suggested a one-way from Route 28 down Cross Street to Pleasant Street.  

Ms. Cebula reviewed all 5 possible options that were discussed at the committee’s July 5th

meeting. The decision was the compromise parking option, which is what is being presented 
tonight.  

Ms. Woodward feels that the posts are unsafe for emergency vehicles. She feels that it was counter 
productive for the neighbors to put up posts and then blame people for the way that they park.  

Mr. Beltis asked that the Select Board go with the recommendation as presented adding that it is 
an easy fix for the time being and can always be changed if it doesn’t work.  

Mr. MacAskill feels that this is a tough situation in that George’s Pizza has been here forever, but 
he also feels for the neighbors that are getting their cars blocked in their driveways. It seems to 
him based on the information if it would make sense to look at the posts and rocks that were 
placed on the road and remove them. He asked there is additional parking that would not interfere 
with residents’ homes. Ms. Cebula responded that realistically, people would go down one block 
on Cross Street, across Pleasant Street and that the committee would be back before the Board in 
a year to talk about that problem. She feels that there is a real parking issue in Harwich Port 
overall.  
Mr. MacAskill said that there would be no detriment to having a one-way road on Cross Street. 
He also asked that the DPW Director look at the impediments and the layouts. Ms. Cebula agreed 
with the one-way street with an exception for emergency vehicles.  

Mr. MacAskill noted that he does plan to ask the Select Board Chair to bring back discussion 
about the extension of the town parking lot. As Harwich Port continue to grow, another discussion 
might be about shuttle buses. Mr. MacAskill added that while he cannot support what is being 
presented as it is, he does recognize that relief is needed.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 9 

Ms. Kavanagh was going to bring up the topic of when the town parking lot was created, there 
was not a site plan presented. She is not opposed to making Cross Street one-way. Ms. Kavanagh 
commented that one of the biggest changes that would create a lot of relief would discussion on 
the shuttle buses. She also asked that the DPW Director look at any impediments to the road.  

Mr. Christakis wanted to make sure that this doesn’t become a George’s Pizza versus the residents 
of Cross Street issue. People are parking on this road for all the businesses downtown.  

As the liaison to the committee, Mr. Handler thanked them for all their work as well as the public 
who participated in the meeting. He asked why the discussion of a one-way road didn’t spark 
conversation with the committee during their public meeting. Mr. Hooper responded that during 
the meeting, there were a fair number of residents that said they didn’t want to deal with Route 
28 in the middle of summer to get to their house on Cross Street.  

Mr. Handler said that it is incumbent upon the businesses that if they see a car parking in a live 
parking, or time restricted parking space, to call the Police Department. The Traffic Safety 
Committee reviewed the traffic data which did not show much for complaints. At the end of the 
day, there is a massive parking issue in Harwich Port.  

Mr. MacAskill said that a one-way street can simply have a sign at the far end that says no thru-
traffic/residents only. Increased police presence would also make sense to him.  

Ms. Anderson commented that it has been made painfully obvious that we need to do something 
about parking. She added that there might need to be discussions with the Chamber about 
expanded parking in their lot. Ms. Anderson said that she would go with the committee’s 
recommendation at this time and if a one-way street could be considered later. 

Mr. Howell asked Chief Guillemette how parking on sidewalks would be viewed if every 
impediment was removed. Chief Guillemette responded that parking on sidewalks has always 
been illegal and that tickets would be issued. Mr. Howell followed by saying that the impediments 
could be removed, but that would only gain inches.   

Ms. Kavanagh asked the committee what the time frame would be if they were to proceed with 
the plan as presented. Mr. Hooper responded that it would be a matter of weeks.  
Mr. Handler moved to approve the Cross Street recommendation from the Traffic Safety 
Committee as presented, 2nd by Ms. Kavanagh.  

Ms. Cebula stated that while parking issues are worse in the summer, they are a hassle year round.  

Mr. Handler made the motion and said that he would support it, but wanted to make it clear that 
he would like to explore the one-way traffic flow pattern.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 10 

Mr. MacAskill asked if the intent of the motion is to make it permanent going forward. Ms. 
Anderson responded yes, until we do something differently. Mr. MacAskill said that he has spoke 
to 2 other businesses that have said this is not year-round problem, and he agreed with that.  

Mr. Handler said that even just 6 cars can create a bottleneck. He is in support of this right now 
but would like to look further for a better solution.  

Mr. Howell said that if this motion included an expiration date, he would consider it and then 
would come back to discuss further. He would not vote on this as a permanent change. Ms. 
Anderson responded that it can always be voted and then removed later.  

Ms. Kavanagh feels that putting an expiration date on this would make everyone move forward 
to the next phase of a solution.  

Richard Waystack was present and asked that something be done tonight for these residents. The 
Select Board can charge the Traffic Safety Committee to come back at the end of September with 
additional alterations if necessary.  

Ms. Cebula said that what she is hearing is that the committee should continue to look at the street 
and possible come back with a different proposal. She suggested that they come back closer to 
December so that they have more time to see what is really going on.  

Mr. Handler amended his motion to approve the Cross Street recommendation from the 
Traffic Safety Committee as presented with an expiration date of November 1, 2023 and 
that the Traffic Safety Committee report back to the Select Board with other options and 
for discussion on how the temporary change worked, 2nd by Ms. Kavanagh and approved 
5-0-0.  

B. Update, discussion and possible vote on the Route 39 and Chatham Road intersection 
projects 

Ms. Cebula gave a brief history of the intersection. At their July 5 meeting, the Traffic Safety 
Committee was given no support of a proposed one-way going from Route 39 to Chatham Road. 
The Water Department has delivery trucks that go that way, and it would be too difficult, given 
their required turning radius. They did discuss briefly about whether or not they could make it a 
one way, except for trucks, but the decision was that it would cause confusion. Tonight, the 
committee s looking for action steps and if there is a plan.  

Ms. Anderson asked Mr. Powers to comment on this item with respect to procurement. Mr. 
Powers responded that as he understands from the committee’s July 11 meeting, the DPW 
Director will be working with administration staff to do an acquisition of engineering and 
surveying support. The engineering and surveying will determine what impact there will be upon 
the roadway itself. Then this would be added to the capital outlay plan, to then be an article at the 
next Twon Meeting. That would have us going out to bid for a construction type project around 
July 1.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 11 

Mr. MacAskill stated his disappointment that this is no further than where we were before. The 
consensus of the Select Board was to have this worked on and get it done. He commented that 
Mr. Hooper was tasked with reaching back out to the homeowner to see if they were still willing 
to give or sell the town a piece of land. Mr. Hooper responded that he has had 2 conversations 
with the owner and that they are amenable to working with the town to get the intersection sorted 
out. The homeowner’s question is how much property is needed. Mr. MacAskill asked what is 
the status of the tree that was thought to be in the line of site. Mr. Hooper responded that both he 
and Officer Holmes looked at the tree and agreed that it is not a line of site issue. They did notice 
a sign that was an issue and it was moved that day.  

Mr. MacAskill asked the Select Board members if it would be acceptable to wait to go out to bid 
on this project on July 1, 2024 or would it make sense to put in a capital request and use existing 
funds. Mr. Hooper responded that this was discussed at the last traffic safety meeting. He advised 
the board that there is 2 million dollars in Chapter 90 funds that have been set aside. If the Select 
Board directs them to move forward, they could get this into the works, although he recommended 
against using existing funds that have been set aside for drainage projects.  

Mr. Beltis asked that since the Town Engineer position has not been filled, would that salary 
money be available for use. Mr. Powers responded that there is no money available. The town, 
while continuing to search for a Town Engineer, has relied upon the salary line to contract with 
an engineering firm, VHB.  

Getting back to the Chapter 90 funds, Mr. MacAskill asked if using $25,000 of that would be 
crippling. Mr. Hooper responded that it would not and added that from a year and a half ago, he 
had a number of $49,900 for engineering and surveying and would have to imagine that it has 
gone up a little.  

Mr. Handler asked what the timeline would be for the next group of grains to go in. Mr. Hooper 
responded that he would have a better answer later this week after an upcoming meeting. Mr. 
Handler asked if it would be reasonable to say in the next 6 months or so.  Mr. Pelletier responded 
that they are looking at exploring incorporating the drainage as part of the phase 3 sewer work. 
Phase 3 construction is being looked at for the spring, with a 24-36 month construction sequence. 

Mr. Beltis asked about a fall Town Meeting. Ms. Anderson responded that a fall Town Meeting 
has not been decided. Mr. Beltis suggested putting in an article for engineering. Mr. Powers 
responded that while the Select Board does have the right to direct a Special Town Meeting, one 
is not being contemplated at this time. Mr. Handler added that the Town Meeting would be in the 
Spring and that there could be an article to replace funds that are used now.  

Mr. MacAskill moved that the town, through the direction of the Select Board, direct 
the Chief Procurement Officer to proceed as allowed under the procurement laws, 2nd

by Mr. Howell and approved 5-0-0.  

Mr. Hooper commented that engineering and surveying these days has been very challenging.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 12 

Mr. MacAskill said that this topic is very important to the Board and that it needs to be worked 
on right away.  

Ms. Cebula thanked the Select Board for their attention to the traffic safety issues discussed 
tonight.  

The meeting of the Traffic Safety Committee adjourned at 8:05 p.m.  

Art Bodin was present and stated that he lives at 800 Orleans Road, directly across from the 
Chatham Road/Route 39 intersection. He feels that this issue has been going on forever and that 
the best solution would be to make the street one-way. Mr. Bodin commented that the truck 
drivers don’t run the town and that it is them that cause most of the problems. The other issue on 
Route 39 is the speed limit.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Accept the resignation of Carole Ridley, Community Preservation Committee, 

effective immediately 
B. Vote to appoint Election Workers from names submitted by the Harwich Democratic 

and Republican Town Committees. 
C. Vote to appoint Noreen Donahue to the By-law/Charter Review Committee, term to 

expire 6/30/2024 
D. Vote to appoint Phyllis Thomason to the Recreation & Youth Commission, term to 

expire 6/30/2026 
E. Approve Select Board Meeting Minutes: 
 1.  July 10, 2023 
 2.  July 17, 2023 
F. Vote to designate Kathleen Barrette Finance Director/Town Accountant as the 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Reporter relative to the Barnstable County ARPA 
Application Portal 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the consent agenda as presented, 2nd by Mr. MacAskill and 
approved 5-0-0.  

Mr. MacAskill paid special thanks to Carole Ridley for her service on the committee. Mr. Howell 
added that she was the Harwich representative to the Community Preservation Committee and 
that it will be important to fill that role.  

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Discussion, per section 1.16 of the Harwich Liquor License Regulations, for the June 

21, 2023, alleged noise violation for Lucky Labrador, Inc. d/b/a Perks located at 545 
Route 28.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 13 

Ms. Anderson stated that since this is her first liquor violation as Chair, she reached out to Town 
Counsel. First, the board needs to look at if there was a violation, and then use reasonable 
judgement about the intention.  

Mr. Howell said that the board will typically refer this to the Town Administrator if a hearing is 
going to be held.  

Ms. Kavanagh noted that she read the memo as submitted by the Chief of Police and feels that 
the officer that was on scene and reported the incident did a great job. Her opinion is that it was 
just a mix up with the music application and an honest one, adding that the establishment handled 
it perfectly. Ms. Kavanagh thanked the Chief of Police, the Police Officer and the person who 
called in the complaint, adding that she thinks it should end here.  

Mr. Howell commented that we are in ongoing litigation with other establishments in the area and 
he would feel more comfortable if we treated these situations up front in the same manner, so 
everything is done equally. In the past, we have handled all these situations by referring them to 
the Town Administrator and changing that could set a precedent. Ms. Anderson responded that 
she has been told that this is not how they have all been handled and that the Chair would decide 
if they did or didn’t need a hearing.  

Ms. Anderson feels that this was clearly inadvertent and that 2 new employees that didn’t realize 
that they hit the switch for outside speakers. Whoever the complainant was, if that person had 
gone next door, they probably could have stopped the noise quicker than by calling the police and 
waiting for a dispatch. Ms. Anderson doesn’t want to burden the Town Administrator with a 
hearing.  

Mr. MacAskill said that when he was Chair he doesn’t recall every making a decision on his own 
about whether or not to hold a hearing. He always referred to counsel. He agreed with Mr. Howell 
about setting a precedent but doesn’t think that this situation rises to the level of a hearing. Given 
the time of day of the violation and that they were found inside, not outside, he would not support 
bringing this forward. Mr. Howell said that he would vote to agreed but wanted to get out the 
rationale for not treating this the same.  

Mr. Handler moved that the alleged violation as presented by the Chief of Police does not 
rise to the level of taking any action, 2nd by Ms. Kavanagh and approved 5-0-0.  

Mr. MacAskill asked if a letter should be sent to the business outlining the comments and decision 
of the meeting. Mr. Powers responded that he would prefer to refer to counsel.  

B. Debrief on the Select Board Working Group held on July 17, 2023 

Ms. Anderson said that this session was to talk about potential zoning changes that could help 
increase housing. The Chair of the Planning Board, Chair of the Zoning Board of Appeals and a 
representative of the Local Planning Committee were present. It was a good session with 
brainstorming sessions. The attendees came to a consensus of 5 items to move forward with. The 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 14 

first is to change the zoning code to provide the same rights to build or convert a structure to a 
two-family residence to the same as a multi-family residence on a non-conforming lot. The 2nd

was to expand zoning for apartments over commercial buildings. The 3rd was the Vail Colorado 
Deed Restriction. The 4th was the Massachusetts General Laws under the zoning act, that added 
the 40Y, which is knows as the starter home district bylaw. The 5th topic was site coverage with 
less impervious material. None of these items are set in stone, just discussion topics that will 
probably be pursued further.  

Mr. MacAskill thanked Ms. Anderson for putting this together and starting the conversation, 
adding that these are not hidden meetings and that most towns around us also have working 
sessions.  

Ms. Anderson said that she has been asked for another work session on July 31st to discuss items 
relating to committees.  

Mr. MacAskill feels that it is time to have a work session relating to wastewater.  

Ms. Anderson said that she was also going to propose a work session on the Monomoy formula.  

C. Vote to waive the Town’s Right of First Refusal for the sale of 17 Woody Glen Road 
formerly known as 140 Oak Street 

Mr. Handler moved to waive the Town’s Right of First Refusal for the sale of 17 Woody 
Glen Road formerly known as 140 Oak Street, 2nd by Ms. Kavanagh.  

Mr. MacAskill does not think that the board should act on this tonight as there is information that 
has not been provided. The Town has a right to not approve this and at least have a discussion on 
bring reimbursed for the taxes owed. Ms. Kavanagh agreed that there is not enough information.  
Mr. Powers said that there is a time frame element for this which is either 90 or 120 days. If the 
board defeats the motion, it could potentially cloud the matter.  

Mr. Handler moved to withdraw his motion; Ms. Kavanagh withdrew her 2nd.  

Mr. MacAskill asked Mr. Powers if he has received any further information on this. Mr. Powers 
responded that the Assessors have indicated that because the property in question is being 
removed from the chapter lands exemption 61A. The town will be assessing for rollback taxes for 
that portion. When the sale goes forward, there would be that rollback action taken and the town 
would be recouping some of the tax money that would otherwise be owed.  

Mr. Howell moved to continue this until the August 7, 2023 Select Board’s meeting, to be 
heard no earlier than 6:00 p.m., 2nd by Mr. MacAskill and approved 5-0-0.  

D. Update on new Watershed Permit Regulations by GHD and Water/Wastewater 
Superintendent  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 15 

Wastewater Superintendent Dan Pelletier was present wit Anastasia from GHD. The purpose of 
this agenda item is to initiate discussions about the 2 new regulatory changes from MassDEP and 
how they will be integrated into the CWMP project. The 2 changes are the revisions to Title 5 
and the new water shed permit regulations, both of which were promulgated on July 7, 2023. 
Once the regulations were promulgated, it designated the 5 coastal water shed areas in Harwich 
as nitrogen sensitive areas. The regulations outline 2 pathways, one of which is the 2 year Notice 
of Intent and application period where the town would make a decision to start upgrading all 
septic systems in nitrogen sensitive areas to nitrogen reducing systems within 5 years, or to 
implement a 20 year watershed permit for each watershed designated as a nitrogen sensitive area. 
Under the watershed permit, Harwich would need to mee 75% of the nitrogen load reductions in 
each watershed within the first 20-year period. There is an exemption for complex projects. 
Anastasia reviewed the watershed permit requirements as outlined by 314 CMR 21 and also 
highlighted a portion of the regulation that talks about alternate schedules that can be done based 
on complex issues.  

Mr. Pelletier said that like most, he had a knee jerk reaction when we found out that the 40-year 
plan was being reduced to 20 years. He added that we have already completed 2 phases of the 
sewer project and are working on the 3rd, noting that when you look at all of the information, we 
are looking at a delta of about 7 years and that he doesn’t think that we are in as dire a situation 
as we had anticipated.  

Mr. Pelletier said that there is the compression of the timeline and the expansion of the population 
for targets. How many units of housing we have anticipated sewering under the old plan is a 
moving part of the new regulation as well. If we were to take the original phasing plan, Mr. 
Pelletier would say that the map of the 8 phases would still represent what we need to sewer to 
remove sufficient nitrogen. Mr. Pelletier said that barring any changes from the local 
comprehensive plan, we are still at comparable numbers.  

Mr. MacAskill asked what the cost of removal of 75% would be versus the cost of 100% removal. 
How much more borrowing are we front loading to our residents because of DEP’s decision of 
unfunded mandates. Anastasia responded that the financing is something that is actively being 
pursued. Mr. MacAskill said that the Town of Harwich has been supportive and proactive. At 
some point, if this starts to not make sense, he feels that Harwich will have to join other towns in 
telling DEP that pushing this forward does not work without funding from them.  

Ms. Kavanagh recognizes that this has been a difficult process to understand and now we having 
people talking about innovative alternative septic systems and a 20-year timeline. Residents need 
to understand that they will not need innovative alternative systems if the town can meet the 
nitrogen loading reduction requirements.  

Mr. Pelletier said that he is not sure if it would be appropriate for the Select Board to act tonight 
to say that we are going to pursue the watershed permit for the 5 watersheds. Memorializing that 
in a vote would let the public know that we are going down the path of sewering and would relieve 
people of having to worry about innovative alternative septic systems.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 16 

Russ Kleekamp from GHD was present and said that they have talked about a potential workshop 
for wastewater. He suggested that if there are questions at any time, that people reach out to GHD 
directly. They like to keep a record of all questions asked and that they go a long way when the 
workshops are held. Ms. Kavanagh added that another important place for information is on the 
town’s website as a newsflash.  

One concept that was shared was the development of a potential rephasing strategy. The first 
would be to look at projects outside of nitrogen sensitive areas, look at the first watershed permit 
cycle and then the second watershed permit cycle. A map of the 2 watershed permit areas was 
shown. Mr. Pelletier added that as the permit is discussed, he may be able to argue that due to 
Harwich’s complexity and quantity of watersheds, the 75% reduction rate may be reduced.  

Mr. MacAskill said that he wants to make sure that there is a conversation about economic 
development in Harwich Center as he sees no real estate for any economic development 
whatsoever. He feels that we have no option but to get the watershed permits and take this burden 
off of having residents having to install innovative alternative septic systems.  

Mr. Handler asked if there is a downside to applying for watershed permits. Mr. Pelletier 
responded that he doesn’t not have a good opposing reason why they shouldn’t be applied for. It 
is the most economical way to mitigate the impacts of nitrogen.  

The consensus of the board was to move forward with permitting.  

Mr. MacAskill said that at some point, he would imagine the town managers association will be 
talking about DEP’s unfunded mandate and how it effects each town. For now, this information 
looks great, but as we present it to our taxpayers, things may change and it might now look great. 
Mr. Powers added that there was a hybrid meeting held and that the only thing that was agreed 
upon was that there was no agreement or consensus on the cape. What Mr. Powers would offer 
would be to turn it back to the Select Board as members of the Cape and Islands Municipal 
Leadership Association, as this has already been vetted at his level.  

E. Approve and authorize the Chair to sign a permanent easement totaling 760 Square 
Feet for MassDOT at Saquatucket Harbor for the sidewalk installation on Route 28 

Mr. Handler moved to authorize the Chair to sign a permanent easement totaling 760 
Square Feet for MassDOT at Saquatucket Harbor for the sidewalk installation on Route 
28, 2nd by Kavanagh.  

Mr. MacAskill asked Mr. Powers if there is a map to show what this looks like and whether or 
not we have reached out to the property owners. He doesn’t feel that a vote should be taken before 
everyone sees a conceptual drawing.  

Mr. Handler withdrew this motion and Ms. Kavanagh withdrew her 2nd.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 17 

Mr. Howell moved to continue this item until the August 7, 2023 Select Board meeting, no 
earlier than 6:00 p.m., 2nd by Ms. Kavanagh and approved 5-0-0.  

F. Review and take action on G.L. c. 268A, Section 19(b)(3) Disclosure of Non-Elected 
Municipal Employee of Financial Interest – Emily Brutti, Planning Board 

Mr. Powers said that this vote would be if the Select Board deems that the financial interest as 
indicated in the request is not so substantial as to be deemed likely to impact on the integrity of 
the project.  

Mr. Handler moved to support G.L. c. 268A, Section 19(b)(3) Disclosure of Non-Elected 
Municipal Employee of Financial Interest – Emily Brutti, Planning Board, 2nd by Mr. 
Howell and approved 5-0-0.  

G. Discussion on abutter complaint regarding Cranberry Valley Golf Course 

Mr. MacAskill said that there have been 4 years’ worth of conversations regarding this complaint. 
There is a very upset resident/taxpayer who has submitted photos and articulated where the golf 
balls are landing on his property. After conversations with the Golf Maintenance Director in the 
past, the town had conceded to putting a chain link fence around the property to stop people from 
entering the complainant’s yard. The complainant is now building a garage on his property and 
has submitted photos of golf balls that are landing inside of the foundation hole as well as next to 
his truck and trailer. The new request is that the town should install a net. The evergreens and 
fence that were installed are not stopping the golf balls. The net installation would likely cost the 
town around $1000. Mr. MacAskill did take the time to speak with the complainant’s neighbor, 
and while they do get some golf balls in their yard, they have not issued any complaints.  

Ms. Anderson said that her understanding is that the town installed a fence and was gracious 
enough to put it on our land so that there was space in between the fence and the complainant’s 
property. Trees and shrubs were also planted. Ms. Anderson also commented that she heard that 
the property owner took it upon themselves to remove the trees and shrubs which made the 
property worse. Mr. MacAskill noted that the only tree that was removed was way before the 
fence and that it was a pine tree so that the property owner could have a better view of the golf 
course. Ms. Anderson feels that makes no sense and that if you want a better view of the golf 
course, you are going to get some golf balls.  

Mr. Howell doesn’t think that that it is a big issue to spend $1000 for the net and to say that after 
that, the town is done. The complainant has some reasonable right to have quiet enjoyment of 
their property.  

Mr. MacAskill asked Mr. Handler who the professional golf association is. Mr. Handler 
responded that he could reach out to a college at the Massachusetts Golf Association. He added 
that by put a net up would be agreeing that there is an issue and could then lead to other abutters 
wanted fences, trees, nets, etc.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 18 

Ms. Kavanagh feels that we have done a lot and agreed with Mr. Handler about the message that 
installing a net would send.  

Mr. MacAskill commented that what we have done for this situation clearly hasn’t worked and 
agreed that precedence means a lot to him. The town does not have to admit any wrongdoing in 
the agreement. A simple $1000 or a vote of the Select Board to have someone from the golf 
association look at this would go a long way. So far, the complainant has not been afraid to speak 
up and to have their lawyer send letters.  

Mr. Howell moved to request that a professional from the United States Golf 
Association/Massachusetts Golf Association review the situation and report back to the 
Select Board with their findings, 2nd by Mr. MacAskill and approved 4-1-0 (Anderson) 

Mr. Powers said that he would be concerned about specificity of notice and that there are a number 
of concerns that he has on his behalf of staff regarding this matter, which is why he took the 
administrative step of seeking legal opinion when the town received the letter about legal action. 
He would urge the Board not to take any action tonight. Mr. Powers stated that he does not agree 
with some of the suggestions that were made in conversations with staff that are fully aware of 
the issue at the golf course. If it is the Select Board’s intent to have professional input outside of 
staff, Mr. Powers feels that it should go thru the Town Administrator and not the Select Board. 
Both department heads at the golf course are qualified and rely upon USGA guidance and input, 
but not for an abutter argument. Mr. Handler agreed that the staff working at the golf course know 
exactly what they are talking about.  

Mr. MacAskill said that the complainant and their neighbor are asking for someone from outside 
of the town organization for another opinion. With all due respect to the Town Administrator, the 
complainant sent a request to the Select Board, not the Town Administrator, which is why this is 
back on the agenda. We have a resident who has been complaining about an issue for 4 years plus. 
Ms. Anderson responded that she agrees but isn’t sure that she wants to spend the money nor take 
a shot at liability.  

Mr. Howell added that this is not a final action. It is a request to have a separate set of eyes give 
a recommendation so the action can potentially be taken.  

Mr. Handler is not so sure that the person that he will call will come out and look. If it is the Select 
Board’s pleasure, he will make a call and inquire.  

H. Vote to approve the following Special Permits: 
1. Harwich Chamber of Commerce – Event Permit for a Motorcycle Ride – 

Sunday, September 10, 2023, starting at 9:00 a.m. at Falmouth High School, 
874 Gifford Street, Falmouth and ending at 11:00 a.m. at Cape Cod Regional 
Technical High School, 351 Pleasant Lake Ave 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 19 

2. Cape Cod Commercial Fisherman’s Alliance – One Day All Alcohol & One Day 
Entertainment Permit – Saturday, August 5, 2023, 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., 100 Oak 
Street. Recorded or live music outside  

Mr. Handler moved to approve the special permits as outlined above, 2nd by Mr. Howell 
and approved 5-0-0.  

Cyndi Williams was present and thanked everyone for the assistance in moving forward with 
these events.  

Mr. MacAskill echoed the excitement for having the Cape Cod Commercial Fisherman’s Alliance 
in Harwich.  

OLD BUSINESS 
A. Update from the Town Administrator on ongoing procurement status 

Mr. Powers provided an update on all procurements from the projects list as well as a memo that 
was provided earlier in the day.  

Mr. MacAskill thanked Mr. Powers and Assistant Town Administrator Meggan Eldredge for their 
work but couldn’t help but notice and point out a variety of projects, dating back to 2013, that 
had amounts voted on at Town Meeting. We know that some of the procurement that we are 
waiting on is fresh, but also know that if we wait a year or two, prices can potentially increase. 
Given that some of these projects are seemingly not that important because they have not been 
initiated, why wouldn’t the Select Board encourage people to re-apply for them as a capital 
request. He asked how long items will remain on the list. Mr. MacAskill asked for Mr. Powers’ 
thoughts as to why the Department of Public Works has 22 open procurement items that have not 
yet been initiated. Mr. Powers specifically looked at the 2013 Article 31 for the library building 
maintenance. When the descriptor of awaiting initiation was created on the spreadsheet, it was to 
show the remaining funds. Any of the articles that are older than 2019, as part of his budget 
process in the last cycle, Mr. Powers reached out to departments and asked why funds couldn’t 
be taken back or transferred. The response given was that they still intend on using the leftover 
money.  

Mr. MacAskill asked to add a column to the spreadsheet to show what funds are leftover versus 
an article. He is not sure that it would be okay with the taxpayers to think that all of these funds 
are being kept as savings accounts for spending. If there is an overage and the project has been 
completed, the remaining funds should be turned back.  

Mr. Powers pointed out that there are 12 projects in the RPF status. He could imagine that at least 
half of the 12 are going now to either contract award final step or complete.  

Ms. Kavanagh wondered why some of the items are awaiting initiation for small amounts. Ms. 
Eldredge responded that the small amount is part of the larger beginning amount. Ms. Kavanagh 
asked about the 2016 Route 39/Chatham Road date. Ms. Eldredge responded that is an error and 



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 20 

meant to be 2023. Mr. Powers added that 2016 was a reference to a previous version and that he 
did not want to change the date and be accused of altering the document. The year has not 
changed, the dollar amount has been added.  

Ms. Anderson asked for an update on 276 Queen Anne Road. Ms. Eldredge responded that the 
URL is the same for all procurement which is Harwich-ma.gov. If you click that link, if will take 
you to a list of all the RFP’s.  

Mr. Powers stated that 29% of the procurements that are dealing with are in a state of near 
completion for the first fiscal quarter. He feels that this is a great number and thanked Ms. 
Eldredge who is a force at procurement and keeping it all in line. Mr. Powers also thanked all of 
the department heads for partnering in these projects.  

B. Update on the progress of the Intermunicipal Agreement with Cape Cod Technical 
High School 

Mr. Powers, Mr. MacAskill and Town Counsel met with the Administration office at the end of 
June with Superintendent Bob Sanborn and Erin Orcutt from the Cape Cod Regional Technical 
High School. Counsel for the tech school was present via phone. A bit of helpful information was 
covered, and a draft agreement was sent to the town. Mr. Powers latest information says that the 
town is now waiting on the tech school.  

Mr. MacAskill said that there is a finalized draft that will be sent to board members. He asked 
them to make their comments and will request through the Chair that this be put back on an 
agenda. The draft has also been sent to the Conservation Administrator and Conservation 
Commission for their review. There will be a bog tour with the Conservation Commission on 
August 9, 2023, at 3:30 p.m. Leo Cakounes will be there to go over the property.  

CONTRACTS 
A. Authority to file document to execute for the Phase 3 project delegating Town 

Administrator to sign on behalf of the Town for the Phase 3 project 

Mr. MacAskill asked the Town Administrator to forward the board members associated 
documents.  

Mr. Handler moved to file document to execute for the Phase 3 project delegating Town 
Administrator to sign on behalf of the Town for the Phase 3 project, 2nd by Mr. MacAskill 
and approved 5-0-0.  

B. Approve an Intermunicipal agreement with Barnstable County for administering the 
Public Health Excellence for Shared Services Grant 

Mr. Handler moved to Approve an Intermunicipal agreement with Barnstable County for 
administering the Public Health Excellence for Shared Services Grant, 2nd by Mr. Howell 
and approved 5-0-0.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 21 

C. Approve the contract with Atlantic Recycling Equipment, LLC for the purchase 
of two Municipal Solid Waste Trailers - $205,000 

Mr. MacAskill commented that Kyle Edson did a great job with the procurement on this. He noted 
that we are buying 2 more trailers but that there is no mention in any of the documentation of 
what will happen with the 2 existing trailers. Ms. Anderson responded that she thought it say that 
they were being replaced. Mr. MacAskill said that there is nothing provided about trading them 
in. Mr. Powers responded that generally speaking, there is either disposal or surplus property as 
so declared trade-ins or repurposing.  

Mr. MacAskill said that here we are buying more trailers and asked how long Harwich is going 
to take trash from Provincetown to Yarmouth at the rates that we are taking them and then 
continue to talk about expansion, where in the given market, we should start to look at Harwich 
only. Ms. Anderson said that the point is that we might not needed these trailers if we weren’t 
taking care of other towns.  

Mr. MacAskill feels that the $8,000 delivery fee from New Hampshire seems a bit excessive.   

Mr. Handler moved Approve the contract with Atlantic Recycling Equipment, LLC for the 
purchase of two Municipal Solid Waste Trailers - $205,000, 2nd by Mr. Howell and approved 
5-0-0.  

A. Vote to authorize the Chair to sign the Harwich Green Communities grant extension 

Mr. Handler moved to authorize the Chair to sign the Harwich Green Communities grant 
extension, 2nd by Mr. Howell and approved 5-0-0.  

B. Discussion and possible vote to execute a Grant Agreement between the Town of 
Harwich and the Harwich Conservation Trust relative to the construction of the Cold 
Brook Ecological Restoration Project - $1,500,000 

While the board did not put a limitation on grant agreements that the Town Administrator can 
sign, this is a large number, hence the approval request.  

Mr. MacAskill asked who is going to take the project lead on this. Mr. Powers responded that the 
Director of Natural Resources would be the primary point of contact.  

Mr. Handler moved to execute a Grant Agreement between the Town of Harwich and the 
Harwich Conservation Trust relative to the construction of the Cold Brook Ecological 
Restoration Project - $1,500,000, 2nd by Mr. MacAskill and approved 5-0-0.  

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

Report will be given at the August 7, 2023 meeting.  



Select Board 
July 24, 2023 22 

SELECT BOARD’S MEMBER REPORT 

Mr. Howell said that he attended the 5th annual Cape Verdean Festival on Saturday and that it was 
a terrific event. It is educational and applauded everyone who showed up. He invited everyone to 
next years festival.  

Ms. Kavanagh congratulated Heinz Proft on his retirement. Mr. Proft is a valuable asset lost and 
will be hard to replace. She wished him luck.  

Mr. Handler thanked everyone who came to their office hours session at the library last Thursday. 
It was extremely beneficial for all.  

Mr. MacAskill commented that several attended Mr. Proft’s retirement party and that it was a 
touching event.  

Ms. Anderson reported that one of the visitors at the open hours was the new president and vice 
president of the Cranberry Harvest Festival. They talked about the festival and how much money 
they give back to the town. They wanted to promote their events in September as well as music 
events at the 204.  

CORRESPONDENCE 

No correspondence was discussed.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Handler moved to adjourn the Select Board meeting, 2nd by Mr. MacAskill and 
approved 5-0-0.  

    Respectfully submitted, 
    Jennifer Clarke 
    Recording Secretary 



July 31, 2023 

WORKING GROUP MINUTES 
SELECT BOARD 

DONN B. GRIFFIN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 

WORKING GROUP SESSION 6:00 PM 
MONDAY, JULY 31, 2023 

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING:  Mary Anderson, Chair, Julie Kavanagh, Vice Chair, Michael 
MacAskill and Don Howell and Jeff Handler, Clerk 

ALSO PARTICIPATING:  Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator, Emily Mitchell, Town 
Clerk, Jen Clark, Assistant Town Clerk and Ellen Powell assisting the Town Administrator’s 
Office with Committees 

CALL TO ORDER: Madam Chair called the meeting of the Harwich Select Board to order at 
6:00 p.m. on Monday, July 31, 2023.  

TOPICS:   

I. Discussion on the following items related to Town of Harwich Committees. 
    Annual Committee Meetings 
 Leveraging technology resources
 Compliance with regulatory requirements 
 Governance 
 Other 

II. Discussion on proposed topics for future working sessions and discussion on future dates 

Work Session began at 6:01 p.m. Jeffey Handler, Clerk, arrived at approximately 6:50 p.m. 
Discussion began with Joe Powers providing an overview of the committee 
assessment/review process and materials Emily Mitchell and Jen Clark have been drafting. 
Emily provided detailed information on the number of compliance issues related to 
committees and members who need open meeting law training, have not been sworn in still 
need to take ethics training etc. Emily will also share “working” documents with Select 
Board members once she has been able to clean them up. The need for town email 
addresses for committee members was presented and the Committee Handbooks needs 
revamping since it was last updated in 2017. The discussion about the number of 
committees, missing charges & need to update a committee charge or reassess the charge 
of certain committees was discussed by the Select Board. The Board needs to move forward 
in assessing what Committees should remain in place and what, if anything, the Board 
should do to reduce the number of committees and determine the role of alternates and/or 
number of members on particular boards. Ellen Powell and Don discussed the 
reappointment process and need to improve communication on whether members are still 
interested in serving. Don noted if the chair or the interview committee is to have such 
discussions, they must start in March in order to meet the reappointment timeline. 



July 31, 2023 

Michael MacAskill feels we should start with the “low lying fruit” to develop a process to 
address the issues. Jeff Handler asked if there are a certain number of times committees 
must meet and Ellen Powell noted many committees overlook their charge or do not know 
what the charge is so meetings are not always occurring when they should or as often as 
they should. Don Howell noted the Traffic Safety Committee has not addressed safety 
issues, such as speed on Route 137, in the past but does not think the citizen participants 
on that committee should be removed. Discussion of term limits was raised by Michael 
MacAskill. Julie Kavanagh feels we should take the information the Town Clerk provides 
and assess the list by first discussing with the various department heads that have affiliated 
committees to determine if the committee remains useful for the department head and the 
town at large. Mary Anderson feels we should start the assessment by speaking with 
department heads then talk to committee members before making any decisions. The need 
to use technology to improve tracking on missing items due (ethics, swearing in etc.) along 
with reappointments was also discussed. Don Howell asked if there was an ability to create 
a “tickler” reminder for expiring appointments etc.  

Emily also mentioned social media accounts that are operated by the Town and the need 
for a town wide social media policy. The town does not currently have a policy. Select 
Board members agreed there is a need to move forward with assessing committees and it 
will place on the agenda for the next regular Select Board meeting. Mary Anderson noted 
future topics for the working group should be wastewater and Monomoy Regional School 
District budget funding mechanism. 

ADJOURNMENT: Motion to adjourn made at 7:45 p.m. by Michael MacAskill and 
seconded by Jeff Handler 

Respectfully submitted,  

Julie Kavanagh 
Vice Chair 
Harwich Select Board 



(.‹ 

HARWICHPolice 
DEPARTMENT 

183 Sisson Road, Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel 508-430-7541 Fax 508-432-2530 

DAVID J. GUILLEMETTE KEVIN M. CONSIDINE 
Chief of Police Deputy Chief 

lOYINGx, 

ski 

Memorandum 

TO: Board of Selectmen 

Joseph Powers 
Town Administrator 

FROM: David J. Guillemette 
Chief of Police 

DATE: July 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Student Officer Appointment Recommendation 

Background 

The Harwich Police Department has an authorized strength of thirty-five sworn full-
time officers. We are currently in the process of filling four full-time positions and 
anticipate more openings occurring due to potential retirements. 

The police department held a selection process recently and would like to 
recommend two candidates for appointment as Student Officers. 

Kyleigh Lopes is currently employed by the town of Harwich as a police 
dispatcher. Kayleigh has worked for the Harwich Police since 2021. Kyleigh holds a 
Bachelor of Science in Operations Management from the University of Massachusetts 
Dartmouth. 

Charles McCaffrey attended Bridgewater State University where he studied 
physical education. Charles is also a nationally certified EMT licensed in Massachusetts. 

Both Kyleigh and Charles have completed all the necessary requirements to 
attend the Basic Recruit Police Academy in Plymouth which is scheduled to start in mid-
August. 



Harwich Police Department - Memorandum 
Board of Selectmen - Student Officer Appointment Recommendation 
July 26, 2023 
Page 2 

Recommendation 

I am therefore respectfully requesting that Kyleigh Lopes and Charles McCaffrey 
be appointed as STUDENT OFFICERS effective August 14, 2023. 

I have attached both conditional offers of employment for your review. 



HARWICHPolice 
DEPARTMENT 

183 Sisson Road, Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel 508-430-7541 Fax 508-432-2530 

Lv 

DAVID J. GUILLEMETTE KEVIN M. CONSIDINE 
Chief of Police Deputy Chief 

May 17, 2023 

Kyleigh Lopes 

South Dennis, MA 02660 

Dear Kyleigh, 

Congratulations on being selected as a finalist for the position of full-time police officer with the Harwich 
Police Department. I am very pleased to provide you with this conditional offer of employment. 
Pursuant to the Town Charter the Town Administrator makes the appointment for this position subject 
to confirmation by the Board of Selectmen. Your name will be put forth for confirmation. Successful 
confirmation will be needed to finalize your appointment. 

This offer is contingent upon you successfully passing a complete background investigation, a 
physical examination to include a standard drug screen and psychological examination, a 
successful negative check of the National Decertification Index and fulfillment of all of the 
additional statutory requirements set forth by the Peace Officer Standards and Training 
Commission to become a Certified Law Enforcement Officer under Chapter 6E section 4. 

If you are successful in passing all of these phases you will be recommended for appointment as a 
Student Officer by the Town Administrator with approval by the Board of Selectmen at a date to be 
determined. Upon successful completion of the Basic Recruit Academy you will be appointed a full time 
police officer by the Town Administrator and the Board of Selectmen. 

You will be required to serve a twelve month probationary period which will commence on your date of 
appointment as a full time police officer. Please note that probationary employees may be subject to 
discharge with or without just cause. Following the completion of your probationary period you will be 
represented by the Harwich Police Federation on all contractual matters. I would also like to bring your 
attention to the attached police academy tuition agreement which requires your signature. 

Your starting salary will be full time police officer hiring step which is an annual salary of $55,972.15. 

dfreiner
Rectangle
South Dennis, MA 02660



Congratulations again, and I wish you the best of luck during the remainder of the hiring process. We 
look forward to you joining the Harwich Police Department. Your signature below indicates you have 
read and understand all the provisions of this document. 

Sin r ly, 

0512.o12. s 
David J. uillemette Kyleigh ojs Date 
Chief of Police 

CC: Personnel File 
Town Administrator 



HARWICHPolice 
DEPARTMENT 

183 Sisson Road, Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel 508-430-7541 Fax 508-432-2530 

DAVID ). GUILLEM111-11 1 KEVIN M. CONSIDINE 
Chief of Police Deputy Chief 

2C2i 

Cnaries hicCafi 

South Dennis. MA 02660 

Dear Charles 

aongratuiations on being selected as a finalist for the position of full-time police officer with the Harwich 
Police Department. lam very pleased to provide you with this conditional offer of employment. 
Pursuant to tne Town Charter, the Town Administrator makes the appointment for this position subject 
to confirmation by the Board of Selectmen. Your name will be put forth for confirmation. Successful 
confirmation will be needed to finalize your appointment. 

This otter is contingent upon you successfully passing a complete background investigation, a 

physical examination to include a standard drug screen and psychological examination, a 

successful negative check of the National Decertification Index and fulfillment of all of the 

additional statutory requirements set forth by the Peace Officer Standards and Training 

Commission to become a Certified Law Enforcement Officer under Chapter GE section 4. 

it you are successful in passing all of these phases you will be recommended for appointment as a 
Student Officer by the Town Administrator with approval by the Board of Selectmen at a date to be 
determined. Upon successful completion of the Basic Recruit Academy you will be appointed a full time 
police officer by the Town Administrator and the Board of Selectmen. 

You will be required to serve a twelve month probationary period which will commence on your date of 
appointment as a full time police officer. Please note that probationary employees may be subject to 
discharge with or without just cause. Following the completion of your probationary period you will be 
represented by the Harwich Police Federation on all contractual matters. I would also like to bring your 
attention to the attached police academy tuition agreement which requires your signature. 

Your starting salary will be full time police officer hiring step which is an annual salary of $55,972.11 

,AdmItAaDAMINaAlMINDIE , 114teafitill -^ A 

dfreiner
Rectangle
South Dennis. MA 02660



an,tratulations again, and I wish you the best of luck during the remainder of the hiring process We 
CON TO to you joining the Harwich Police Department. Your signature below indicates you have 
,tao and understand all the provisions of this document. 

Sincerely, 

/.  / 
4 

David atullemette 
Civet. of Police 

Adorn- diMot 

(1
talD)-Pat'Th ' 

'Li 

Charles McCaffrey b Date 

0 3722 / 7(1' 2- 3.



Miscellaneous Committee Re-appointments for approval:  

Organization Expiration First Name Last Name 

ADA Coordinator 6.30.2034 Meggan Eldredge 

Barnstable County Waste Management Advisory 6.30.2024 Lincoln Hooper 

Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning 
Committee

6.30.2024 Joseph Powers 

Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning 
Committee (Alternate)

6.30.2024 Craig Thornton 

Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority Representative 6.30.2024 

Cape Cod Joint Transportation Committee 6.30.2024 Joseph Powers 

Cape Cod Joint Transportation Committee (Alternate) 6.30.2024 Lincoln Hooper 

Forest Warden 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Hazardous Materials Coordinator 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Health Officer 6.30.2024 Carrie Schoener 

Local Emergency Planning Committee 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Local Organization Committee on Hazardous Waste 6.30.2024 Carrie Schoener 

Municipal Coordinator for Toxic Waste 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Right-To-Know Coordinator for Hazardous Materials 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Oil Spill Coordinator 6.30.2024 David LeBlanc 

Shellfish Constable 6.30.2024 

Tree Warden 6.30.2024 Lincoln Hooper 



ARTISTS 

GUILD 
n

HARWIC 

July 29, 2023 

Eric Beebe, Director 
Recreation Department 
100 Oak Street 
Harwich, MA 20645 

For Art and Community 

www.guildofharwichartists.org 

Re: Guild of Harwich Artists Bench Donation Request 

CEPVEri cP 

/ 

4

, 

iSTRATOR 
:3Et. a,- TMEN 

,ADMIN ': 
OFFICE 

J UL 2 9 2023

The Guild of Harwich Artists would like to fund the installation of a commemorative bench in Doane 
Park, Harwich Port. Doane Park being the Guild's 'birthplace.' In the mid-1970's several artists led 
by Georgia Dearborn and Vivien Oswell started selling their art in the park. They were soon joined by 
other artists mounting weekly art shows during the summer season. 

Forty-three years later the now 75-member Guild still exhibits their art in Doane Park on Mondays 
from July to Mid-September. A bench commemorating our founding would be a fitting addition to 
this well-used public space enjoyed by many during the season. 

Time is of the essence. Vivien Oswell recently celebrated her 100th birthday with Guild members at 
her art exhibit at 820 Main Street Gallery, in Harwich Port. Vivien has agreed to donate a portion of 
her many paintings to the Guild. The plan is to sell her paintings in the park on Monday Labor Day of 
this year to raise the funds for the bench. The Guild will front the money once approved by the town. 
It would be wonderful if everyone could work together so Vivien would be able to sit on 'her bench' 
by then. Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

Michael Rudden, President 
Guild of Harwich Artists 
259 Spruce Road, 
Harwich, MA 02645 
msrarch@gmail.com 
617.851-3960 

Cc: Town of Harwich Select Board 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 
Via: Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 

Cc: GHA Board 



Recommendations from the Select Board Interview Committee 

Following posted interviews held on Wednesday, July 26, 2023 we would like to recommend to the Board the following 
appointments: 

Applicant:  Vacancy  Term/Recommendation 

Sophia Pilling Conservation Commission Recommend appointment to full position; term to expire 
6.30.26

Brad Hinote Real Estate & Open Space Committee Recommend appointment to full position; term to expire 
6.30.26

Submitted by: 
Donald F. Howell 
Michael D. MacAskill 



CITIZENS ACTIVITY VACANCY FORM
Volunteer Now - Seme Your Community

Town govemment needs citizens who are willing to give time in the service of their community. The Citizens Activity
Record program was adopted by the Selectmen as a means of compiling names of interested citizens to serve, on a

voluntary basis, on Boards and Committees.

CITIZENS ACTIVITY VACANCY FORM
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645

Name: - ,L ?,1, r o6 v'lStreet/P.O. Box

l,) Telephone:

Wo,o\ionee YW&\L,CNY.) Occupation:

(LIST IN ORDER OF PREFERENCE)

PLANNING AND PRESERVATION OTIIER

To*r/Zip:

Agriculhlral Commission
*Board of Appeals
Brooks Academy Museum Commission
ByJaw/Charter Review Committee
Community Preservation Committee
*Conservation Commission
Cultural Council Committee
Forest Committee
Harwich Energy & Climate Action Committee
Historic Distnct and Historical Commission
*Planning Board
Real Estate and Open Space Committee
Traffic Safety Committee
OTHER

Bikeways Cornmittee
Golf Committee
Recreation & Youth Commission
Waterways Committee

Please include a resume with form

AaYaeyr Vlavt-aaz(
\ob -Vto 0 ' 7h lo*

Email -n

()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()

()
()
()
()
()
(vf
()
()
()
()
()
()
()
()

Affordable Housing Trust
*Board of Assessors
*Board of Health
Capital Outlay Committee
Cemetery Commission
Community Center Facilities Committee
Constable
Council on Aging
Finance Committee
Harwich Accessibility Rights Committee
Harwich Housing Committee
Herring Supervisor (Voluntary)
Shellfi sh Constable (Voluntary)
Treasure Chest Committee
Voter lnformation Committee
Youth Services Committee

()
()
()
()

RECREATION

/2

****Please complete back of form.

Page 1 of2

Activity records are being updated to include categories consistent with the changing needs of the Town. Indicate your
order ofpreference and retum this form to:

ta
J

epowell
Rectangle
r 
o6
v'l
b
'

epowell
Rectangle
Box
r 
o6
v'l
\ob
-Vto
0 ' 7h lo*

epowell
Rectangle
Wo,o\ionee 
YW&\L,CNY.) 
Zip:



EDUCATIONAL BACKGROLIND | 5ec vtsvwc {r" Je.f^l ,
BA {-- Ut4ass

?div,ry Sol,.,o1 , fT

Mqss Ce(irtr H,/trculf,.vrs[ (..g'u)

RELEVANT SKILLS:

H*tro&r"e, (.{,,n plowls, St..t1 Fl_-{ rD,A::l oy'.o) gntt,tplcs o, **L 
"^s tr^.__ I

truJ" 4*6 {"^^X;*.4 r^,q}, soyne canrennt_p.
fe\u\Y-t_*t arth / 7- r,e.4Aa

/qoA-u,
)

6h Ll10\arfg1 zyr_

REASONS FOR INTEREST IN COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD:

\arr1 inSert-s-|.J v u)ogc<J-

exrn* [i4,5 ^; ,^ g*{.sr
1r.*..t"Ato^.

^y*z
Alt" tlr^'^-&- *-
wo.,[J 

^ 
Wi"a

Page 2 of 2



Sophia Pilling
37 Proprietor's \)(,hy ' Harwich, MA 02645
(508) 360 7864 . sophiaeliane@gmail.com

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Amherst (2009)

Bachelor ofArts in Individual Conccntation: Globalization, Cultural Ecolcrgy and Sustainabiiity
Graduated Cum Laude with a GPA of 3.6. Indepeodent major was self-motivated and designed.
Areas of study included horticulture, sociologv, an*rropologl-, biology and psychoiogv.

School for International Ttaining - Kathmandu, Nep^l Fall200D
Studl' Abroad: Culture & Development Studies
GPA: 3.48
Studied language, culture, and politics of Nepa1.

The Putney School - Putney, VT (2004)
High School Diploma
Elected to Student Trustee position, Awarded a Senior Cabin.

Massachusetts Nursery & Landscape Association (2015)

-\lassachusens Ccrtificd H <-r rri c u lru rist

WORK EXPERIENCE

Assembly Required T r C, Osterville, MA Feb 2019 Present

Hedd Cardener

Manage gardens and landscape of 20 acre private estate

Work with landscape contractor and architect to install new plantings in 2019-2021

Manage team of 9 gardeners

Manage subcontractors and liaison with consruction management, conservation commission, architects,

property managers and homeownets
In charge of otdering, invoicing, billing, organizing of all plant matedal and hard goods

Manage day-to-day operations and scheduling of garden work

Parterre Garden Services, Chatham/Cambridge, MA March)an 2014 -20'19

L,ead G erdener 20 1 4 - 1 5, P ield M anager 20 1 6 1 7, F ie ld D iredor 2 0 1 8

Lead Gardener position consisted of qpical fine gardening tasks of pruning mulching, plant ID,
containers/holiday/annuals installation, planting, driving company vehicle.

Field Manager work was client-focused, I managed roughly 30 accounts, some as "Single Rrint of Contact"
which meant I liaised on all of the landscape services ran$ng from mowing and irrigation to tree vrork and
pest management.

Field Director - as Field Director I was in charge of all hiring day-to-day operations, ordering, schedulhg,
and quality control. .l oversaw one Field Manager and remained in the manager role for many of my clients
flrom t]re previous years.

o

a

a

a

o
a

O

a

a

Private Estate, Chatham, MA September - November 2013
Head Carfum

r Hired to ovcrscc extensive gardens at privatc cstatc. Areas indudcd hcrbaccous bordcrs, vcgetablc
gardens, containers, composting, rree care, topiaries, water gardens, roses, and more.

r Required intensive hard worl learning new exotic plants, and an exceptional amount ofpeople skills.

dfreiner
Rectangle
Sophia Pilling
37 Proprietor's \)(,hy
'
Harwich, MA 02645
(508) 360 7864
.
sophiaeliane@gmail.com



Bedwotks Organic Gatden Design & Maintenance, North Chatham, MA 2007 - 2013

Cardener
. Position maintaining hrgh end gardens required attention to detail, knowledge of native and ornamental

plants, proper pruning and planting methods, physical stamina aod strength, and the abiJity to work well
in a team environrnent.

o Responsibilities includcd utilizing specialized gardening knowledge and skills, facilitatirg
communication between the owner and other employees aod clients, running small machinery driving a

pickup/dump truck, aod designing small projects wheo given the opportunity.

Vers Restaurant, Chatham, MA
Seasoul Fire Dixing Sener

2013 - 2t)',19

SKILLS

Ertensive knowledge ofplants including ornamentals, flative New England flora, vegetable/herb/cut flower
gardens, and indoor tropicals.
Keen eye for deail balanced with the ability to take a step back and see the big pictue.
Passionate about container gardening of all tJpes.

Able to focus on a variety oftasks, willirg to be challenged.

Eojoys vorking with a team and building lasting relationships.

Smail engine operation aad basic maintenance.



TO 

'to saet4

CITIZEN'S COMMITTEE VACANCY FORM 
VOLUNTEER NOW -- SERVE YOUR COMMUNITY 

Town government needs citizens who are willing to give time in the service of their community. This form was 
adopted by the Selectmen as a means of compiling names of interested citizens to serve, on a voluntary basis, on 
Boards and Committees and Commissions 

Vacancy Forms are updated to include categories consistent with the changing needs of the Town. Indicate your order 
of preference and return this form to: 

CITIZEN'S COMMITTEE VACANCY FORM 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645 

Name Bradley R. Hinote  Street/P.O. Box  29 Bittersweet Ln. Town Harwich  zip 02645 

Occupation Assessor Emailbrad.hinote@hotmail.com Telephone 508-493-3835 

(LIST IN ORDER OF PREFERENCE) 

PLANNING AND PRESERVATION 
( ) Agricultural Commission 
( ) *Board of Appeals 
( ) Brooks Academy Museum Commission 
( ) Building Code Board of Appeals 
( ) By-law/Charter Review Committee 
( ) Community Preservation Committee 
( ) *Conservation Commission 
( ) Cultural Council 
( ) Historical/Historic District Commission 
( ) *Planning Board 
( ) Real Estate, Open Space Committee 
( ) Town Forest Committee 
( ) Traffic Safety Committee 
( ) Trail Committee 
( ) Harwich Energy Committee 
( ) OTHER 

RECREATION 
( ) Bikeways Committee 
( ) Golf Committee 
( ) Recreation & Youth Commission 
( ) Waterways Committee 

Please include a resume with form 

OTHER 
(x) *Board of Assessors 
( ) *Board of Health 
( ) Capital Outlay Committee 
( ) Cemetery Commission 
( ) Community Center Facilities Committee 
( ) Constable 
( ) Council on Aging 
( ) Disability Rights Committee 
( ) Finance Committee 
( ) Harwich Housing Committee 
( ) Herring Supervisor (Voluntary) 
( ) Saquatucket Development Committee 
( ) Shellfish Constable (Voluntary) 
( ) Treasure Chest Committee 
( ) Wastewater Support Committee 
( ) Youth Services Committee 
( ) Voter Information Committee 

dfreiner
Rectangle
x 29 Bittersweet Ln. Town Harwich zip 02645

dfreiner
Rectangle
ilbrad.hinote@hotmail.com
Telephone 508-493-3835



EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND: 

High School: Bishop Connolly High School, 1995-1999, graduated summa cum laude. 

College: Providence College, 1999-2003, B.A. Political Science 

Professional: certified Mass. Accredited Assessor #1313, December 2017 

RELEVANT SKILLS: 

Five years in the private sector as a data collector and crew chief with Vision Government Solutions, a 
private revaluation and assessing services provider in Massachusetts, Rhode Island and Connecticut. 

Three and a half years as assistant assessor in the town of Yarmouth. 

Two years as director of assessing in the town of Orleans. 

Expertise on MGL Ch. 59 and all sections relevant to assessing, including statutory exemptions and 
deferrals, methods of valuation, real estate and personal property abatements, motor vehicle and boat 
excise and the BLA's interim adjustment/revaluation process. 

REASONS FOR INTEREST IN COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD: 

My wife and I bought our home in Harwich in January of 2017. I moved to the Cape in December 2014 
and hope with all my heart to never have to live anywhere else in my lifetime. 

Now that we're settled in, I'd like to find some way to be of service to my community and given my 
experience in assessing matters this seemed like a great place to start. 



Bradley Hinote 

29 Bittersweet Lane, Harwich, MA, 02645 - 508-493-3835 - brad.hinote@hotmail.com 

Experience Director of Assessing 

Town of Orleans, Orleans, MA 

August 2018 - present 

Duties: Managing all day-to-day operations of the assessing division. 

Major Functions: 

• Maintaining the town's assessment database for all real and personal property, 

• Completing all annual re-assessment requirements as prescribed by Mass. Gen. 
Laws. and the Dept. of Revenue, including sales analysis, income/expense 

analysis, administration of Ch.61/61A/6113 programs, parcel splits/merges and 
the annual tax recap. 

• Performing all field work to meet cyclical inspection requirements and 

calculate the town's annual new growth. 

• Investigating all appeals for abatement and making recommendations to the 

three-member Board of Assessors. 

• Providing customer service to Orleans taxpayers on questions of valuation, 

motor vehicle and boat excise, abutter's lists, and general town business. 

• The Orleans Assessing office is a US Passport Acceptance Agency. 

Supervision, training, and performance review for one employee. 

Appraisal Assistant/Finance Technician 

Assessing Division, Town of Yarmouth, South Yarmouth, MA 

September 2016 - August 2018 

Duties: Assisting with generation, mailing, and processing of all annual office 

correspondence including income/expense statements, sales verification questionnaires 

and residential/charitable exemption applications. 

Assisting with weekly download, entry and coding of all property transfers. 

Responding to all customer inquiries regarding real estate, personal properly, motor 

vehicle/trailer/boat excise tax bills and their respective abatement procedures. 

Creating and certifying abutter's lists. 

Partook in annual sales analysis including NAL code reviews, outlier analysis and created 

a comparables chart for all 1,600+ residential condos in town. 

Providing training and guidance on office policies and procedures to interns, colleagues 

and Mature Workers. 

Major Projects Completed: 

• Created and maintained a new comprehensive in-house data collection 

program to reduce reliance on contractor services by $50,000 annually. 

Yarmouth now annually conducts 4,000 cyclical inspections, 500 building permit 

inspections and 500 sales inspections. In addition, we rewrote the town's data 

collection manuals from scratch. 

• Created residential exemption databases whereby customer information that is 

required annually by repeat applicants is automatically filled in for them in a 

new application prior to mailing them out for the new fiscal year. 

• Completed over a decade's worth of land of low value foreclosures In-house, 

saving the town thousands in attorney's fees and clearing the town books of 

dfreiner
Rectangle
Bradley Hinote
29 Bittersweet Lane, Harwich, MA, 02645 - 508-493-3835 - brad.hinote@hotmail.com



several uncollectable properties. 

• Converted many office forms to fill-in PDFs and added them to the town's 

website. Many had to be updated to bring them up to modern standards. 

• Wrote or updated scores of training manuals covering all office procedures 

involving Vision CAMA and Munis; assisted with creation of public training 

videos that are currently available on the town website. 

Finance Assistant 

Assessing and Treasurer/Collector Divisions, Town of Yarmouth, South Yarmouth, MA 

December 2014 - September 2016 

With Collector/Treasurer: Responsible for creating the town of Yarmouth's weekly payroll 

including all payroll auditing processes (verifying earnings, rates, deductions, accruals, 

etc.) and ensuring compliance with several collective bargaining contracts. 

Daily functions included: processing daily cash deposits from various town departments, 

conducting bank transfers to cover weekly vendor and payroll obligations, processing 

payroll authorizations and personnel actions for 500+ full/part-time and seasonal 

employees. 

Compiled and authored new documentation manuals for all procedures where 

required. 

With Assessing Division: Assisted in conducting the FY2016 state-mandated revaluation 

program. Responded to any customer inquiries regarding all aspects of the mass 

appraisal process, including data collection, stratification, sales analysis, field review and 

the billing process. 

Providing exemplary and customer service to the town's residents and various business 

partners with a focus on respect, transparency and accuracy of information. 

Crew Chief/Data Collector 

Vision Government Solutions, Inc., Northborough, MA 

January 2013 - December 2014 

Conducted comprehensive data listing and building permit projects for residential and 

commercial properties in Yarmouth, MA, Duxbury, MA and Fairfield, CT. 

Performed inspections and closures on residential building permits and reviewed data 

and prepared a written report on the 2014 town-wide Pictometry analysis. 

As crew chief, responsible for managing a four-person team of data collectors, along 

with overall organization and oversight on the project. Delegated work assignments, 

performed quality-assurance checks on all submitted work and field reviews for select 

work, provided additional training and guidance where required, maintained and 

submitted weekly production numbers and served as the primary liaison between the 

project site, the Director of Assessing and the corporate office. 

Education Massachusetts Association of Assessing Officers 

Mass. Accredited Assessor designation #1313 

December 2017 

Bachelor of Arts - Political Science 

Providence College, Providence, RI 

1999-2003 

High School Diploma - summa cum laude 

Bishop Connolly High School, Fall River, MA 



1995-1999 

Interests Proficient with Microsoft Office suite (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Access, Outlook). 

Proficient with Windows XP, 7, 8 and 10 operating systems. 

Software systems: PK Appraisal System, Vision CAMA, ArcGIS, Munis, BusinessObjects, 

Crystal Reports, Adobe Acrobat, Laserfiche, Mass. RMV's new ATLAS system and the 

CivicsPlus web-building platform. 

Knowledge in PC hardware, components and assembly. 

Typing speed 70 words per minute. 

References References are available on request. 



NEW BUSINESS 



m e m o 
 
TO:  Select Board 
 
CC:   Joseph Powers, Town Administrator 
  Ellen Powell, Select Board/Administrator’s Office 
 
FROM: Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2023 
  
RE:  Committee Items – New Business B and C 
 
 
As a follow up to the Select Board Working Session held on July 31, 2023 and in support of your discussion 
on New Business Items B and C this evening, I have prepared the following information in partnership with 
of the Administration Office and included three reference documents for your review. 
 
Town of Harwich Committee Highlights – August 7, 2023 
 
This one-page reference document condenses key facts and statistics about the current status of Town 
Boards, Committees, and Commissions (herein “committees” for simplicity). The remaining documents 
explore these topics in greater detail. 
 
 
Town of Harwich Committee Governance Details  
 
This spreadsheet categorizes all active committees based on their highest governance authority, and includes 
references to all governing sources I have been able to locate. The majority of committees have multiple 
governance references. For example, a committee may be authorized by state law, included in the Town 
Charter, and defined in greater detail by Select Board charge. 
 
A few notes as to aid your reading of the included governance citations: 

• The citations to Massachusetts General Laws are limited to the sections that either mandate or 
authorize the formation of the committee. Many committees, especially those that are regulatory or 
statutory in nature, are referenced in multiple sections of the General Laws; those additional 
references are not included here. 
 

• The creation of several committees was initiated by a vote of Town Meeting. The specific Town 
Meeting actions varied with some serving to create the committee and others either authorizing or 
directing the Select Board to create it. The specific language is included with the Town Meeting 
citation. 
 

• For committees with Select Board charges, I included the year of adoption and the year of most 
recent revision. In some cases, there were intermediate revisions that are not referenced. 

 
  

Town of Harwich 
TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE 

Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 
Harwich Town Hall  •  732 Main Street  •  Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel:  508-430-7516  •  Fax: 508-430-7517 



 
Proposed Select Board Committee Review Tool 
 
As you discuss a process for systematically reviewing Town committees, I’ve drafted a template review 
sheet you may find helpful. If or when you decide to review individual committees, staff in the Clerk’s 
Office and Administration Office would fill in the details as a cover document and provide you with copies 
of cited governance references to support your analysis. This is merely a proposal to aid in your discussion 
on a comprehensive review process; I am happy to revise or eliminate based on your feedback. 
 
 
Inactive/Dissolved Committee Details 
 
Presently, there are 15 committees listed on the “Boards/Committees” page of the Town of Harwich website 
that appear to be either formally dissolved, long inactive, combined with another committee, or better 
categorized as staff. A detailed breakdown of these 15 committees is outlined below. 
 
Dissolved/Disbanded 

1. Ad Hoc Harwich Port Parking Committee – expired 6/30/2019 
2. Harwich Ad Hoc Noise Containment Committee – on hold per Select Board as of November 2020 
3. School Committee (Harwich) – disbanded 2012 
4. Trails Committee – disbanded October 2017 
5. Station #2 Renovation/Rehabilitation Committee – disbanded May 2019 

 
Inactive 

1. Architectural Advisory Committee – last agenda posted 2016 
2. Building Code Board of Appeals – website description says “currently inactive”, unable to locate 

specific dates of last activity 
3. Saquatucket Development Committee – last agenda posted 2017 
4. Wastewater Support Committee – last agenda posted 2019 
5. Wireless Communications Regional Committee – unable to locate any information; sole member 

listed on website with an indefinite term is deceased 
6. Town Administrator Search Committee – last agenda posted 2020 

 
Merged 

1. Pleasant Bay Resource Management Alliance Steering Committee – merged with Pleasant Bay 
ACEC Steering Committee – 2015 
 

Better Categorized as Staff 
1. Constables 
2. Shellfish Constables 
3. Herring Supervisors 

 
These committees are listed on the website in the same location as active committees. They carry no specific 
notation that they are dissolved, combined, or inactive. The Select Board may wish to consider having these 
committees either moved to a separate, dedicated page on the website or otherwise carrying a notation that 
they are no longer actively meeting. I would advise against removing them entirely, as several do have 
agendas, minutes, or other records linked to the committee page. 
 
 
I look forward to your discussion. Our office remains committed to a continued partnership with the 
Administrator’s Office and Select Board in support of your review process. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Harwich Committee Highlights 

August 7, 2023 
 

As of today, the Town of Harwich appears to have 42 active boards, committees, and 

commissions (including regional committees to which Harwich elects/appoints non-staff 

representatives). These committees are variously created and governed by Massachusetts General 

Laws, the Town of Harwich Charter or Bylaws, Select Board charge, or other specific agreements 

to which the Town is a party. 

 

A brief highlight of committee statistics is presented below: 

 

• 42 Committees (Governance Overview: Regulatory – 6, Required by State Law – 6, Charter 

– 9, Select Board Charge – 14, Other Agreement - 8) 
 

• 248 Total Committee Seats  
 

• 225 Distinct Individual Members (accounts for intentional overlap by design; see below) 
 

• 36 Vacancies  
 

• 23 Seats Intentional Membership Overlap (e.g. Community Preservation Committee is 

comprised of 9 members, with 7 seats populated from members of other town committees) 
 

• 29 Seats Coincidental Membership Overlap (e.g. individuals who currently serve on 

multiple committees by coincidence rather than design) 

 

Accounting for vacancies, intentional overlap, and coincidental overlap, the Town presently has 

approximately 160 active, unique committee members. 

 

Fifteen additional committees are currently listed on the Boards/Committees tab of the Town of 

Harwich website. These committees appear to be either formally dissolved, inactive for a significant 

period of time, and/or better categorized as staff. Several other regional committees were excluded 

from the above analysis if their Town of Harwich participation was limited to having staff, rather 

than community, representatives. 

 

 

Town of Harwich 
TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE 

Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 

Harwich Town Hall  •  732 Main Street  •  Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel:  508-430-7516  •  Fax: 508-430-7517 



Committee Governance Seats Committee Governance Seats Committee Governance Seats Committee Governance Seats Committee Governance Seats

Select Board
MGL c. 41, § 1 (Town officers to be 
elected); MGL c. 43B (Home Rule)
Charter 1-2-1; Charter ch. 3

5 Board of Assessors
MGL c. 41, § 24
Charter 7-6
Bylaws 7-10

3 Water/Wastewater Commission
Charter 6-6
MGl c. 41, § 69A (Water Commission); 
MGL c. 41, § 63 (Sewer Commission)

5 Monomoy Regional School Committee
Charter 6-5
Monomoy Regional School Agreement 4 Accessibility Rights Committee

Select Board Charge - adopted 1991 
(change from "504 Committee" to 
"Disability Rights Committee"), most 
recent revision 2023
MGL c. 40, § 8J

9

Board of Appeals
MGL c. 40A, § 12
Charter 7-12-1
Bylaws 7-10

10 Board of Registrars MGL c. 51, § 15 4 Waterways Committee
Charter 7-14
Bylaws 7-10
Select Board Charge - 1985

9 Caleb Chase Trust Fund Established with donation from Caleb Chase in 1899 3 Agricultural Commission

2004 ATM, Art. 54 - directed Select 
Board to establish
Select Board  Charge: 2004
MGL c. 40, § 8L

7

Board of Health

MGL c. 41, § 21 (authorization for SB 
to appoint Town Officers)
MGL c. 111, §§ 26-33 (general 
authority)
Charter 7-4
Bylaws 7-10

5 Harwich Housing Authority

MGL c. 121B, § 5
Charter 6-8 (Charter language 
currently inconsistent with state 
law re composition)

5 Bylaw/Charter Review 
Committee

Charter 7-16
Bylaws 7-10
Select Board Charge - adopted 1995, 
revised 1996

5 Affordable Housing Trust

MGL c. 44, § 55C
2018 ATM, Art. 40 - to accept MGL c. 44, § 55C and 
establish AHT
Declaration of Trust
Bylaws Chapter 140

5 Bikeways Committee

Select Board Charge - adopted 1995, 
most recent revision - 2017

(Predecessor Committee: Bike Path 
Study Committee, established 1983 
ATM, Art. 12 - transitioned to current 
Bikeways Committee via 1995 charge)

7

Conservation Commission

MGL c. 40, § 8C (established); MGL 
c. 131, § 40 (Wetlands Protection)
Charter 7-7
Bylaws 7-10

9 Finance Committee MGL c. 39, § 16
Charter 9-1

9 Capital Outlay Committee
Charter 9-5
Select Board Charge - 1995
MGL c. 41, § 106B

7 Cape Cod Commission Cape Cod Commission Act (1990) 1 Brooks Academy Museum Commission
1988 ATM, Art. 18 - established with 
description
1989 ATM, Art. 13 - amended

5

Historic District/Historical 
Commission

MGL c. 40C, § 4 (Historic Distric 
Commission); MGL c. 40, § 8D 
(Historical Commission)
Charter 7-9
Bylaws 7-10

8

Community Preservation 
Committee (required if Town has 

accepted MGL c. 44B, §§3-7, 
accepted by TOH in 2004)

MGL c. 44B, § 5
Bylaws 7-11

9 Cemetery Commission
Charter 7-15
Bylaws 7-10
MGL c. 114, § 27

3 Cape Cod Regional Tech School Committee Cape Cod Regional Technical High School 
Agreement

2 Community Center Facilities Committee
1998 STM (September), Art. 5 - 
directed Select Board to create
Select Board Charge - adopted 1998

5

Planning Board
MGL c. 41, § 81A
Charter 7-5
Bylaws 7-10

9 Brooks Free Library Board of 
Trustees

MGL c. 78, § 10
Charter 6-7

7 Council on Aging Board of 
Directors

Charter 7-8
Bylaws 7-10
MGL c. 40, § 8B

7 Pleasant Bay ACEC Steering Committee
Memorandum of Understanding between four 
member towns (Harwich, Orleans, Chatham, 
Brewster)

2 Forest Committee

MGL c. 45, § 21
1952 ATM, Art. 81 - to establish a 
Town Forest Committee
(unable to locate a charge)

3

Cultural Council
Charter 7-11
Bylaws 7-10
MGL c. 10, § 58

9 Barnstable County Assembly of Delegates Barnstable County Charter 1 Harwich Energy and Climate Action Committee SB Charge - adopted 1995, most recent 
revision - 2022

7

Golf Committee

Charter 7-13
Bylaws 7-10
1973 ATM, Art. 88 - instruct Select Board 
to establish
Select Board Charge - adopted 2008

7

Harwich Housing Committee 
(the Housing Committee is not created/governed by the 
Charter or Bylaws, but is referenced in the Bylaws in two 

locations (representative to CPC - chapter 7; working 
with Affordable Housing Trust - chapter 140)

Earliest Select Board Charge on file - 
2001, most recent revision - 2017

5

Recreation and Youth 
Commission

Charter 7-10
Bylaws 7-10 7 Local Planning Committee Select Board Charge - 2021 11

Real Estate and Open Space Committee

1997 ATM, Art. 41 - authorized Select 
Board to create
Select Board Charge - adopted 1997, 
most recent revision - 2008

7

Traffic Safety Committee Select Board Charge - adopted 2014, 
most recent revision - 2022

5

Treasure Chest Committee

Select Board Charge - adopted 2010, 
most recent revision - 2018 
(confirmatory vote by Select Board to 
put 2018 charge "back in action" in 
2021)

7

Voter Information Committee

Unable to locate any formal 
governance documents; VIC is 
referenced in the Select Board 
Committee Handbook

5

Youth Services Committee Select Board Charge - adopted 2002, 
revised - 2010

5

Total Seats: 46 Total Seats: 37 Total Seats: 59 Total Seats: 18 Total Seats: 88

Total Committees in Category: 6 Total Committees in Category: 6 Total Committees in Category: 9 Total Committees in Category: 7 Total Committees in Category: 14

Total Seats (All Categories): 248
Total Committees (All Categories): 42

Other Agreement Select Board Created

Town of Harwich Committee Governance Details

Authorized, but not required, by state law

Town Meeting vote impacting upon creation of committee

Regulatory Required by State Law Charter



Select Board Committee Review Tool

Committee
Governing 

Documents 
(provided in packet)

Seats/Composition
Number of 

Current 
Members

Number of 
Current 

Vacancies

Most Recent 
Agenda Posting

Most Recent 
Minutes 
Posted

Number of Current 
Members in Compliance 
with Conflict of Interest 

Training

Number of Current 
Members Sworn in for 

Current Term
Notes

Example Committee
MGL c. #, § #

Select Board Charge - 2015
7 (MGL allows Town to set 

seat # at 5 or 7)
5 2 1/10/2023 10/11/2022 4 5



Page 1 of 1

Phone (508) 430-7513 

OFFICE OF THE SELECT BOARD     Fax (508) 432-5039 

        732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA  02645 

National Suicide Prevention Month 
Proclamation 2023 

WHEREAS; With September being recognized as "Suicide Prevention Awareness Month," the Cape and 
Islands Suicide Prevention Coalition invites our communities, mental health advocates, prevention 
organizations, survivors and allies to join us in helping to destigmatize mental health and take proactive 
action toward suicide prevention.  We seek to raise awareness and visibility of mental health and suicide 
prevention resources in our communities and help connect individuals with the appropriate support services; 
and  

WHEREAS; According to the American Foundation for Suicide Prevention (A.F.S.P.), suicide is the second 
leading cause of death among individuals between the ages 10 and 34 with more than 48,000 people dying by 
suicide annually in the United States; and  

WHEREAS; With an average of 132 suicide deaths daily and each one directly impacting 100 additional 
people, including friends, service members, family, social media connections, and neighbors we know a 
significant number of individuals have been impacted by suicide; 

WHEREAS; Barnstable County’s suicide rate is 1.5 times higher standing at 14.2 per 100,000 vs the state of  
Massachusetts’ suicide rate of 9.5 per 100,000, we recognize the need to create hope through action locally; 

WHEREAS; Our local Cape and Islands Suicide Prevention Coalition works hard to spread the word about 
prevention, awareness, education and action  

WHEREAS; Harwich, Massachusetts publicly places its full support behind those who work in the field of 
mental health, education, and law enforcement; and  

WHEREAS; We encourage all residents to take time to understand mental health through education and 
recognize that we need to take care of our mental health while we take care of each other.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, Select Board of the Town of Harwich, do hereby proclaim the 
month of September 2023 as National Suicide Prevention & Action Month in Harwich, Massachusetts. 

Mary E. Anderson, Chair 

Julie E. Kavanagh, Vice-Chair 

Jeffrey F. Handler, Clerk  

Donald F. Howell, Member 

Michael D. MacAskill, Member  

HARWICH SELECT BOARD 



Cape Cod Community College
Inner Courtyard 

1:00-2:00 pm

September 14, 2023

All are welcome to attend the Cape and Islands Suicide Coalition General Membership  meeting following the ribbon 
ceremony and lunch from 2:00-3:00pm, in person or virtual https://capecod.zoom.us/j/98375687504?from=addon

Ribbon Ceremony and Lunch
Please join us as we hang ribbons of remembrance for those we have lost to suicide and support the many survivors 

of suicide loss for National Suicide Prevention Month.



The Institute for Mental Health Training Offerings

QPR, a 1-1/2 hour training, stands for Question, Persuade, and Refer — the 3 simple steps anyone can learn to help save a life 
from suicide.Just as people trained in CPR and the Heimlich Maneuver help save thousands of lives each year, people trained 
in QPR learn how to recognize the warning signs of a suicide crisis and how to question, persuade, and refer someone to help.

SafeTALK is a half-day training program that teaches participants to recognize and engage persons who might be having 
thoughts of suicide and to connect them with community resources trained in suicide intervention. SafeTALK stresses safety 
while challenging taboos that inhibit open talk about suicide. Training must be held in person.

Mental Health First Aid is a 6-7 hour skills-based training course that teaches participants to identify, understand and respond 
to mental health and substance-use issues. Training can be a blended format of virtual and in person.

ASIST Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) is a two-day interactive workshop in suicide first aid. ASIST teaches 
participants to recognize when someone may have thoughts of suicide and work with them to create a plan that will support 
their immediate safety. Although ASIST is widely used by healthcare providers, participants don’t need any formal training to
attend the workshop—anyone 18 or older can learn and use the ASIST model. Training must be held in person.

For more information, or to schedule a training, please contact Maura Weir, Co-chair Cape and Islands Suicide Prevention 
Coalition,  capeandislandsSPC@gmail.com



CAPE COD COMMUNITY TELEVISION CORPORATION

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

Section 1 – Cape Cod Community Television Corporation

This organization is incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and
shall be known as the Cape Cod Community Television Corporation, (the Cape Media Center or
Media Center). .

Section 2 – PURPOSE

The Cape Media Center is a 501(c)3 nonprofit corporation whose primary function is that of
public access management. The Cape Media Center serves the towns of Barnstable, Brewster,
Chatham, Dennis and Harwich and manages public access channel 99 on the Comcast cable
system. The corporation also provides public meeting space, television production studios,
media production facilities and equipment, as well as a wide variety of workshops and training
classes.

The Cape Media Center is a membership organization governed by a Board of Directors who are
responsible for strategic direction of the corporation and sound fiduciary policies and processes.
The roles, responsibilities, and requirements of the Board and individual Board members are
outlined herein.

Section 3- NATURE

The Cape Media Center shall be a non-profit, non-partisan and non-sectarian and shall take no
part in, or lend its support to, the election or appointment of any candidate for political or public
office in local, county, state or national elections. The Media Center may support or advance
policy positions as they relate to local, county, state or national matters. The Cape Media Center
shall observe all local, state, and federal laws which apply to a non-profit organization as defined
in Section 501(C)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

1



ARTICLE II
MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 – ELIGIBILITY

Any person, firm, association, corporation or partnership, having an interest in public access
media is eligible to be a member of the organization. Membership will be active as long as dues
are paid in full.

Section 2- HONORARY MEMBER AND/OR DIRECTOR

Any person rendering distinction in public or private affairs in the community shall be eligible
for consideration as an honorary member of the organization and/or director of the board. All
privileges shall be enjoyed by this person except the right to vote, and he or she shall be exempt
from payment of membership dues. The Board of Directors shall confer or revoke this
distinction by majority vote.

Section 3 – ELECTION AND GOOD STANDING

Applications for membership shall be in writing, on forms provided by the Media Center, and
signed by the applicant. Application for membership can also be done electronically. Election
of members shall be by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any meeting thereof. Any
applicant so elected shall become a member in good standing upon payment of the regularly
scheduled investments/dues.

Section 4 – INVESTMENTS/DUES

Membership investments/dues shall be at such rate or rates, schedule or formula as may be from
time to time prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Section 5 – TERMINATION OR DENIAL OF MEMBERSHIP

A. Any member may resign from the Media Center upon written request to the Board
of Directors, dues are not refundable.

B. Any member may be expelled by the Board of Directors by a two-thirds vote for
non-payment of dues after ninety (90) days from the date due, unless otherwise
extended for good cause.

C. Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors, at a
regularly scheduled meeting thereof, for conduct prejudicial or damaging to the
aims or repute of the Media Center or its members, after notice and a reasonable
opportunity for a hearing not more than thirty (30) days following notice are
afforded the member, dues are not refundable.

2



D. Membership may be denied by the Board of Directors based upon a good faith
determination that the proposed membership would be inconsistent with the
corporation purpose of the Media Center.

Section 6 – VOTING

In any proceeding in which member voting by the Board of Directors is called for, each regular
member in good standing shall be entitled to cast one vote. Absentee ballots may be requested
and cast by a written proxy, fax or e-mail.

Section 7 – EXERCISE OF PRIVILEGES

Any individual, business or association may appoint an individual whom the holder desires to
exercise the privileges of membership covered by its subscriptions (the “Member’s
Representative”), the member shall have the right to change its Member’s Representative upon
written notice or may do so electronically.

ARTICLE III
MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

Section 1 – ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of the membership of the Cape Media Center, in compliance with state law,
shall be held at a location within the organization’s service area during the month of October of
each year. The time and place shall be fixed by the Board of Directors and notice thereof mailed,
either electronically or through the US Postal Service, to each member at least fifteen (15)
calendar days before said meeting.

Section 2 – ADDITIONAL MEETINGS

A. Special meetings of the membership of the Cape Media Center may be called by
the President or Board of Directors at any time, or upon petition in writing of any
ten percent (10%) of regular members in good standing. Notice of special
meetings shall be mailed to each member at least five (5) days prior to such
meetings and shall set forth the time, place and purpose thereof.

B. Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chair or by the Board of
Directors upon written application of four (4) members of the Board. Notice,
including the purpose of the meeting, shall be given to each Director at least two
(2) days prior to said meeting.

C. Committee meetings may be called at any time by the Chair, Vice Chair,
committee chairs or the Executive Director.

3



Section 3 – QUORUMS

At any duly called special meeting of the membership of the Cape Media Center, ten percent
(10%) of members shall constitute a quorum. A majority of Directors then in office and present
shall constitute a quorum of the Board of Directors meetings. For committee meetings, a
majority of the Committee Members shall constitute a quorum, except when a committee
consists of more than nine (9) members, in which event five (5) shall constitute a quorum.
Voting may be by written electronic proxy delivered to the Chairman.

For membership meetings proxy votes will be allowed and shall be counted for the purpose of
establishing a quorum. Proxy votes are not allowed for Board of Director or Committee
Meetings.

Section 4 – NOTICES, AGENDA, MINUTES

Written notice of all Cape Media Center meetings must be given at least seven (7) days in
advance unless otherwise stated. An advance agenda must be prepared for all meetings.
Minutes of the prior meeting must be reviewed at the following meeting. Minutes are to be in a
form that highlights and captures all discussion and decisions. Minutes of all Board meetings
will be retained in a permanent file.

ARTICLE IV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 – COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall be composed of no less than seven (7) regular members and no
more than eleven (11) regular members. Each member appointed to the Board is eligible to serve
two three-year terms.

The issuing authorities of the towns served may appoint a representative to the Board of
Directors subject to all Bylaws, terms and term limits.

No employee of the Corporation shall serve as a member of the Board of Directors. No close
relative (domestic partner, sibling, parent or child) of an employee of the Corporation shall serve
as a member of the Board of Directors. Directors who leave the Board due to terming out or by
resignation, may become employees of the Corporation following a term of 1 year and 1 day
from the date of leaving the Board. No Board member will receive compensation from the
corporation with the exception that they may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary
expenses incurred in the performance of services on behalf of the Corporation.

Section 2-POLICY

The government and policy making responsibilities of the Cape Media Center shall be vested in
the Board of Directors, which shall control its property, be responsible for its finances and direct
its affairs. The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and, through the Executive

4



Director, implementing policy and procedures of the Cape Media Center. These policies shall be
reviewed regularly and revised as necessary by the Board of Directors.

Section 3 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ CONDUCT

Individuals serving on the Board of Directors shall be members of the organization in good
standing. Directors may be expelled from the Board of Directors by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of
the Board of Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting, for conduct prejudicial or damaging to
the aims or repute of the Cape Media Center or its members.

Section 4 – MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors shall employ an Executive Director as described in Article VII.

Section 5 – INDEMNIFICATION

The Cape Media Center shall, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for
indemnification by the Cape Media Center of any and all of its Directors or former Directors
against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any
action, suit or proceeding in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of
having been Directors of the Cape Media Center, except in relation to matters as to which such
Director shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for negligence,
malfeasance or misconduct in the performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by
agreement predicated on the existence of such liability for negligence, malfeasance or
misconduct.

Section 6 – MEETINGS

The Board of Directors shall meet every other month at a regularly scheduled time and place to
be determined by the Board at the first meeting of the Board following the annual meeting of the
Cape Media Center. The Board of Directors may with a majority vote choose to cancel no more
than one of the six regularly scheduled meetings. As necessary, the Board of Directors may
choose to hold additional meetings as warranted. The additional meetings can be called by the
Board Chair, any officer of the Board or any Board member in good standing. Notices, agendas
and minutes of these additional meetings will follow the process outlined in Article III, Section
4. Board meetings may be held virtually if necessary or required. Additionally, Board members
may attend a Board meeting virtually and have all rights of those attending in person including
voting.

Section 7 – ACTION BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT

The Board of Directors may approve action by written unanimous consent in lieu of a meeting
discussion and vote. Consent may be given in writing or electronically. Actions which may be
considered under Unanimous Consent include prior Meeting Minutes, Financial Reviews and
Committee Reports.

5



ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

Section 1-STANDING COMMITTEES

The following standing committees are established:

A. Finance Committee

The Finance Committee shall prepare an annual budget in conjunction with the
Executive Director, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors. The
Finance Committee shall meet to review the financial condition of the Media
Center monthly. The Financial Committee is composed of the Board Treasurer,
the Chair of the Board, the Executive Director and one additional Board Member.
.

B. Personnel Committee

The Personnel Committee shall be responsible for at least annual reviews of the
Executive Director’s performance and shall oversee policies and procedures for
all employees and staff. The committee shall present to the Board of Directors the
results of their review and any recommendations for adjustments in the Executive
Director’s compensation and benefits. The Board of Directors will have final
determination in adjusting the Executive Director’s compensation. The
committee shall be composed of the Chair, Vice Chair and two members from the
Board of Directors.

A. Nominating and Governance Committee

It is the Nominating and Governance Committee’s charge to select candidates to
serve new three (3) year terms and fill any vacancies on the Board of Directors.
The Nominating and Governance Committee will also select candidates from the
Board of Directors to fill the officer positions for the new fiscal year. The
Committee shall also review all governance related matters affecting the
organization, including annually reviewing these Bylaws. The committee shall be
composed of the Chair, Vice Chair, Executive, and one member of the Board of
Directors. Prior to selecting candidates to serve as board members and to
submitting those names to the board and membership, the Nominating and
Governance Committee will make best efforts to define needs of the board and
will focus on identifying individuals who meet those needs. The purpose of the
Nominating and Governance Committee is to select board members who will
advance the mission of the organization. Having served on the board previously
does not automatically make an individual eligible to serve again.

B. Membership Committee

6



The Membership Committee shall review all applications for membership and
submit them to the Board of Directors with a recommendation. The Committee is
charged with membership satisfaction, resolving grievances.

C. Marketing Committee

The Marketing Committee shall work to represent the interests of the
membership. Members of this Committee shall be approved by the Board of
Directors and include at least two members of the Board.

E. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee will serve to assess and evaluate opportunities,
programs and operations on behalf of the full Board. All discussions will be
shared with the full Board. The Executive Committee will not have voting rights
on any issue but has the responsibility of placing all matters that require a vote in
front of the entire Board. The Executive Committee will be composed of the
Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, Secretary and Executive Director.

F. Equipment & Facilities Committee

The Committee reviews and recommends capital expenditures for equipment,
furniture, fixtures, and facilities for the current year and possibilities for the
following two years. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board to
improve the appropriateness of both current and future equipment and facilities
for the benefit of the members and communities served. The Committee meets
quarterly to monitor facilities and equipment matters. The Equipment and
Facilities Committee will be composed of the Operations Manager, two members
of the Board and at least one additional employee and two members of the
organization.

Section 2-AD HOC COMMITTEES

The Chair may appoint such ad hoc committees as he/she may deem necessary to carry out the
programs of the Cape Media Center, subject to approval or ratification by the Board of Directors.

Ad Hoc Committees shall be discharged by the Chair when their work has been completed and
their reports accepted, or when, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, it is deemed appropriate
to discontinue the committee.

Section 3-RECORD KEEPING

All such committees shall keep minutes of their meetings and make reports to the Board of
Directors when requested.

7



Section 4 – LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY

No action or position by any member, committee, division, employee, director or officer shall be
binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of the Media Center until such action or
position shall have been approved or ratified by the Board of Directors.

No committee shall be empowered to expend Media Center funds without prior consent of the
Board of Directors.

Section 6 – DIVISIONS

The Board of Directors may create such divisions, bureaus, departments, councils, or subsidiary
corporations as it deems advisable to carry out the purpose and program of work of the Media
Center.

The Board shall authorize and define in writing the powers and duties of all divisions, bureaus,
departments, councils and subsidiary entities. The Board shall annually review and approve all
activities and proposed programs of such divisions, bureaus, departments, councils or subsidiary
entities, including collection and disbursement of funds.

No action or resolution of any kind shall be taken by divisions, bureaus, departments, councils or
subsidiary entities having a bearing upon or expressive of the Media Center, or its membership
without the express prior approval of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI
NOMINATING AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE-ELECTIONS

Section 1 – SELECTION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A. Nominating and Governance Committee Responsibilities

At the July Board meeting of each year, the Nominating and Governance
Committee shall present to the Board of Directors a slate of candidates to replace
the Directors and officers whose regular terms are expiring and to serve three (3)
year terms. Each candidate must be an active regular member in good standing
and must have agreed to accept the responsibility of directorship. To the greatest
extent feasible, the candidates should represent the Cape community, be diverse
and represent a balanced cross section providing skills needed to improve the
operation of the Cape Media Center. Any Board member who has served two
consecutive three (3) year terms is not eligible for election for a third consecutive
term, except for the Chairman and Immediate Past Chairman then in office. A
period of one (1) year must elapse before eligibility is restored.

8



B. Publicity of Nominations

Prior to September 1st of each year, the Executive Director shall notify the
membership by mail and/or electronic mail of the names of persons nominated as
candidates for Directors and the right of petition.

C. Nominations by Petition

Additional names of candidates for Directors may be nominated by petition
bearing the genuine signatures of at least ten percent (10%) of the regular
members in good standing of the Media Center. Such a petition shall be filed with
the Nominating and Governance Committee prior to September 15th of each year.
The determination of the Nominating and Governance Committee as to the
eligibility of the petition(s) shall be final.

D. Determination

If no petition is filed within the designated period, the nominations shall be closed
and the nominated slate of candidates shall be presented to the Members at the
October annual meeting for a vote.

If a legal petition shall present additional candidates, the names of all candidates
shall be arranged on a ballot in alphabetical order. Instructions will be to vote for
required number of candidates to fill expiring terms candidates only. The
Executive shall mail this ballot to all regular members at least fifteen (15)
calendar days before the October annual meeting.

The ballots shall be marked in accordance with instructions printed on the ballot
and returned to the Media Center office within ten (10) days of the mailing. The
Board Chair shall, at the October annual meeting, declare the candidates with the
greatest number of votes elected.

Section 2 – SEATING OF NEW DIRECTORS

All newly elected members of the Board of Directors shall be seated and assume office at the
first Board meeting of the following calendar year and shall be participating members thereafter.
Retiring Directors shall continue to serve until their successors are duly elected and seated.

Section 3 – VACANCIES

A member of the Board of Directors who shall be absent from two (2) consecutive regular
meetings of the Board of Directors, or four (4) during the twelve (12) month fiscal year, shall be
removed from membership on the Board, unless confined by illness or other absence and
excused by the Board Chair.

9



Vacancies on the Board of Directors, or officers, shall be declared by a majority vote of the
Board of Directors.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors, or among the officers, shall be filled by appointments of a
majority vote of the Board of Directors which appointments shall remain in effect until the next
annual meeting of the Media Center.

ARTICLE VII
Executive Director

Section 1- The Board of Directors shall be empowered to hire an Executive Director at a salary
and on such terms of employment as it may determine. Annual evaluation of the Executive
Director and salary review shall be conducted by the Personnel Committee and reviewed by the
Executive Committee. The Executive Director shall not be a voting member of the Board of
Directors and the Executive Committee.

Section 2-The Executive Director shall be the chief administrative officer of the Media Center,
and shall operate within the framework of the “Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive
Director” as established by the Board of Directors.

Section 3-The Executive Director shall cause to be prepared notices, agendas and minutes of all
meetings of the Board and maintain the books and records of the Media Center.

Section 4-The Executive Director shall serve as advisor to the Chair on program planning, and
shall assemble information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as directed by the
program of the Media Center.

Section 5-The Executive Director shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing, and
supervising all employees for staff positions.

Section 6- In conjunction with the Finance Committee, the Executive Director shall be
responsible for the preparation of an operating budget covering all activities of the Media Center,
subject to approval of the Board of Directors. The Executive Director shall also be responsible
for all expenditures within approved budget allocations.

ARTICLE VIII
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Section 1 – DETERMINATION OF OFFICERS

10



The Board of Directors, new and retiring, at its first meeting following the annual meeting shall
reorganize for the new fiscal year. At this meeting the Board shall install the Chair, Vice Chair,
Treasurer and any other officers as deemed necessary to conduct the activities of the Media
Center. Officers will be elected from members of the new Board and shall serve for a term of
two (2) years or until their successors assume the duties of office. Officers may serve three years
at the bequest and approval of the Board of Directors.

Section 2 – DUTIES OF OFFICERS

A. Chairman

The Chairman shall serve as the chief elected officer of the Media Center and
shall preside at all meetings of the membership and Board of Directors. The
Chairman shall, with the advice and counsel of the Vice Chair and the Executive
Director, recommend all committee chairs.

B. Vice Chairman

The Vice Chairman shall exercise the powers and authority and perform the duties
of the Chair in the absence or disability of the Chair.

C. Treasurer

The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping current, complete and accurate
books of all Media Center accounts and for safeguarding all funds received by the
Media Center, and for their prompt and proper disbursement. Such funds shall be
kept on deposit in financial institutions, or invested in a manner approved by the
Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall prepare a detailed monthly financial
report covering the prior month and year to date to be made at each Board
meeting in conjunction with the Executive Director.

D. Secretary

The Secretary shall be responsible for taking minutes of all Board and member
meetings as well as posting or submitting all formal Board correspondence by
electronic means or by the US Postal Service or other mail service.

F Executive Director

The Executive Director responsibilities are described in Article VII.

ARTICLE IX
FINANCES

11



Section 1 – FUNDS

All money and funds paid to the Media Center shall be deposited in an appropriate account as
shall be designated by the Treasurer and Executive Director. Detailed records of all deposits
shall be maintained.

Section 2 – DISBURSEMENTS

Upon acceptance by the Board of Directors of the new fiscal budget, the Board will designate
authorized individuals to sign checks and make disbursements on accounts and expenses
provided for in the budget, and determine levels and amounts requiring multiple signatures. The
authorized individuals will be designated at the first Board of Directors meeting immediately
following the annual meeting in October, and from time to time thereafter. Signature cards
bearing the genuine signatures of the authorized individuals shall be executed for all Media
Center accounts and replace those on file at any institution holding an account.

Section 3 – FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Chamber shall close on December 31.

Section 4 – ANNUAL REPORT

A report of the accounts of the Media Center shall be issued annually as of the close of business
December 31 by a public account. A copy of the report shall be available to all members of the
Media Center at the offices of the Media Center by April 30.

Section 5 – BONDING

The Media Center may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide bonding for the
Executive Director and such other officers and staff as the Board of Directors may designate.
Bonding shall be by a sufficient fidelity bond in the amount set by the Board and paid for by the
Media Center.

Section 6-AUDIT

The Chairperson or Treasurer shall be empowered to request an audit for the Media Center’s
accounts at any time or at the close of the fiscal year, subject to two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of
the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee shall selected qualified individuals to conduct
this audit and a final report shall be presented to the Board of Directors as soon as possible after
it is performed.

ARTICLE X

DISSOLUTION

12



Section 1 – PROCEDURE

The Media Center shall use its funds only to accomplish the objectives and purposes specified in
these Bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of the Media
Center. On dissolution of the Media Center, any funds remaining shall be distributed to one or
more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific or philanthropic
organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors through a vote of the membership as
defined in IRS Section 501(c)(6).

ARTICLE XI

Section 1 – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all
questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the Charter or
Bylaws of the Chamber.

ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENTS

Section 1 – REVISIONS

These Bylaws may be amended or altered by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the regular members
present in person or by valid proxy at any regular or special meeting. Notice of the meeting
including the proposed amendments shall be submitted to the members in writing at least fifteen
(15) days prior to the meeting at which they are to be acted upon.

AMENDED: JANUARY 2023 ADOPTED: NOVEMBER 1982

13



Harwich Channel 18 
100 Oak Street 
Harwich MA 02645 

Memorandum 

To:  Select Board 
Joseph Powers, Town Administrator 
Meggan Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 

From: Jamie Goodwin, Channel 18 Station Manager 
Date:  August 1, 2023 
Re: Channel Station Designation Change 

On June 14, 2023, Comcast issued a notice to the Town of Harwich regarding an upcoming 
change in the station designation for Channel 18. This change is scheduled to take place on or 
about August 17, 2023. The current Cable Television License Agreement Section, in 6.4.B, gives 
Comcast has the authority to implement this change within 30 days of providing written notice 
to the Town. 

As a result of this adjustment, the channel ID for the Town of Harwich will be relocated from its 
current position on Channel 18 to Channel 8. This will be the second Channel ID change since 
Comcast took over from the previous cable provider, Media One Group, in 2000. At that time, 
the designated cable station for the Town was relocated from Channel 19 to Channel 18. 

The Cable License of the Town is comprised of Public, Education, and Government cable 
stations (PEG). This channel ID modification will only impact the Public and Government cable 
stations of the following towns: Dennis, Chatham, Yarmouth, Orleans, and Brewster. Comcast 
Channel 19, the Monomoy Cable Station (Education) will remain unaffected by these changes. 

To ensure everyone is informed about the station number changes, Channel 18 staff will be 
spreading the word through various outlets such as The Chronicle newspaper, Facebook, 
YouTube, and the official town website. I would appreciate your assistance is sharing this 
information broadly with the public, so residents have uninterrupted access to government 
cable content. 



June 13, 2023 

Town Council/Town Attorney 
Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Dear Town Council/Town Attorney: 

FIECENE°
„, 4 ,

JUN 1 If 2023 r.1̀), 

FP.ATOR'S Cy 
SELECT YEN / 

OFF ICE 

•• 

4inity. 

We are committed to keeping you and our customers informed about changes to Xfinity TV services. Accordingly 
please note the following which will occur on or about August 17, 2023, to the Xfinity channel lineup provided in 
your community: 

• The following will move to a new channel location: Local Programming 98 to 9, Local Programming 18/1084 to 
8/1070, Local Programming 99/1070 to 26/1076, and Local Programming 1090 to 1075; WLVI (CW) 11 to 12; 
WSBE (PBS) 9 to 11; WWDP (IND) 81 to 24; WWJE (IND) 79 to 18; QVC 82 to 25; NECN 8 to 48; Jewelry TV 48 to 
57; Leased Access 283 to 190. 

• The following changes will occur: HBO Zone, 5 Star Max, MovieMax, OuterMax and SHO X BET will no longer be 
available from Xfinity; HBO Signature HD will be added to 771/1806; WCEA will be added to 729/1045. 

• The following channels will only be available in the channels noted and removed from any 3-digit channels 
numbers: Leased Access 1096; Leased Access 1099; WGBH World 1146; WGBX Kids 1147; WGBX Create 1148; 
WSBE Learn 1150; WBZ Start 1165; WBZ Dabl 1166; WBTS Cozi 1171; WBTS 1172; WHDH This TV 1174; WLVI BuzzR 
1177; WCVB MeTV 1180; WFXT Comet 1186; WFXT Laff 1187; WNEU TeleXitos 1192; and WUTF LATV 1195. 

• The following will move to a new channel location: Disney Channel 24 to 70; Nickelodeon 25 to 71; Freeform 26 
to 72; Golf 53 to 69; Bravo 57 to 53; Travel 54 to 67; Food Network 67 to 54; History 71 to 66; Hallmark Channel 
208 to 73; BBC News 190 to 189; Pursuit Channel 686 to 258; MLB 269 to 262; ESPN U 286 to 263; NFL Red Zone 
287 to 264; Big Ten Network 285 to 269; Screenpix 205 to 330; Screenpix Action 197 to 331; Screenpix Westerns 
206 to 332; Screenpix Voices 209 to 333; Starz 321 to 335; Encore 326 to 336; Encore Action 203 to 337; Encore 
Westerns 207 to 338; and Encore Black 192 to 339. 

• The following duplicate channels will no longer be available: CMT 66; TruTV 186; Flix 202; INSP 234; EWTN 238; 
MSNBC 251; and NBA TV 599. 

Customers are receiving notice of these changes in their bill. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any 
questions at Michael_Galla@comcast.com or 339.832.7395. 

Sincerely, 

AI idsaeb allw 

Michael Galla, Sr. Manager 
Government & Regulatory Affairs 

Mashpee CLU 



OLD BUSINESS 



?r
.,

WILLIAM D. CROWELL
ATTORiIEY AT LAW

.66 MAII{ STREET

P.O. BOX ,r85 HARWTCN PORT, MA 026a6

_+
ifucirvi0

JUL I I 2023

."ii;lllf,!l,
{]fFtci

RAYMOTO H. GRAYSON
1901-t991

FAX NO. (508) r30-0631

Julyll,20

Town of Harwich Select Board
c/o Town Clerk
732 Main Street
Harwich, MA 02645

RE: NOTICE OF INTENT To SELL

Dear Harwich Select Board:

As you know, pursuant to MGL-6IA Section 14, the Select Board has a Right of
First Refusal to purchase the said property for the amount indicated on said Purchase and
Sale Agreement. Consequenlly, as the closing date indicated therein will soon be upon us, it
is hereby respecrfully requested that the Board hold a public meeting as soon as possible to
deliberate regarding this matter and hopefull y waive its Right ofFirst Refusal in recordable
form so that the parties may proceed with closing and my client can convey clear title to the
buyers. Thank you very much.

y yours,

C ell, Esq

LEPI{ONE NO
(s06) 432..r643

L^,

Please be advised that this oflice represents Aaron T. Gingras of204 oat stre?r,
Harwich, MA 02645 (telephone number 774-722-136g) who is rhe owner of the real estare
and d-welling located at l7 woody Glen Road, Harwich, MA 02645, formerly known as 140
oak Street, Harwich, MA 02645. My client intends to sell said property pursuant to lhe
enclosed certified copy ofa Purchase and Sale Agreement dated June 21, 2023 between Mr.
Gingras and catherine conlon and colleen ormsby in the amounr of $g49,000.00. The said
property has a single-family residence constructed thereon and will now be use solely for
residential purposes. The said property is shown as Lot I on rhe enclosed Land court plan
No.43402-8 containing a total of65,103 square feet as shown on the enclosed site plan of
Land dated January 13,2021, scale I . = 20'by Stephen A. Haas, p. E.

CERTIFIED MA]L

a_c:

!
=)>

wDChjh
cc: Harwich Select Board
Board ofAssessors
Planaing Board
Conservation Commission
State Forester



Digisign Verified - 67 8c1442-bcr'b4sd.t{99e-43b8958f6oo3 1hla3- C

c use YPurchase and Sale Ag
05/2t12023

This 

- 

day ol June,2023

reement - Single/Multi FamilY '
From tho oltlco ol: willl.m D. c,otvrll, Etq.

456 ll.ln Sllcol P.O. Bot 185
Hr] lch Port MA 02646

1. prttice Arron T. cinglls her€inaflor callad lhs SELLER wtro8o maillng sddrsss b 204 Oak St(Bst, Han*lct, MA 02645

ss"eorcff&[8n9eh*IB codlon .nd Colban Ormsbv
, E.rt tch port lll O

lhe BUYER whoso mailing 8ddre66

ls to BUY, upon th6 loms herElnaflor

s€t forth, ths following d€scribod prsmises

2 Dcrcripdon
ofPtohca

3. Buildlt!8r,
Strtcturca,
lnptovc-
nrtttlt
FiItu.r.

4, Tirlc Dccd

5. Pl.o.

6, R.gfurcrcd
Tidc

The tand End tho building(8) thsroon, lctsd 8t th€ bllov{lng 8ddre8s, 17 woody Glcn Ro8d, H. lch, llA 02&16

(fts '1,[0 Oek Strsot, Harwldr, MA 02045) snd lu hff boing thoY{n .s Lot I on Lrnd Coud PLn /13402'8' Sto

Cortlflcrt ol Tltl. No. 216898 rccord8d in th6 B8mltsblo Reglstry Dbtrlcl of th€ Lsnd Cqrrt.

lncludod in the sala 88 8 part ot Beld pr€mlsas ars lho bulldlng!, struclurgs, end lmplov6monts nd$, lharron, and lho

fiduro8 uled ln connoclion th€rEwtlh hdudlng, lf any, all Yrall-to-urall carpeting, drsPery rods, aulomstic garsga door

opon€r8, venruan bllnds, whd , shadcs, rcrr6lr!, scDdl dooG, rlorm tylndorYs ond

doors, awnlms, 8ht ttec, iufliacos, hod8lt. tFs{ng oqdFnanl, !tor!, rangos, on md gas butnc[ 8nd tixturc!

appurtanant th6rsto, hot y{aior h.!t6rs, plumblng and bslhroorn ftft,rs. grrbseo dbp68ta, Bloctlc 8nd othor llghthg

flxturls, manl6lr, oulsido tsbvillm 8nlenlla8, fancrs, gd6!, fBs3, shtubs, plents, 8nd, rcldgGrato.8, ait condillmhg

oqulpmont, vrndl€tors, dishwashaE, w8shlng maciinc! end drysE; 
'nd 'll 

rpPllsnc't 'l rrln tt 6,6'202t

rhowlng.

ssld p|!ml86 ara to bs convoyod by a good and suffdd qtltclEkn dced runnlng to lh6 BUYER, or to tho nomhrG

drslgnatod by thr BUYER by wrlten notlco to th6 SELLER at lcad t€vcn CD day. b€lbrs thc d.€d b to bc dtlhrorod

88 hGGin proyldsd, and ssid dr6d 8h8ll conwy 8 good End d.8r rlcord 8nd mattrtabh &la lhsreto, ,IE6 tom
oncumbrencgS. oxcapt:

E) provilbns of oxhting bulldlng snd zonlng latYri

b) sxjgtlng rightE and ouhEtors h pady vals Y{tidr 8r! nol thc trtt*td of writtu agB€.nont;

c) ouch taras lor th! thon cfir! ( y!6r as rra mt dus ond tsyabtc on lho dal3 ot tho dclvely ol glxh desd;

O any llsns tor munlcipal boltsrmsnts 8ua3rcd stcr tho dtte of Closingi

s) o8s€m6nls, rlltlcdoru rnd rlr€rvltona oi rscsrd, lf eny, so lono e! lho rErno do not lnisrlore wllh tho cur]lnt

uls of seld pr!ml!€a:

D Bpscily hsrB eny othor llms ot Bncl:nbrances not [cbd sbara

ll lald doed l€turr to E pbn nscsslsry to be rocoded lhoravlh thc SELLER shsll dsltvsr Euch den wlh the doed in

form Bdequalc for Ecordlng or togl8ffion.

ln addltlon to tha forogoing. if th€ ti0e to ssld pramho8 ls rsglslored, !€ld dsad shall b3 in torm luffclont to ortltle ltro

BUYER to a Csrttffcale ofTl(e of sald plBmls8r, snd lhs SELLER rhell dcllvor rylth rai, deod 8ll lnstrum€nh, lf eny,

nsccs$ry to onablo the BUYER to obtsln Euch C€ttiflc8ts ofTrfl€.

The agrsod purchalo ptica lor Eald promlsa! l! Eghl hundrod fo y-nln8 thouEand and no,/100 dollsrE,

18,t9,000,00 (Purchsse Ptlcs), ot whlch

3 1,000.00 dollan h8v. b6.o plkl as an initlEl d€pollt;

t 48,000.00 dollsrs is b be pald 8s an 8ddttlon8l d6pollt upon ox6orllon of tha Purcha66 and Srls AgGornonl; and

!E0O,0O0.O0 dolhr8, tho balancc drc. wll bc payrbL at tr|. Umo ol dollvsry of decd by bank chcck or c.rt66d dlcck,
6 eltom6y! IoLTA eunt drqd(.

7. Purcb..G
Pdcc

P.gr I ol5

I

I

i

I
I

I



. DigiSrgn Verified - 678d442-bdb4ed.t-899€-43bB9S8f6OOg

8, l'lmc for
Pctfor-
lnallcc;
Dclivcty of
Dccd

such de€d is lo be delivered on or bEfore 2 o'dock P.M. on th6 2ld dry of July 2023. at th6 Law otfices oI paut

Tardit, unleEs olhorwlse agroed upon ln writing.

Tlme l! of lhe ealenco of thl! Agr.omgnt

Full pos66Bslon of said pr6ml6a6 lrse ofalltenantS and ocqJp.ntE and all perEgnrl property, oxcepl as herein
provided, is lo be d€livered 8t the lims ol th€ d€|fuory ot th6 de€d. SEld premisos lo be th€n (8) broom clean and in
tho same condlfion as lhey trcro at the llme ol Buye/8 ottor, roaEonable 1,s6 snd wear th€roof excaplod, end (b) not
in violalion of said building 8nd zot ng laws, and (c) in compliancB with provlsiors ol any lnstrumenl refun€d to in
cl8u8s 4 hsreol The BUYER 8hall bo entitl€d to personally inEposi said premls€s prior to the d€livsry ofth€ deed ln
ordat to d€tormino whether the condition thoreof complles with the t€rms oflhls clause,

ll lhc SELLER 8hall bB unsblo to give litle or to maks conveyonco, or to d€llvar possesBion of lha prsmisos, 8ll 8s
he.ein stipulsted, or if Et tho tlme ot ths dolivory ol the deed th€ prsfll83s do not conlorm with lho p{ovisions h€r6ol,
tho SELLER shsll u6s r€ssonaue €'lforlE lo rBmove any dolect! ln ttlo, or to deliver possosslon os provldsd herain,
or lo mako thc Eaid prsmisss oonform lo ths provisions hersol as the case may be, tn which avent tho lime tor
performance hcrsot 8hall be oxt€nded lor a penod ot hirty (30) days, or untilone bu8lnels day prior to lhe explralion
of Buyer's morlgsgo rata lock, whictevsr occum firBt..

l, at lh8 oxplrstlon ofthe exbndcd tim€ the SELLER sh8ll hEv€ fsllsd so to remorre any defscis ln tiuB. deliv8r
possosslon, or maks ho prBml$! conform. as thG case moy be, €ll as herein egreed, or if at any lims dudng lho
period ol thls sgrecm€nl or Eny extonslon lhorcof, lhc holdar ot s morlgege on ssid pr6mls6s shall relus€ lo permlt
thc InsurEnc€ proceGds, it Eny, to bc ulod br sudl purposo!, ttron, 8t the BUyER's optioni any psymgnts made
undor lhl! agrecm€nt shall b6 forthvilh rstunded and Ell othct obligstions ol all pgrlo3 hEroto Bhall cea86 and lhls
sgrBomont shall be vold without rBcourso to lhe parlic! horoto.

Thc BUYER shsll have tho olecllon, et eilher the originsl or 8ny Gxlsnded tlme for performanca, lo accept such tille
6s the SELLER can deliver to the said promlses in thef thon condltion and to pay thorcfor lhe purd|ase price tvithout
d€duclion, in v/rich csse tha SELLER shall corwcy Euch llllo, oxcrpt ti8l in he Gvent of such conveyancs In eccord
with the piovislons o, this d5uso. itth6 Gald plemir€6 6halt hava boon dmaged by fiI! or c8sualty insuBd agslnsl,
thEn ths SELLER 5hall, unlasE thc SELLER ha8 prviously .lstorEd thc p.EmisEs lo thir bnner condition, dth€r

a) pay ov6r or sssign b th6 BI'JYER, on dellvery of tho dcsd, allamounts rs€ov€red or recovereblo on account of
8uch lnsursnca. le!! sny amount! rcasonably exp€ndGd by lio SELLER br 8ny par sl roslora on, or

b) ff e holder ot I mortgeg€ on leld prDmise3 sh8ll not prrmit th€ lnaurance procaeds or e perl lh6Eol to bc ulsd to
restoro lho 3aid prBmisor to lholr former condlflon or to bE pau ov6r or esslgnod, glve lo tho Bl,ryER a cr!d(
against th8 purctaso pricc, on dalivery of the do6d, oqual to rald smounls Eo rocovrr.d or rrcovcrsble by $o
holder of the Bald moigago h3r any amounts cxpendld by thr SELLER for psrtial roslorsflon, or

c) te,mln8l6lhe Agruomont End roceivo a r8fund of Ell d8poslt monior paid

The sccsptarEe 8nd ncodlng of s deGd by lho BUYER or hl! nominec as thc cas6 may b6, 6hs[ bc 8 tull
partormancs ln disdlarge End rllcaso ol ev6ry EgrBs.flcnt and obilgatiofl her8ln conbinod or cxprsssed, excapl 8uch
a8 816, bry thc tcrmE her€of,lo b6 portormcd afr8r th€ d€llvory of said de€d.

To €n8bl€ lh€ SELLER lo meko conveyenca 83 herBin plovk od, th€ SELLER shall, at th€ flms ofd€ltvory oflhe
d6ed, ulo th€ purchsso mooey or any podion $oreof to cloar lhe tts ofsny or all oncumbrancos or lntareel6,
provlded that all instrumenb Eo procurad ale Ecord€d slmuhaneously with the dellv8ry of saH docd or ln
.ccord.nc! wlth cuttomrry Brmtt bla County corvryrnclng prrsfico.

Pago 2 ot 5

9. Porccceion

end

Conditioo
of Ptcmiocs

10. Extcntio[
to Pclfcct
Tidc or
Mekc
Ptcmircr
Confona

11. Fdlurc to
Pcrfcct
Tidc ot
Mekc
Prmircr
Coaform

1ll. Brrycr'e
Elcction
to ,lcccpt
Tidc

13. Aeccpteocc
of Dccd

14. Uec of
Putchcrc
Moncv to
chrr hitl.

!

I

I
I



15. Inrurancc

lT.Adiusrrncot
of
Uaertcrscd
.trd Ab.rcd
Tqca

18. Btokcr Fec
Acknow-
lcdgcmcnt

19. Btokct'a
Warr.nty

2). Agcncy

21. Dcposir

22 Buyclz
Defeulr;
Dernegco

23, Finaocing

b) Other $

lfthe amount of said tax€s iE not knourn at lho tims o{ the dellvery ofthe da€d, thoy shall be apportioned on tho basisotlhe laxes as8ess€d tor the prcceding fiEc€l year. with a taepporlionment as soon as lhe nei, tar ret€ and valuatbn
can be ascertained: 8nd' ifthe laxes which are lo be apportloned sha thsreeller b€ reducsd by abatemont. the
amount of such abatemenl, b6s the teesonable co6t o, obtalnlng lh6 sarn€, Ehsll b6 opportion;d between the parties.
provided lhal neither party shall be obligated to institute or prosecute proceedings tor an abalemenl unless he;ein
otheBisa agreed,

The SELLER and BUYER acknorvbdgo that 8 lee of g2,asO.OO (5%l fve perce ot the purchase prbe for
profeEsionsr servbBs th.[ be peid by rhs SELLER ro Grb"on sorheby,r rntsrn uon r Rcrrty. rhe .BRoKER,, 

onry,
if, 

"" 
and s'hen th. Dcod rr ds[vsrcd 8nd rrco]dad 8nd rhc conrrd.rrdon pard but nor othorwrse.

The Broker(s) nam€d herein, Glb.on sothaby'3 ln!3mrllonal R.rlg warran(s) that they ar€ duly licensed as such
in the slete in which the premises are loc€lod.

BUYER and SELLER acknowr.dge and und€rsrand thar the ht€rests or the seler are r€prc.oited by:
Nttrlia wslner of Glbron sothoby's lntometion.l Roalty and th6 inter€sts ofthe Buyer are represented by: il.ry
Ann Poliu ot Glbson Sotheby,s lnbmauoml R.!lty.

All doposits maG h€r8under 6hal be herd an escrow by Gibaon sotheby,r rntem.uon r Rc.rty s8 oscrow agent
Eubjocl lo the terms ofthis agrecmcnt and shsll b6 duly accounted ror aathe time br perlbrmance of rib agreJment.
ln the event or sny disagrcem€nr berwe.n th€ parrie6, the escrow ag6nt sharr retarn Baid daposits pendng
inErrucrions in 

'^T 
iting mutualy given by the SELLER and $e EuyER or by I court ot competer iurisdior;n,

lf the BUYER thall fail to fttfll the BUYER'S agro€ments herein and fl6 SELLER has tutfillod SELLER,S egreamenls
horein, all doposils made horeunder by the gUyER shall be
reteined by the SELLER as liquidated damages. The parti€s sgree that in thc eyaot ol deiault by the BUYER it will be
diffcuh to ascertaln wnh certainty the srnount ot dam.gos sufiared by th. sELLER. The amount of the deposit
reprosenis a eEsonable eslimslc o, the dsmages orp€cted to be sufferod by tha SELLER 85 I reSuh o, the guyER'6
defauft. Thb 3h.ll be So a/a iol. remsdy at law and in equity.

ln ord€r lo help linsnce the acquisition ol sald pr6mbos, BUYER shall apply for mortgsg€ frnancjng in the amount of
t42l'000.00 at prevsillng rale8, tsrm6 8nd condltions. lt despite BUYER'S dilbent efrorts, a commitment ,or such
financing c€nnol be oblalned m or before July 15, 2023, BUYER m8y torminste this agreemont by written notics to
the SELLER 8nd/or the Broke(8), as ag8n(s) rbr th€ SELLER, prior ro tho exriralion of such rinE, whs,rupon any
payments madc unds] lhls agE€mant thsll be torbwilh rrtundod 8nd allother obllgations ofthe parflcs heEto shsll
coa8o and this agreement shall ba void without rgcounc to the pardes hsrsto. ln no .vant will BUYER bc de€nEd to
heve used diriefll sttort! lo obtain sucrt commlrrent unlas6 BuYER submitg a complote mortgag€ loan spplicatjon

Pege 3 ot 5

until th€ rocording oft'" de6d, the SELLER 6hafi maintein in.urance on said prsmises as to[on,":
TYPo ol lnsu,c.nc:o Amount ol Cowngo
8) FirE and Exlonded Coverage $etcunw !4ggggg1_

LJntil the (blivery ot lhe deed, he SELLER Bhall msintsin arry supplemcnlal insurance now in effect coy€ring theplemises itsel, and 8ny tixtures lherein. Allrisk of lo83 shallremain wilh Seller until Buy6/s dccd iB recorded.

16' Adiueurents weler and real estate La.xes for the lhen cun€nt tiscal year, 6hali be apporlioned and fu€l vatue sha be sdiusted, ss
oflho day of pertormance of this agreemenl and thc nel amount thercof shall bo added to of deducl€d trom, a6 the
cas6 may be, the Blrchas8 price psyable by the BUYER at the trne of delivery of the d€sd.



24- VA or
In.utcd
Ioear

25. Liebllltv of
I ruatccc,
Shercholdct

ll BI,JYER Is srsklog V8terans Admini8traton losn benefdE or a US Govemmanl Fgdersl Houslng Admlnlstratlon

insurod loan, .pploprlate langusge, 83 Epplicable, is attached Bc Addondum _.

lfth€ SELLER or BUYER execNrts8 this agreement in a represontativo or fiduciary capacity, only lhe principal or lhe
eslale rBpresented Bhall be bound. and neilher the SELLER or BUYER so executing. nor any sharehold€r or
beneficiary of any lrusl, shsll be personolly liablo for Eny obllgEtion, expro8s or impl,ed, hereunder.

For properties bullt pdor to '1978, BUYER 8d(nowledg8s lBcript ot thc Ooparlment ol Publc HBslth Pmp€rty Transter
Notlllcation brm and undr6lands lho SELLER 6nd Brclor(s) hsw mads no repr€s€ntatlona orwaranlioE axpaBss or
implisd, s8 to the hsd paint contont of ths proporly. BUYER acloo$,lcdgcr vcrbal notificalion of lhc posrlblo
pro8encs ol lesd h8z8rds and the provlslons of tho Fedrralsnd M8ssachus€tls Lead Lsw! and rEguhtlonr, lncludlng
tho right to lnspact fur dang€rcus lev€lr ol lead. Occupsnc, of pl6mlsc! contglnlng danoorous hvels of lcad by I
chik under six years ot age is prohiMod. BUYER takes full EEporslbllty for complianc€ wlth all lsws rBlstlng to same
(End in parlcubr M8ss. Gensml Lary Chapter 111, S€dlon '197). BUYER assumcs th3 burden of cost tor 8tr lssh,
ard comdisnce arielng thel€fmm.

Tho SELLER shEll 6quip th6 rosldontlal structure(s) on the wlthin doEcribed realty wlth approved smoka dGbc.tors

and furnlsh BUYER wlth Certlficat8 of Approved lnsl8llstlon ftom the local llre d.partmont no lsler thsn tlmo of
@nv6yanco.

Tho SELLER 6hall equip the re6idential structurs(s) on the udlhln de6cribod rBalty with spproved csrbon

monoxide detectors 8nd ,umish BI,JYER wlth certllicst€ frcm the local firB dopsrtmeni no lal6r than time of
conveyanco. (EffEctlv€ 3/31/08)

DELETED

BUYER scknorrledg€s lhal lhey havo not r€lisd upon any wanantils or roprBsentrEtions oxccpl 8s set forth ln wrltlng
end the tullo,ving addltlonalwEnerlio! end ropros8ntatloos. if any, mado by elthErlhe SELLER orlhs Brok6(6):

(lf non6, ltete 'none'i il 8ny listod, indicste by whom th€ warrenty or BprEsenlstion was made)

TIIiIE IS OF THE ESSENCE AS TO ALL PROVISIOI{S OF THIS AGREEI'ENI.
ThiB lnstrument, exocutod ln mulliplr countorpart8, 16 to b6 conslruod a8 a Ma8aachuE€tti conlred, b to tako oitec|

es a s8eled lnskumonl, 8€ts torth th6 rntir3 contract bstwsen lho pBrli6, l! blnding upon snd enuros to ths benefit ot

th€ psrllr6 h6r6to and tholr rrspsdlve holrs, d6vi3oc6, axoculors. adrnlnlrtr6tors, succoEsors 8rd asshns, and msy

bo c8ncellsd, modlfsd or arnended only by s wriltsn lnstnrnont sxeqJtad by boh lh€ SELLER 8nd [l€ 8UYER. ll t o

or morc poGons aro nEmod h€roln 8E BUYER thelr obllg8fons h6reundor !h8ll b€ rolnt 8nd loveml, Tha captbn8

rnd marginsl nol6s ars uaed only aE e meltor ol cgnv€nlancs snd ata mt lo be consldorod a psrt ol rl! egreem€nt

or to bo u6ed ln dotcrminlng lho lr snt of lh€ partes to h.

P.96 4 ot 5

25. Rclcrrc bv
Hurbrad'or Th6 SELLER's spouse hereby agroos to join in said deed and to raleaao a,ld convey all statutory and othBr dghts and

Wifc int6rost8 in 6aid premises

27, Lcrd Pritt
Aclnow-
lcdg!!rcnr

28. Srokc
DctcctoB

29. Crtboo
Monoxid.
DGtcctor!

30. Buycd.
Homc
Irrpccdor
Acklow-
lcd3116cnt

31. Warteadcr
.!d
Rcprcrcntr-
tioa
Achow-
lcd8rracor

32. Timc;
Condruc-
tion ot
AgtccEGot

DigiSign Verifi ed . 67 8c1442-bcAb4ed't -899e43b89506003

contormhg to the toregoing provisions wllhln thEc (3) bu!lnslE d.yr ol lho 619nlng ofthi Purchrlo rnd Srlo
AgrGcment and ac'ted promptly in providing eny addilion8l intormatlon requested by the morlgage l€ndor.



33. Noticc Unless othorwi!€ stipulated hGrein, any nolice roqulrsd to bo given in lhir rgraenEnt lhallbs ln tYrting 8nd 8hall be

deemed to be duly given whsn d6ltverod to lhe party ontitl€d to such notico al thelr eddro$ 86t btth herein.

Addendum Addendum B_

The psrlieB sclnorrledg€ roceipt ol:

E MA Llcansee-Consumer (Ag.ncy) Dlsdo8ur€ E Envlronmontel Disclo6uros

El L€8d Palnt Pmper9 Notificetlon cedilicadon fl s"[e,'g ststemsnt ol Properly condillon

flOosignat6d Agcnt ConsenUNotification (if spplicau€) El Dusl Agont ConssnuNotlficatlon 0f spplicsble)

'1. Sollar wlll obttln 8 Cartlflclta ot Occupancy .nd Ssptlc Cutlflclt. of Complhnco Ptlor to
closlng.

2. Bulldrrt wlrtanty lt to bc convoysd to tho Buyel! .t tte tlm3 ol clo8lng'

A faxcd eignetute on thb documcnt rhdl hrve t$e remc cfrcct 83 dcuvcry ofe signcd originel. The petty fexlng thir
documclt rgrccs to meil ot dclivct thc otigiad fottbwith.

NOTICE: This ie a lcgal docutrcnt that clcrtcs binding obligrtione, If not undetotood, coneult an ettorney.

) 6 t Aeei',. C.,,L' o6/ 2L /2023

Arron T. Glngret
SELLER

Dato C.th.rlnG Conlon
BT'YER

Drte

DBtB

AUe* 06121/2023

SELLER Dale

Prgc 5 ol5

Digisign Varifi sd . 67 8c,442$cAb{,edl-899e-43b8958f6004

34. Additiooal
Ptovieions

Th€ Inllialed dders attached hereto, if 8ny, ar€ inclrporated horein by relerence.

Colla.n Ormaby
EUYER



Addendum A
TO PURCIIASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

1. Thls Addendum supersedes, modlfles, amends and is hereby lncorporated lnto the Standard Form Purchase and Sale

Agreement between SELTER and BUYER; ln the event of any confllct between thls Addendum and the sald Standard Form

Pu.chase and Sale Agreement, the terms ot thls Addendum shall control,

2. Upon the request of the attorn€y for gUYER, SEI-tER shall execute and deliver slmultaneoush wlth the dellvery of the deed,

and when required shall on oath swear to the truth ofthe maners thereln set forth, such documents as mav reasonably be

requlred by sald attorney, even lf the same occurs POST-CLOSING, includlng but not llmited to cenificatlons or atfldavlts

wlth respect to: (a) persons or partles in posse5sion of the premises; (b) facts or conditions whlch may Slve rlse to

mechanic's or materlalmen's llens; (c) the true pu.chas€ prlce of the premlses and whether the SELL€R has or lntends to

lend lo the BUYER a po.tlon thereof; (d) the absence of urea formaldehyde on the premlses; and (e) Smoke Detector

Certiflcate, (0 that SEtLER is not a foreign person subjeci to the withholdlnB provlslons ofthe Deflclt Reductlon Act of 1984

(FtRPTA), (g) IRS forms, (h) revlsed Closlng Dlsclosure/s, (l) any orher form reasonably requlred by Buyer's attomey.

3. StLt ER shall cooperate wlth the SUYER by allowlnt entry upon the premlses and the bulldlnSs construct€d thereon, at

reasonable times by an englneer or land surveyor for the purpose of plottlng bounds and taklng measurementr. BUYER and

thelr representatlves (1.e. archltects and contractors) shall have access to the preml5e5 lor the purposes of taklnS

measurements, and the like, at reasonable tlmes, with prior notlce to SELTER and ln the presenc€ of SELLER or SELLER'S

AGENT.

4. ENCROACHMENTS: lt ls undelstood and aBreed by the partles that the subject premises rhall not be ln conformity wlth the
provlslons of thls Agreement unless:

A. All buildlnBs, structures and lmproveflents lncludln& but not llmited to, any driveways, SaraSes and septlc

systems and cesspools and all means of access to the subject prembes shall be located completely wlthln the
boundary lines of the sald premlses and shall not encroach upon or under the property of any other p€rson or
entltles.

B. No buildlngs, structures or improvements of any klnd belon8ing to any other person or entlty shall €ncroach

uPon or under sald Premises.

C. Title to the premlses is lnsurable, for the benefit of the Buyer, ln a fe€ owne/s pollcy of tltle lnsurance, at
normal premium rates, wlthout exception other than the staodard prlnted "lacket" exceptions contalned ln
the Amerlcan Land Tltle Assoclation form curently ln use and tho5e exceptlons set forth ln ParaSraph 4 ofthls
Agreement. lt ls aSreed that in the event of a tltle mafter for whlch a title lnsurance company ls wllllng to lrsue

so-called "affirmative coverage' over a known defect or problem, EUYERS may elect to acc€pt same but shall

nol be required to do 50, and shall have the ri8ht, at the option of their counsel, to deem tltle to the premlses

unacceptable or unmarketable and to termlnate thls Agreement.

O. The premls€s are legally subdlvlded and separated from all other lotr pursuant to the provlsions of the
Subdlvlslon controllaw, M.G.L.A. c. 41;

The subrecl premlses abut or has access to a duly accepted publlc way, by the clty or town, or legal and

recorded access vla a prlvate way to a publlc way, ln whlch sald ptemlses are located.

5. Seller states that:
A, Seller has no knowledge of damage to the premlses by lnvaslon ofllood, surface or tldalwaters; and
g. No wrltten or oral notlce or communlcatlon has been recetved by Seller from any publlc authorlty that (U the

propeny is not roned for lts present use; or (il) thst there exlsB wlth respect to the propertY any condltlon

whlch vlolates anyrederal, state or local envlronmental, sanltary, heahh or safety statute, ordinanc€, code, by-

law, rule or regulatlon whlch has not heretofore been rectlfed ol lr in the process of belnS tectlfled.

E

Addendum A, Page 1

' Digisign Verified - 67 8c1442-bc4b4ed1 -899e{3b8958r6003



' Digisign vsriried - 67 8cf442-bo4b4ed1-899s-43b8958f6003

fi sEtLER represents, to the best of their knowledSe, to the BUYER that the stLLER has nevel disposed of any hazardous walte

or materlal lexcludln8 ordinary household waste) on or about the premises du.ln8 th€ period of sEl'LER's ownelship, and

that the Seller ls not aware of the dlsposal of such waste on or about the premlsei by anyone else durln8 sald perlod of

ownershlp. SELLER also reprerents, to the best of thelr knowledge, that SEUER has not placed, and 5E[LER is not aware of

any placement bY others, of underground storaSe tanks on the premlses.

coNTtNUATtON OF PARAGRAPH 9 (Condltlon oI Premtses) SELLER shatl dellver all dgell!8-l!!L jallLglg-lIga: of the

premlses broom clean, includin& but not llmited to closets and, lf apPlicable, the basement and Sarage ln broom clean

condition and free of personal propertv (not included ln the sate) and debrls. The sELLER shall deliver all other areas of the

premlses, including but not limited to closets, the attlc, basement, cra$/l spaces, shed(s) and garage and the grounds free of

debrls, bu dtng miterials such as lumber, in5ulation, and the like, palnts, solvenE, chemlcals, and personal property (unless

an ltem ls specjflcallv Included in the sale). SELLER shall deliver all flxturet appllances, heatlnS, plumbinS and ele.trlcal

systems, and personal property owned by the sEttER included ln the sale ln the same wolking order that they were at the

tlme of the Offer to purchase, minus reasonable wear and tear. At th€ closln& SEILER a8rees to dellver to BUYER all ke}s

and electronlc garage door openers, lf any, for the Premlses, and all manuftcturer's warranties ln SETUR'S possesslon fot

the appllances conveyed hereunder.

To lnrurG the property condltlon ls ln compllance wlth paragraph 9 ofthe purch.se and Salc! Aireementi

a. Buyer shall have the opflon to conduct a "pre.closln8 walk through" not later than 10-14 daYS prlor to closlng AND

b, Buyer shall have the optlon to condust a so-called 'finalwalk through" wlthln 48 hours prlor to closlnS.

Clause 10 shall further state Shls Paragraph shall be construed to apply to matters affectinS title, the physical condltlon of

the premlses and compllance of the Premlses with munlcipal, countY, state or federal codes, ordlnances, statutes or

regula ons conc€rnlng the premlses and to which the premlses are subject under the terms of this agreement. Thls

paragraph shall not, however, be construed to excuse SEIIER from vacating the premlses at the tlme set for performance

hereunder for reasons such as unrvallabillty of movers, Inconvenience or other such delays in performance hereunder."

1

8.

9. Any matter or practlce ariilng under or relating to this Agreement whldr 15 the sublect of a practlce standard of the

Massachusetts Real Estate Bar Assoclation shall be Boverned by such st ndard to the extent applicable and lf not

supeEeded bY subsequent case law.

10. E&gqIgD_elpCCd: ln the event that SELLER is a natural person, SEU.ER shall execute the deed personally; it is a8reed that a

deed executed under a power of Attorney shall not constltute a satisfactory deed under Paragraph 4. Any spouse of the

selhr must also oecxte thedeed.

11. pEBUlIllgQ_AppBoya!5. SELTER represents that any and all lmprovements and/or renovatlons completed or

commenced durlng SCLLER'5 ownershlp of the premlses have been completed pursuant to duly lssued and approved

permlts.

12, tf the premlses are affected by an Order of Condltlon5 lssued by the Conservatlon Commission for the Town In whlch the

premlses are sltuated SELLER shall provlde BUYER or lende/s counsel with a certlficate of compllance for sald Order of

Condltlons Prlor to closlnS.

13. lf there shall be a fire on said premlses at any time prlor to the closlng hereunder causlng damage ln excess of S5,000.00,

thm and ln that event, at BUyER's option, any payments made under thls Agreement shall be forthwith refunded and all

other obllgations of all partles hereto shall cease and this Agreement shall be vold and whhout re.ourse to the parties

h€reto,

14, Notwlthstandlng anythlnS else In thls Agreement to the contrary, sELLER r€presents that, as of the date of thls AEreement

and the date ofthe delivery o{ the deed:

A. there are no contracts, oral or written, lnvolvlng the Premlses which SELTER has neSotiated or contracted or whlch

wlll be blndlng upon BUYER ot affect the Premlses In any manner after the closin8, except for those contracts

expres5ly permltted by thls Agreement;

Addendum A, Page 2



DigiSign Verifi ed - 67 8cl4 42-bcAb4 ed1-899e-43b895816003

SELIER is not a "forelgn pelson" as that term is used in lnternal Revenue Code Section 1445 and the reBulations

promulSated thereunder, and accordinSly BUYER ls not required to rvithhold any taxes upon the dlspositlon of the

Premises to the gUYER;

SELLER represents, to the best of thel. knowl€d8e that there It no pendln8 SELLER bankruptcy, mortgage

foreclosure, contemplated town/clty betterment or assessment, or other proceedlnSs or circumstances that mlSht

lmpact adversely on the SELLEtrs abllity to perform on the cioslnE date, and that the mortgage and other llen

payoffs will be for less than the sales ptlce.

SELLER warrants and represents to BUYER that they are not aware ol any litiSation pending or threatened

regardlng the property, elther by a Tenant or anyone else. Thls paragraph shallsurvive the dellvery ofthe Deed.

SEt-LER owns the personalty and linures desclbed ln Sedion 3 ofthis A8reement free of any lien or encumbrance

15. Th€ SELTER and the BUYER each represent to the other that they have not dealt wlth any real estate broker in connectlon

wlth thls transaction, nor were they directed to each other a5 a result ol any servlces or facllitles of any real estale broker

except the Erokers set forth herein. The SEtLER and SUYER agree to lndemnlfy and hold the other harmless from any loss,

damage, cost (lncludlng without llmltation, anomeys' fees) or liablllty whlch either partY may incur as a consequence ol any

clalms tor a commisslon or fee arislnS from thls transactlon asserted against either party by any broker, other than the

broker named herein, wlth whom either party has dealt. Thls paragraph shall survlve dellvery of the deed.

16. All rlsk of loss shall stay wlth the SELLER until the recordin8 of the deed.

17. ln the event that the SETLER needs to etend tlme for performanc€ ln compllance wlth thls i,Sreement, and the EUYER'S

mortgage rate lock rxill explre before the SEILER can perform, the BUYER shall have the optlon to temlnate this Agreement

unless the SELLER agrees to pay any co5ts ofthe BUYER, charged by the Lender, related to th€ rate lock extenslon.

18. Dillgent efforts under the mortgage contlntency provhlon of the Agreement shall mean applying to one bank or mortga8e

company only. ln no event shall buyer be required to applv to more thsn one bank or mortga8e company, Where the word

'commltment' ls used, lt shall be detlned to mean a firm written commltment without conditions beyond Buye/s control to
obtaln or aclompllsh withln 3 buslness days. SELLER a8rees to cooperate wlth BUYER ln etecutln8 any forms required by
gUYtR'S lender so lonS as same do not lmpose any additional liabillty or flnanclal obllgadon on the SEI-I€R othel than as sel

forth ln thls agreement.

19. All notlces requlred or permltted to be glven hereunder shall be ln wrltlnB and dellvered by hand, by certi{ied mail, postaSe

prepald, return recelpt lequested, by express courler servlce or by facsimile transmlsslon, to the partles:

(A)&-eug&t-e&rnrE F) to SELLER'' ottomcv:
StaceyA, Curley, Esqulre Willlam D. Crowell, Esqulre

Law Offlces of Paul R. Tardlf, Esq., P.c. 456 Maln Street, P.o. Bor 185

490 Maln Street Harwldr Port, MA 02645

Yarmouth Port, MA 02675 508.432.1543/ fax 508.430.0631

508.362.7799/ fax 508.352.7199 wcrowell.office2@comcart.net
sordey@tardlflaw.com

20.:Thlsag'eement|scontin8entupontheselle.
provldlng to the Buyer not later than 14 days prlor to dosin& a copy of an lnspectlon report, lncludlng a C€rtmcatlon

Stitement slgned by an approved system lnspector of the on-slte subsurfice dlsposal system ln accordance wlth the

tequlrement5 of T]tle 5 of Massachusetts Environmental Code and munldpal board of health re8ulations, lf appllcable. lf
the Certiflc.tlon states that the on-slte subsurface sewaBe dlsposal syslem does not pass or condltlonal passes as descrlbed

tn 310 CMR 15.303 as amended, or municlpal certlflcatlon, lf appllcable 15 denled, the Buyer shall have the option to revoke

this Agreemenl by provldlng wrltten notlce to the seller, at whlch tlme all deporlts made by the Buyer to the Seller shall be

r€funded forthwlth, and thls agreement shall terminate wlthout further recourse; unless the seller agrees In wrltlng to
repalr, upgrade or replace sald subEurface sewage dlsposal system In a manner sufflclent to obtaln an lstulnS Tltle 5

B

c

D

E

Addendum A, Page 3



Dlgisign Vsrified - 67 8cl4424o4b4ed1-899e{3b8958f6003

certirication and municipal certification prlor to the date set tor dosin& which shall include te-grddin& loaminB and seeding

of the aflecled areas and repairs for damaSe to palios, walkwal6, driveways and irrlgation systems.

21. Seller represents that the sales proceeds from these premlses will be sufficient to fulty pay ofl and/or dlscharge all

mortgaBe(s), UCC Flnancin8 Statements, construction loans and/or equtty llne(s) of record. Seller a8rees to fully and

promptly dlsclose to Buyer's attorney and/or guye/s Lende/s attorney modgage payoff information for all mort8a8es of
record, includlng but not limited to: (l) lender name(s), address{es) and phone numberls}; (ll) mortSa8e account number(s);

and lili) Sellers'social security numbels.

22. 8y executlng this Agre€ment, the gUYER and the STLLER hereby grant to their atto.neys the actual authority to blnd them

lor the sole llmited purpose of allowing them to Brant extensions for any paragraphs in this Agreement, and the S€LLER and

the EUYER shall be able to r€ly upon the slgnatures of sald attorneys as blndlnS unless they have actual knowledge that the
princlpals have disclaimed the authority STanted herein to blnd them.

23. Prlor to closin& the SELLER shall malntaln and service the premises and iti appurterancei at the same level of effon and

expense as the SELLER has malntalned or seNic€d the premlses for the SELLER'S own account prlor to the date of thls

Agreemenl,

24. Thls Ageement may be executed ln multiple counterpartj, by €lectronlc docu-slgn technology, and may inltially b€

executed by fa6lmll€ signatu.e with an ori8inal slgnature io follow, and as so executed shall constltut€ one document.

26. ln th€ arent that an assessment or betterment ls levled agalnst the property prlor to closln6 and the same changes the
buye/s debt to lncome ratlo or APR as applicable, buyer rhallhavethe optlon to terminate this agreement with a refund of
alldeposlts.

27. The Buyer and Seller hereby acknowledge that they have been lnformed that the guyer's attorney of the liw Offfcer of Paul R.

Tardf, Esq., PC, may be asked to provide legal services on behalf of the mortSage lender for the monga8e loan closlng, ln
addition to the reprEentatlon of the Suyer ln this agreement or transaction, and that the Euyer and Seller have no objed'lon to
and consent to thls dual representatlon.

2E. REATTOR/SROXER UCELSE DTSCLOSURE:

re. rfMEur{E DrsclosunE: Or'L\t ^'" 
t ' /t"-

Buyer and teller hereunder acknowledge that under the new CfPB regulatlons, there are cenain tim€lines that must be
adhered to ln order to close tlmely. ln the event that a new dlsclosure ls requlred or flgurc change or a material te.m o,
the deal changes prlor to closln& the partles hereby agree and acknowledge thatthe closlng date contemplated in that
certaln purchase and rales agreement hereunder may be extended up to 10 (ten) buslners daw.

30. EIICTROI{IC TRAllSMlSSlOt{ AUTIiORIZATIO!{: gy execution of thlr aBte€men! the buyer(s) speclflcally authort.e thelr
mongaSe lender to provide ANY and ALL dlsclosures requlred under CFPB to buyer by rlectronlc transfer whldt lncludes

LISTING AGEIIIT BUYER'S AGENT

NAME: A trrry Ann Politi
MA TICENSE NUMBER t tY//.t - 9558{?2
COMPANY NAME Gibron goth€bv!
COMPANY IICENSE NUMBER "i6t tl .Lbt L

ADDRESS and PHONE i c -oa9:rrJl)lu
EMAIT ADDRESS I

E.yaEr.IpuE:!groloDl:,r. c@

at,t;rdu,/';la,t ;'-

Addendum A, Page 4

25. Bamstable Countv Seotlc Loan: Sell€r represents that they have not taken out a Barnstable c-ounty Septic Loan, whether or
not the same has been r€corded at the regirtry of deeds. lf seller has obtalned a BcSl" seller shall obtaln a payoff for the
same and provlde to closing attorney prbr to closing.

ot" 3 \rL-l

n'tilt



Digisign Verified - ce4bfl25-afof4fa2-947c-c41 d3a 1 de6e5
' DigiSign Veriri€d - 67Bd442-bc4b4od1{99s-43b8958f6003

SEtTER Date

Cadrenia Ca^/o-

email and or e-fax transmission wlth receipt confirmation, as permissible undet the law. (note, your lender moy rcqulrc

oddtttonot cgnsent documents for ehctronic troosmissionl

a. Buyers preferred emailaddress:

b. Euyers preferred e'far number: 

-

31. AUTHOREAnON TO RETEASE MOTTGAGE OOMMITMET{T: By exe@don qf this a8reement, the buyer spe€lficallY

authorlzes their mortgage lender to seod a copy ol their mortgage commitmer letter to buye/r attornry/counsel gX!X.

Mortgage commltment letters are specifically prohlblred from being sent lo any other party to the transaction unless

authorized by buye/s attorney h writinS.

WITNEss our hands and seal\

-22-2 )
BUYER

ceteeil4

SUYER

Date

Date

AddeDdum A, Page 5

32. AUTHORIZAnON TO RETTAS€ CLOSI{G DISCI.OSURE TO AIl. PAmES rO THE TRANSACnON; By execution ol thls

agreement, the buyer and seller hereunder spedflcally authorl.e the lender, and/or settlement agent to release a siSned

copy of the Closlng Dlsclosure and/or Settlement Statement to the herein named realtors/brokers and/or thelr agents.



t

tz'rrt?Es-
EAFI Nor I

AN AN
€Ftr6tC11T* ttFF r c r Ari
,ar.*ra*t-HCOPY EOPY

Nol" NOT
AN

AT
tr OP

I

$,
li

NOT
,, AN

:fftCI

t

D,a*.*-t

C

C

it

il
tl

I
I

I:I

,
I!

JJ

?t
i
T

/
lllirEll PLlltttIE /,nO
,PPphtL //ol R ?ulnlo

#4w
tdrtktttun---i
.r4 --,.t-. ad4r.. *
b' 4na4,.-4-
.r*.tdbq
tdtuu*tu-ba. * tu t-.#1-,4 ?-:* -
tut1r.&

s

q..bd

tu ,r) /t, ,ot.

4?402

.orr r cIAr,
'copv

llffiiu**y
AN

uor
AN

CqPY.

NOT .
AN

EFICIAL
COPY

^NO1
AN AN

fIcI

NOT

eI OEF I C1

OT

.AN

E

P

NOT
AN

OEE ICI OFE ICIAL
Y

)
T NOT

AN AN
OFF ICIALo ICI

COPY PY

b.t
OF II

IY

NOT
AN

, OEE ]
coP COPY

NOT
AN

NOT-AN
OFFICIALL IAL

I

t

w
*, i4'$;s

NOT



I
6
i\d
480

ti\
e\r

e

: "8i i.
i i l:

-! ia- -

5ri :iiiE
!.! tll96
!:! iieie
!l$ isi$r

s{{iii{J,lJ,l

ls;il;il;lii:t:i!I:h::r

:- !t!!s !!ilE

:!
!g
-!

ii

Ie!

bF

It

tB
E.
i.i
Ei
!a

$i

i

I

t
il
Et
E.

EI
6

e

:
SE

(J "9
A r:i
- iaqur'81
3i:i

t\
t\

S

r-3os

1,

\

8

I
E

E

irlt
:i

irrii

a,ii{

T

:

t
!..

ip
II

rl
8!ri

't

s
;.

3I
Ii

9

!rll
llis:ii!:i!*

lEtr!r
il:i3

l.:
E!tt

,;lil
t--..i
!li.js
IETO-ri:PI
tr-::iba;-

L.:I!ilrl.l !:

itlr

*'!!I5,at

;E{!
!t!;rll:

.ti
\r:
irs
;XE
lel
c-*
lea

itetu.
!Eir

-e6,.!8.y
"ta'
:r!ritr!
:ll-'

t!
-J
lJ-
oq
o-

:ll
!r ;1;ll

!
i

t!8:

II
I
F

t
:
I
T

at
!t:
iE
t;ti
rI
.t.-!r
t9n

i$i
i .trn

h-r
t- !L

r-:!.

s
e

{I
s

,i

$

3

3

E

I
!
t

I

!

Isi
et*iir
!-olIrS
li;!
!E:*
Itle:lr:

!.
"-8
iSt
IEh
9ir;

!i-:ilrdE
6_;r

si:!

4., y

Ir trr
F-
o
=
'J

o-

s
5
U

{!
I

'ii

\

iirr
:g

o:i
!: tta

i!tlir

!i ii'

!r
\

I t:
lr"
ttl

t
3

R

El)

2-<$.q

!t

R



I
I

(
(
0

i0
tl.r(

Is(
0"'m
i$H
((-

I.o

q

I(l-ol
}N

,:
o.o
o ao

o]
o

Irli
uIi
:Pi

, p lli*ll€r lrtpi6E
Ei!;titE$itg

iul
30.oil

ZP
({
Jo

tln
0d

o

lo.(i
J
0.I

IIul
Fo
-Y
o6

0

\

(/)

(
(
I

!+"ii.i+iiiq

(
octz
.LJ
TI

0-
qLJ
it-
; (/)

:
!(
<{

l
z(
')

\

e z
0
t
(
(

o

o
d

J

-a
I
!
t

!
I
!!

9-
oe.

'\'
'!f

+r-
o

"oI

Oi

'-lo

!
lei:
ria'4.

,t
(59-.

!
d
s

i".'.

I
t

\s\
.s\

3

,EI
;

EI

'l

u

I

!
3
B



 
 

Recommenda on to the Select Board from Housing Advocate 

RE: No ce of Intent to Sell, 17 Woody Glen Road, Harwich 

 

Due to this land being assessed/taxed as agricultural/hor cultural land by the Town of Harwich (referred 

to here as “the Town”), and that MGL 61A Sec 14 applies, I would agree with A orney William Crowell, 

that the Town does have the Right of First Refusal per MGL 61A Sec on 14, and as there is a buyer, the 

purchase price is set by the Purchase and Sales Agreement ($849,000). Please see a achment of MGL 

61A Sec on 14 for reference.  

 

The property on Land Court Map 4340‐B Lot 1 and the Harwich Assessor’s map is shown below. Since 

the property is already developed, there are wetlands, and the price is $849,000, it would be costly to 

create affordable housing on the site. If the Town wanted to pursue the home and resell it as an 

affordable unit, the buydown would be $600,000 (Town funds), which would result in an affordable price 

for an affordable buyer of $250,000. If the Town chooses to purchase the property with the intent of 

crea ng an affordable unit, there would be an aggressive  meline to get such done.  

 

Assessors Map: 

 

 



 
 

Land Court Map:  

\ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



 
 

Image of Building on Property: 

 



Drainage 
Pipe ' 

SUBDIVISION PLAN OF LAND IN HARWICH 

Ryder & Wilcox, Inc., Surveyors 

4 - - July 17, 2018 
Sv, - 

, 6 doh. 
',4‘+ 9 6). Ca 

2 
':/' loc •„ • '5Z-5-zt- i) .' OD. ( s 

S8379' 6S, ''''/o.,- ="-----..-",:.',... 
' 8.64 \ S‘9,97..,41z• -?-"-9%r,„. 

se • ? lz,  

=27.67= A9/  - 2.26:9 ` t /(o / ,  ' - 
1\ J41,/ eys, _ ,' - ---",,,---- ,....' ,./...:;,//1,c'h - '26.57 , 

/'. 

..1e,_ 
"'" S88'4071"W ,9Lr„,,,,c,as.. -1, ".  'i-C ),;s\ ,,e 1 50624'

2.8, ; 

66.60 ,sz,,, 00' , i,-..„..„, s 

Se/.., <'.., 11" ,---
.. DETAIL A ,-,P40-,,b-,s_, , '8.36 1
, 

'7 Scale:1"=150' ii" 19.31 S41196'12"W , 
1 S5853'.39"W 

43402 5

Op. •00 

DETAIL B 
Not to Scale 

2 

....-- N55. N og 

Drive : , 1
1 N6.9'40',34"E 

,•? 
Aaron T Gingras i

I 

Aaron T Gingras Dirt 
,,,... -,',,5 and Deborah ,I. 

'': 6-5  
Gingros 

,-,..,_ ,,,,,o,.., ,-Dirt Drive 
geE 

1„-;  ,67.17 ..,4.6.

,Y,9,-.3.,. 0 2., 21.04.0...51.------- --,-  7

Hall, et al 
Peter C. 

--,,,,,,, 0- .... N40'49'19"E 2I-' z .-

.55
, 
5--

63.53. x --- -1,--;;%=k--- ' s'•O'<" - ---,--s- -1; 76 ‘, 9 

ts.,55v8,291_%.1z,.....6.6_.v.00_, _1,......,03„.,° ...±..... ...-,.,,z,..T.:;., ,..,,,,.::6111 , : r....7 .,5'.1°  __°_0; :.._:...1.7__:_----\- ---:: ,94--1 38.6'0:1 cl : , f. 
2,-e----- r , , ;' 97 . ---- 21' 61 '31° 21' .0' .9.,,. 89. , N4 „,.. i t4 col. 

__ _.„....1-1.0 20 t. ;, ---..,./..„..." ... ,,, N58'56" s 34 , 70,-
A, ,, 1442.34951.69:„ , • IO, _ , , 30"E A-30'1 ..------\ A

.. 
( , 

Y 
- 

1r) ''' 4  \-'.̀1' r . 1 
1 ,R 0 A --D,(8.00 Wide)-' oi '6-

. 0)o, V ,• .41sicldsle Line u t , i,  t 

e) N 
I 

Nt. 
:i. A 

669 
..56 g-' 

oei Dil \<') 0 '‘,' (0 
E ' ,,,,,, W i ' () 4 ' ,) N\  0) sernent (16.-

'I' 
k0 y1k0 q6 

4\'‘)

/ / 
S aar 

C,$ 

C?- .226.09 •05,-
. .„\k r. ..51)\

e ,>, ,R.. 
<co , / -'i - ,, c. (-N o 

)'  i -- ePCs L v\" 
6, e` doe 7 A. 0,0 J 4.0 0 4V0 0 e v 6, „§ 6-co 

Robert B. 4 
Thompson 0 0

and Cynthia H. 0 , j_ 
Thompson 

C(1-.." s...4.. -k-
o c''''°- , 'fb ,,,,,„ --c.„ 

-̀ 1! <- `''', • 
,,, ,i,' 

0,..,,,, ,,

Richard A. Cane, Jr. 
and 

Jean C. Sullivan 

ei 
N.ss.•., '5..'..,

0 I/ "'''''' 
(1,4) .,... Ian L. .-. 

Barker •\ <,.. 
0.\ 

fry 
1 ----'' 

//- ;0 0Oe
.." 1 i' 0 
0C? ..  A 

. tt cpe °F..
.57,,, ;5_,  '6'15.54-

• 4 4' 4.13 W

-Drainage 
Noe 

-"Co d.h. 
C.B. 

548 

Subdivision of Land 
Shown on Plan 43402-A 
Filed with Cert. of Title No. 216698 
Registry District of Barnstable County 

Separate certificates of title may be issued for land 
shown hereon as Lots 1 and 2 
By the Court. 

September 4, 2018 

SJK-OCHK 

0,"1

Recorder 

ui I 

o no 12. 

Q• 

c h 

„ - - 

H.R.B. 

O 

I <",-..ro  .s, 
0 z.„,N.

"P .00 d'a 
C.B. 
d.h.? 

p.
CO 
93* 

0 1,6 
o ; (1/ 4 ) 4) ) a) ii cd. sh..0.,t,10. cb „.., hR:). , DETAIL C `, 

.c 1 .'- 0'
.00,00,0 .54

414.1 

d.4 

13' 

n.C.B. 

'1' 

.5.1y 
"5.5.

48.

, 

1 

Scole:1"=150' 

88 
0 H.R.B. • - 

3 
0.0° -- -  Abutters are shown as 

R' on original decree plan. _ 

Copy of port of plan 
— filed in —

LAND REGISTRATION OFFICE 
Sept. 4, 2018 

Scale of this plon200 feet to on inch 
Stephen r LoMonico, Engineer for Court ;t 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

Part I 

Title IX 

ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT 

TAXATION 

Chapter 61A ASSESSMENT AND TAXATION OF AGRICULTURAL AND 

HORTICULTURAL LAND 

Section 14 SALE FOR OR CONVERSION TO RESIDENTIAL OR 

COMMERCIAL USE; NOTICE OF INTENT TO CITY OR TOWN; 

OPTION TO PURCHASE; ASSIGNMENT OF OPTION 

[Section impacted by 2020, 53, Sec. 9 effective April 3, 2020 relating to 

the suspension of all time periods within which any municipality is 

required to act, respond, effectuate or exercise an option to purchase in 

order to address disruptions caused by the outbreak of COVID-19] 

Section 14. Land taxed under this chapter shall not be sold for, or 

converted to, residential, industrial or commercial use while so taxed or 

within 1 year after that time unless the city or town in which the land is 

located has been notified of the intent to sell for, or to convert to, that 

other use. 

The discontinuance of agricultural or horticultural use shall not, in itself, 

for the purposes of this section, be considered a conversion. Specific use 

of land for a residence for the owner, the owner's spouse or a parent, 

grandparent, child, grandchild, or brother or sister of the owner, or 

surviving husband or wife of any deceased such relative, or for living 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 1/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

quarters for any persons actively employed full-time in the agricultural or 

horticultural use of such land, shall not be a conversion for the purposes 

of this section, and a certificate of the board of assessors, recorded with 

the registry of deeds, shall conclusively establish that particular use. 

Any notice of intent to sell for other use shall be accompanied by a 

statement of intent to sell, a statement of proposed use of the land, the 

location and acreage of land as shown on a map drawn at the scale of the 

assessors map in the city or town in which the land is situated, and the 

name, address and telephone number of the landowner. 

Any notice of intent to sell for other use shall be accompanied by a 

certified copy of an executed purchase and sale agreement specifying the 

purchase price and all terms and conditions of the proposed sale, which is 

limited to only the property classified under this chapter, and which shall 

be a bona fide offer as described below. 

Any notice of intent to sell for other use shall also be accompanied by 

any additional agreements or a statement of any additional consideration 

for any contiguous land under the same ownership, and not classified 

under this chapter, but sold or to be sold contemporaneously with the 

proposed sale. 

For the purposes of this chapter, a bona fide offer to purchase shall 

mean a good faith offer, not dependent upon potential changes to current 

zoning or conditions or contingencies relating to the potential for, or the 

potential extent of, subdivision of the property for residential use or the 

potential for, or the potential extent of development of the property for 

industrial or commercial use, made by a party unaffiliated with the 

landowner for a fixed consideration payable upon delivery of the deed. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 2/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

Any notice of intent to convert to other use shall be accompanied by a 

statement of intent to convert, a statement of proposed use of the land, the 

location and acreage of land as shown on a map drawn at the scale of the 

assessors map in the city or town in which the land is situated, the name, 

address and telephone number of the landowner and the landowner's 

attorney, if any. 

The notice of intent to sell or convert shall be sent by the landowner by 

certified mail or hand delivered to the mayor and city council of a city, or 

board of selectmen of a town, and in the case of either a city or a town, to 

its board of assessors, to its planning board and conservation 

commission, if any, and to the state forester. 

A notarized affidavit that the landowner has mailed or delivered a notice 

of intent to sell or convert shall be conclusive evidence that the 

landowner has mailed the notice in the manner and at the time specified. 

Each affidavit shall have attached to it a copy of the notice of intent to 

which it relates. 

The notice of intent to sell or convert shall be considered to have been 

duly mailed if addressed to the mayor and city council or board of 

selectmen in care of the city or town clerk; to the planning board and 

conservation commission if addressed to them directly; to the state 

forester if addressed to the commissioner of the depai talent of 

conservation and recreation; and to the assessors if addressed to them 

directly. 

If the notice of intent to sell or convert does not contain all of the 

material described above, then the town or city, within 30 days after 

receipt, shall notify the landowner in writing that notice is insufficient 

and does not comply. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 3/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law- Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

For a period of 120 days after the day following the latest date of 

deposit in the United States mail of any notice which complies with this 

section, the city or town shall have, in the case of intended sale, a first 

refusal option to meet a bona fide off er to purchase the land. 

In the case of intended or determined conversion not involving sale, the 

municipality shall have an option to purchase the land at full and fair 

market value to be determined by an impartial appraisal performed by a 

certified appraiser hired at the expense of the municipality or its assignee, 

the original appraisal to be completed and delivered to the landowner 

within 30 days after the notice of conversion to the municipality. In the 

event that the landowner is dissatisfied with the original appraisal, the 

landowner may, at the landowner's expense, contract for a second 

appraisal, to be completed within 60 days after the delivery of the notice 

to convert. If, after completion of the second appraisal, the parties cannot 

agree on a consideration, the parties will contract with a mutually 

acceptable appraiser for a third appraisal whose cost will be borne 

equally by both parties. The third appraisal shall be delivered to both 

parties within 90 days after the notice of conversion to the municipality 

and shall be the final determination of consideration. Upon agreement of 

a consideration, the city or town shall then have 120 days to exercise its 

option. During the appraisal process, the landowner may revoke the 

intent to convert at any time and with no recourse to either party. 

The option may be exercised only after a public hearing followed by 

written notice signed by the mayor or board of selectmen, mailed to the 

landowner by certified mail at the address that is specified in the notice of 

intent. Notice of public hearing shall be given in accordance with section 

23B of chapter 39. 

https:ffmalegislature.gov/Laws/Generallaws/ Partl/TitlelX/Chapter61 A/Section 14 4/8 

bnickerson
Highlight

bnickerson
Highlight



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

The notice of exercise shall also be recorded at the registry of deeds and 

shall contain the name of the record owner of the land and description of 

the premises adequate for identification of them. 

The notice to the landowner of the city or town's election to exercise its 

option shall be accompanied by a proposed purchase and sale contract or 

other agreement between the city or town and the landowner which, if 

executed, shall be fulfilled within a period of not more than 90 days after 

the date the contract or agreement, endorsed by the landowner, is 

returned by certified mail to the mayor or board of selectmen, or upon 

expiration of any extended period that the landowner has agreed to in 

writing, whichever is later. 

At the public hearing or a further public hearing, the city or town may 

assign its option to a nonprofit conservation organization or to the 

commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions under the terms and 

conditions that the mayor or board of selectmen may consider 

appropriate. Notice of public hearing shall be given in accordance with 

section 23B of chapter 39. 

[ Eighteenth paragraph effective until November 10, 2022. For text 

effective November 10, 2022, see below.] 

The assignment shall be for the purpose of maintaining no less than 70 

per cent of the land in use as forest land as defined in section 1, as 

agricultural and horticultural land as defined in sections 1 and 2 of 

chapter 61A or as recreation land as defined in section 1 of chapter 61B, 

and in no case shall the assignee develop a greater proportion of the land 

than was proposed by the developer whose offer gave rise to the 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 5/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

assignment. All land other than land that is to be developed shall then be 

bound by a permanent deed restriction that meets the requirements of 

chapter 184. 

[ Eighteenth paragraph as amended by 2022, 268, Sec. 95 effective 

November 10, 2022. For text effective until November 10, 2022, see 

above.] 

The assignment shall be for the purpose of maintaining not less than 70 

per cent of the land in use as forest land as defined in section 1 of chapter 

61, as land in agricultural or horticultural use as defined in sections 1 and 

2 or as recreational land as defined in section 1 of chapter 61B, and in no 

case shall the assignee develop a greater proportion of the land than was 

proposed by the developer whose offer gave rise to the assignment. All 

land other than land that is to be developed shall then be bound by a 

permanent deed restriction that meets the requirements of chapter 184. 

If the first refusal option has been assigned to a nonprofit conservation 

organization or to the commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions 

as provided in this section, the mayor or board of selectmen shall provide 

written notice of assignment to the landowner. 

The notice of assignment shall state the name and address of the 

organization or agency of the commonwealth which will exercise the 

option in addition to the terms and conditions of the assignment. The 

notice of assignment shall be recorded with the registry of deeds. 

Failure to record either the notice of exercise or the notice of assignment 

within the 120 day period shall be conclusive evidence that the city or 

town has not exercised its option. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 6/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

If the option has been assigned to a nonprofit conservation organization 

or to the commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions, the option 

may be exercised by the assignee only by written notice to the landowner 

signed by the assignee, mailed to the landowner by certified mail at the 

address that is specified in the notice of intent. The notice of exercise 

shall also be recorded with the registry of deeds and shall contain the 

name of the record owner of the land and description of the premises 

adequate for identification of them. 

The notice of exercise to the landowner shall be accompanied by a 

proposed purchase and sale contract or other agreement between the 

assignee and landowner which, if executed, shall be fulfilled within a 

period of not more than 90 days, or upon expiration of any extended 

period the landowner has agreed to in writing, from the date the contract 

or agreement, endorsed by the landowner, is returned by certified mail to 

the assignee. 

During the 120 day period, the city or town or its assignees, shall have 

the right, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to enter upon 

the land for the purpose of surveying and inspecting the land, including, 

but not limited to, soil testing for purposes of Title V and the taking of 

water samples. 

The city or town or its assignee shall have all rights assigned to the 

buyer in the purchase and sale agreement contained in the notice of 

intent. 

If the city or town elects not to exercise the option, and not to assign its 

right to exercise the option, the city or town shall send written notice of 

nonexercise, signed by the mayor or board of selectmen, to the landowner 

by certified mail at the address that is specified in the notice of intent. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 7/8 



7/14/23, 2:36 PM General Law - Part I, Title IX, Chapter 61A, Section 14 

The notice of nonexercise shall contain the name of the owner of record 

of the land and description of the premises adequate for identification of 

them and shall be recorded with the registry of deeds. 

No sale or conversion of the land shall be consummated until the option 

period has expired or the notice of nonexercise has been recorded with 

the registry of deeds, and no sale of the land shall be consummated if the 

terms of the sale differ in any material way from the terms of the 

purchase and sale agreement which accompanied the bona fide offer to 

purchase as described in the notice of intent to sell except as provided in 

this section. 

This section shall not apply to a mortgage foreclosure sale, but the 

holder of a mortgage shall, at least 90 days before a foreclosure sale, send 

written notice of the time and place of the sale to the parties in the 

manner described in this section for notice of intent to sell or convert, and 

the giving of notice may be established by an affidavit as described in 

this section. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/Partl/TitleIX/Chapter61A/Section14 8/8 



Good A�ernoon, 

On July 17, 2018, a plan was recorded in Land Court to subdivide about 1 ½ acres out of the original 
parcel (plan 43402B is a�ached).  The original parcel was being assessed as Chapterlands under Chapter 
61A Agriculture / Hor�cultural Land which receives a value credit on the assessment which reduces the 
value. When Gail and I were reviewing mapping changes we found that nothing had been done on the 
subdivision of the lot. We reached out to Aaron Gingras and he informed us that he will be removing 
that part of the parcel for his Daughter, because it is for family no ac�on needed to be taken at that 
�me. In January of 2022, Parcel 60/R1 was subdivided to 60/R2 0 Oak St (19.8 Acres s�ll in Chapterland) 
and 60/R3 140 Oak St (1.49 Acres to build house for Daughter). We received the street numbers from 
Planning, and it was 60/R2 would be 0 Oak Street and 60/R3 would be 140 Oak Street.  

It was brought to our a�en�on that the property located at 60/R3 was for sale and listed as 17 Woody 
Glen Rd. We reached out to Aaron Gingras again to find out how the address of 17 Woody Glen Rd came 
to be and to remind him that the Town has right of first refusal. He informed us that he went before the 
Planning board in 2022 to have the access changed from Oak Street to Woody Glen Road. The Assessing 
office never received no�ce and therefore the property remained as 140 Oak Street in the assessing 
database.  

In addi�on, because the property was removed from chapterlands and did not remain in the family, we 
will be assessing Rollback taxes for that por�on. 

I was able to locate some informa�on regarding the 17 Woody Glen Road address. It looks like this case 
was on the Planning Board agenda for February 22, 2022. (See A�ached) 

If any addi�onal informa�on is needed, please let me know.  

Thank You, 

Carly Jones  

Assessing Director  
732 Main Street 
Harwich, Ma 02645 
508-430-7503 
508-430-7086 (Fax)  



TOWN OF HARWICH 

'" SEPT 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
273 Queen Anne Road • P.O. Box 1543 • Harwich, MA 02645 

Telephone (508) 430-7555 
Fax (508) 430-7598 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Select Board 

FROM: Lincoln S. Hooper, Director 

DATE: August 1, 2023 

RE: MassDOT de minimis Impact Determination 

The attached de minimus Impact Determination is an environmental form that MassDOT is 
requesting be signed by the Town due to Saquatucket Harbor being waterfront property. By 
signing the form the Town is agreeing that the permanent aerial easement required in order to 
move a utility pole for the sidewalk construction "will not adversely affect the activities, 
features, and attributes" of the property. MassDOT Right of Way Division will be seeking the 
actual easement in the future for this sidewalk project. 

Attached please find sheet 17 of the Preliminary Right of Way Property Plans and a zoomed in 
picture of the actual easement. The easement itself is drawn in green with red notes identifying 
the utility pole anchor wire and the overhead wire location. MassDOT requires a 5' offset from 
utilities, which is why the easement is larger than the wire itself 

I recommend that the Board sign the attached form and return it to MassDOT. 

Cc: Joe Powers, Town Administrator 
John Rendon, Harbormaster 



Section 4(f) de minimis Impact Determination [per 23 CFR 771] 

NOTE: De minimis impacts are defined as those that, after considering any measures to minimize 
harm, do not adversely affect the activities, features, or attributes that qualify a significant public 
park, recreation area, or wildlife and/or waterfowl refuge for protection under Section 4(f) of the 
DOT of 1966, as amended. 

This form is prepared to document the analysis of planned impacts to a Section 4(f) facility and 
seek concurrence from the official with jurisdiction that the below-referenced MassDOT federal-
aid transportation project's minor impacts would not adversely affect the operation/function of 
the subject resource. 

Project Information Table 

Project Proponent: Town of Harwich 
Project Name: Sidewalk Installation on Route 28 from Bank Street to 

Saquatucket Harbor (611985) 
Municipality: Town of Harwich 
Project Description: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation Highway 

Division and the Town of Harwich propose to expend federal 
funds to construct a sidewalk on the eastbound segment of 
Route 28 from Bank Street to Saquatucket Harbor. 

Section 4(f) Resource: Saquatucket Municipal Marina 
Type of Section 4(f) Resource: Recreation Area 
Official with Jurisdiction: Town of Harwich 
Impacts to Section 4(f) 
Resource: 

This project will require one permanent easement totaling 760 
square feet. The permanent easement (5-PUE-27) is required 
for the relocation of overhead wires, guy wire installation, the 
placing of a small sediment control barrier during 
construction, and for sloping and grading. 

Measures to Minimize Harm 
to Section 4(f) Resource: 

Per FHWAs Section 4(f) policy paper, a de minimis impact 
determination considers all avoidance, minimization, 
mitigation, or enhancement measures. The easement is 
located as far away from the marina as possible. Proposed 
work on the marina will not adversely affect the activities, 
features, or attributes that make the property eligible for 
Section 4(f). 

Public Outreach and public 
comments: 

Public input was sought for the de minimis impact 
determination through a legal ad notice advertised in the 
Cape Cod Times on June 14, 2023. A 25% formal design 
public hearing was held on January 17, 2023. No significant 
concerns or issues have been raised by public comment to 
date. 

Summary and Determination 
Based on the minor scope of the above-referenced impacts, including measures to minimize 
harm, MassDOT Highway Division has determined that the project will not adversely affect the 
activities, features or attributes that qualify the resource for protection under Section 4(f). 

Ten Park Plaza, Suite 4140, Boston, MA, 02116 
Tel: 857-368-4636, TTY: 857-368-0655 

www.mass.gov/massdot 



MassDOT Intent to make a De Minimis Determination 
This notification hereby serves to inform the official with jurisdiction of MassDOT's intent to make a 
de minimis impact determination for the described proposed "use" of the subject Section 4(f) 
resource. 

vad 
J

6/z
pton, Program Engineer for Design Date 

MassDOT Highway Division 

Zoe 

Section 4 (f) De Minimis Finding Concurrence 
After consideration of any comments received from the public, as the official with jurisdiction 
over said resource, I hereby concur with the determination that "use" will not adversely affect 
the activities, features, and attributes that qualify the property for protection under Section 4(f). 

Mary E. Anderson, Chair, Select Board Date 
Town of Harwich 

MassDOT Request for Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Approval 
MassDOT Highway Division requests final approval from FHWA that the proposed "use" of the 
above described Section 4(f) resource meets the criteria of a de minimis impact, as specified 
under 23 CFR 774.17. 

Division Administrator (or designee) 
Federal Highway Administration 
Massachusetts Division 

Date 

Harwich, Route 28 (611985), Section 4(f) de minimis Impact Page 2 



HARWICH 
MAIN STREET (ROUTE 28) 

0710 ROUTE 28 
[WILTING DOWN THE ROAD LLC 

1111 23211 PG 159 
PLAN BOOK 289 PAGE 62 

PARCEL 5-1E-35 
BUILDING DOWN THE ROAD LLC 
AREA ABOUT 1140 SF 

RET FENCE 

___ 

I DAIZ,BRICK 

.01 
RET TREE 

a 

maxGL:rTpr 

—a 

ea 

et,

PARCEL 5—TE-40 
Al HARWICHPORT 

MY CONDOMINIUM MASTER DEED 
AREA ABOUT 1435 SF 

'AVE
2064 RET SIGN 

Lends of permanent 
MA. easement 

tOTAL 
*EMI 

144 17 111 

PROJECT BEEN°. 011•N 

PRELIMINARY RIGHT OF WAY 
PROPERTY PLANS 

SHEET 7 OF 8 

8724 ROUTE 28 
N/F 

AffACOMET AT HARWICI1PORT CONDOKPRIUM 
MASTER OCE0 

EM 3847 PG 218 
PLAN BOOK 369 PAGE 77 

PARCEL 5—TE-41 
MYACOMET Al HARWICHPORT 
CONDOMHUM MASTER DEED 
AREA ABOUT 317 SF 

PARCEL 5-1-7 
MYACOMET AT HARWICHPORT 
CONDOMINIUM MASTER DEED 
AREA ABOUT 50 SF 

1902 STATE HIGHWAY ALT 591 CONS 6

MAIN SIRE -T SIDEWALK CsgArt o.,

ng 100 MAIN STREET 179 (ROUTE 
(PUBLIC) 

102 28) w 
APPIROX LIMIT PROP GRAN
13E GRADING r 

F..4311E 42

7r ELI?. 
AT ION 

43 R IO wItlen meetti17e11 
- 

134% 
RET . (717,

tEDEE 
'-'--RET '-'4

+-1  . Ref 

124* FRET as , ___ ........ ....RETs.

—...'-

RET 

s 
2103.A 

---=— 

— 4V3--  Mk 
.t'ACZU: RET RET CB 

RET CB 

TaPE15"" 
RET SIGN PRog,R,,,t., 

SIGN * 
7r?'_7;',',r Lin• or overrate, 

,, PARCEL 5—PUE-27 woes mot ACT one( 

/ TOWN OF HARY0C11 epwrgrx, easement 

SAOUATUCKET HARBOR 
AREA ABOUT 760 SF 

PARCEL 5—TE-33 
BARRIER 

STA404551 TO STA 424052 

LOOMIS T SIMMONS, LLC 
AREA ABOUT 1420 SF UtIPLY PORI Penn.,

ewIt EZIT emal 
REM BUSHES teeming  easement 

PARCEL 5—POE-28 0715 ROUTE 28 

0705 RMITE 28 
LOOMIS T SIMMONS, LLC Town, OF HAMM, SAOUATUCKET HARBOR 
AREA ABOUT 3757 SF BK 1231 PG 360 

IS SIMONS. LLC 
26951 PG 217 

PLAN 181 OF 1973 
Be 

PLAN BOOK 155 PAGE 59 

20 50 100 

SEMI IL; 1' • 20 

PROP GRAN CURB 
—0 — I — — —

—AA 

ly 
STA 

I•' 



4'± 

43 

44 45 — 

IL 

MAIN STREET SIDEWALK CONST — 
 Sloping & grading work 

179 within easement
O

180 MAIN  STREE 
Sediment control barrier 
within easement 

320'* 

NCI JT 

PROP ELEC 
SERVICE RELS' ATION 

R&R W/ G 

134'± 

(PU 

RET CB 

DC ------ ----

RET 

RET 

134'* 
• 6'± 

13't 
13'± 

RET CB 
6'* Line of overhead 

PROP 6.0' 
HMA WALK 

APPROX LIMIT 

45'± 

RET 
SIGN 

OF GRADING 5-PUE-27 5PARCEL wires and -FT offset 

PROP TREE TOWN OF HARWICH requiring easement 
PROTECTION (TYP) SAQUATUCKET HARBOR 

- PARCEL 5-TE-33 
AREA ABOUT 760 SF 

LOOMIS T SIMMONS, LLC 
AREA ABOUT 1420 SF / Utility pole anchor 

wire ("guy wire") 
requiring easement 

- PARCEL 5-PUE-26 #715 ROUTE 28 
LOOMIS T SIMMONS, LLC TOWN OF HARWICH SAQUATUCKET HARBOR 

AREA ABOUT 3757 SF BK 1231 PG 360 
PLAN 181 OF 1973 

RE 



CONTRACTS 



Spencer Preservation 
 Group 

PRESERVATION ARCHITECTS 

March 31, 2023 

Brooks Academy Museum 
90 Parallel Street 
Harwich, MA 

ACCESSIBILITY NARRATIVE 

Introduction 

The Brooks Academy Museum is a 2 story, wood framed building built in a Greek Revival style, originally 
in 1844 as a schoolhouse with additions from 1909 and 1927. Currently, the Harwich Historical Society 
operates the building as a museum with exhibit space to display both artifacts from their collection and 
rotating curated exhibits to the general public. 

Proposed alterations to the building are to replace the existing foundation of the building with a new 
concrete and masonry foundation, excavating an existing crawl space to expand to a full basement at 
the 1844 and 1909 wing. Additionally, first floor framing will be repaired and supplemented. To access 
this work, existing electrical distribution and HVAC ductwork and plumbing will be temporarily removed 
and then re-installed. 

Architectural Access 

Architectural access regulations in Massachusetts (521 CMR) Regulations of the Massachusetts 

Architectural Access Board (MAAB) are written to encourage making buildings and spaces barrier free to 

persons with physical or mental disabilities. 

There are several "triggers" where work done will need to in-corporate accessibility. Note that the 

guidelines describe a minimum standard. Exceeding these requirements is at the discretion of the Town 

and the Historical Society. 

Generally speaking, all new work including construction, reconstruction, alterations, re-modeling, 

additions, and changes in use should conform to the access regulations. This means all additions, 

reconstruction, remodeling, and alterations or repairs to existing public buildings or facilities which 

require a building permit. 

41 Valley Road, Suite 211B J Nahant, MA 01908) 617-227-2675 
www.SpencerPreservationGroup.com 



If the building permit value of the work being performed amounts to less than 30% of the assessed 

building value and less than $100,000, only new work or renovated spaces would be required to comply. 

If the value of permit work exceeds 30% of the building's assessed value, the entire building must be 

brought into compliance with 521 CMR. The Town of Harwich tax assessment for fiscal year 2022 is 

$724,00 (building only), so the 30% threshold would be $217,200. The proposed construction work at 

Museum is contracted for $1,189,000 so obviously this well exceeds the 30% threshold. 

Therefore, the entire facility would have to be made fully accessible. If spaces cannot be made 

accessible, a variance may be sought to allow their continued use by the public, or for exemption for 

certain uses. 

The intent of this document is to identify current features of the building that do not conform to 521 
CMR the Regulations of the Massachusetts Architectural Access Board, and to help recommend a path 
forward correct these issues. 

Issue Identification 

In this document we identify features that are currently not in compliance with 521 CMR. Only those 
items not in conformance are noted. 
Entrances - 521 CMR requires that all entrances be accessible (25.1) At the Museum, there is currently 
only one accessible entrance that has an accessible ramp, as 2 others feature steps. 

   2:77-  mrmtratrAltryt; 

  11E6 11   

  III I PC  
11111111111 

. , 

winowm foti, 

ye- 4ts ' f • ,,k
lik ttaiiri•Lmar +,147,..vm071416....istor 44tim tri

_ 
I 

I 

Oar 

Figure 1 South entry has steps making it inaccessible Figure 2 North entry has steps making it inaccessible 



Doors: A common impairment to an accessible route that occurs throughout the building is at doors 
where existing wood thresholds are in excess of /2" high (see 26.10.1) and existing hardware does not 
conform (see 26.11.1) 

Figure 3 Most interior doors have inaccessible thresholds and hardware 



Rest Room: While the existing restroom has been renovated to provide a level of accessibility with 
conforming signage, grab bars, and fixture clearances, there is not enough room there for full 
compliance, particularly for the required clearance between the watercloset and lavatory (see 30.7.2) 

Figure 4 while the toilet room has accessible features, there required clearances for fixtures is inadequate 

The accessibility situation at the north stair is particularly difficult to resolve. An effort has been made 
to provide accessibility as required by 28.1 via an inclined seat conveyance. We simply don't know the 
backstory of this or when it was installed. The inclined lift may have been permitted when it was 
installed under 28.12.4 which states that an inclined lift is permitted "where no other work is being 
performed and no other alternative is available" or could have even been installed prior to the effective 
date of M.G.L. c22, 13A in 1974. Whatever the history, the current inclined seat does not conform to 
the present code for an inclined lift in that it does not feature the required 30" x 48" minimum sized 
platform with permanent folding seat (see 28.12.5) 

Figure 5 view of inclined seat lift 



Additionally, at the north stair the handrails are mounted at 25" and should be mounted at the code 
required height range of 34"-38". 

4 

Figure 6 Existing stair railing installed below 34" minimum 

At both the north and south stairs, there are historic railings, newels, and balustrade systems that do 
not conform to a number of the requirements for handrails from Section 27.4. In our past work in 
historic buildings the MAAB has granted variance to the historic inner railings provided that the opposite 
wall-mounted railings are brought into conformance for height, cross sectional area, and end 
extensions. 

= 

gr 

lj 

kl 

Figure 7 baluster, railing, and newels at stairs are non-
conforming 



Recommendations 

The Massachusetts Architectural Access Board my grant a variance to the regulations for accessibility 

when the Board agrees that it "is not feasible technologically, or would result in excessive and 

unreasonable costs without any substantial benefit to physically handicapped persons". Relief from the 

Regulations (CMR 521) would require that a variance application be submitted to the Board to make 

such a determination. In some instances, where compliance causes a financial or operational hardship, 

the Board may grant a time extension to allow the Owner to bring the project into conformance. 

Our recommendation for proceeding would be to make a number of corrections to those items that are 

not too financially burdensome now, and to request variances for some of those that may meet 

assessment that they are technologically infeasible or pass the cost-benefit judgement. For this type of 

variance, cost estimates for the changes must be included in the application. 

We recommend that the Town proceed immediately with the carpentry repairs that would bring interior 

door hardware are thresholds into compliance, via planing the thresholds so that they are a maximum 

1/2" high, and replacing existing door knob hardware with lever handled hardware. The fixture clearance 

issue at the rest room may resolved by replacing the counter and lavatory with a new wall mounted 

lavatory. The wall-mounted handrails at stairs should be modified to conform. 

A multi-issue variance should be submitted to the MAAB requesting that the main entry at the north 

porch be considered as the Entrance, and that the other 2 doors are egress. (Section 25.1) 

A variance request should be made to exempt the railing, newel, and balustrade systems of both the 

north and south stairs. (27.4) 

The vertical access for the public to the second floor is the most difficult and unpredictable to resolve 

(see 28.1) We recommend requesting a time variance that would allow the Town to continue to 

operate the building with the current inclined seat lift, with an agreement that an elevator is in the 

planning stages and will be installed in the near future. 



Spencer Preservation 
 Group  

PRESERVATION ARCHITECTS 

Town of Harwich 

Amendment Number 1 to Architectural Design Services Contract 

Project : Brooks Academy Museum, Basement Renovation 

Architects : Spencer Preservation Group 

Scope : Additional Services for variance application to the Massachusetts Architectural Access 
Board 

Amend existing contract terms and conditions as follows : 

1. Additional services to prepare and submit a variance application to the Massachusetts 
Architectural Access Board, including attendance at hearings as required. 

Add $ 6,500.00 

The Contract Fee is adjusted as follows : 

Base Contract $118,350.00 
Amendment No. 1 services fee $ 6,500.00 

Total $124,850.00 

All other terms and conditions to remain the same. 

This Agreement shall be deemed to be executed and delivered within the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts and shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of said 

Commonwealth. 

Town of Harwich, Massachusetts Architect 

Date : 

Douglas Manley AIA 

Spencer Preservation Group 

Date : 
5/25/2023

41 Valley Road, Suite 211B I Nahant, MA 01908 I 617-227-2675 
www.SpencerPreservationGroup.com 



 

 

 

1 

 

 

HARWICH, MASSACHUSETTS 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS GRANT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into on this _______ day of 

_________, 2023, by and between the Town of Harwich (the “Town”), a municipal corporation 

duly organized under the laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and acting by and 

through its Select Board, having a usual place of business at 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 

02645 and Harwich Conservation Trust (the “Grantee”), a not for profit trust established under 

declaration of trust, dated September 24, 1988, and recorded in the Barnstable County Registry 

of Deeds (“Registry”) in Book 6456, Page 222, and in the Barnstable County Land Registry 

District as Document No. 615918, as amended, having a usual place of business at P.O. Box 101, 

South Harwich, MA 02661 and a physical address of 947 Route 28, South Harwich, MA 02661, 

acting by and through its Board of Trustees, collectively the “Parties.” 

 

 WHEREAS, Grantee is the owner of certain property located at 0 Bank Street, Harwich, 

Barnstable County, Massachusetts, known as the “Robert F. Smith Cold Brook Preserve” which 

property is described in deeds recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds in Book 

13958, Page 31 and Book 16116, Page 53 and Deed 18467, Page 15 and Plan Book 341, Pages 

90-93 and Plan Book 465, Page 67, and which the Grantee holds and manages for conservation, 

open space and passive recreational purposes in perpetuity (the “Property”);  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town is implementing its approved Comprehensive Wastewater 

Management Plan approved by the Massachsuetts Secretary of Environmental Affairs in a 

Massachsuetts Environmental Policy Act Certificate dated as of May 13, 2016 (the “CWMP”) 

which generally seeks to protect, preserve and restore the water quality of various water 

resources within or relating to natural resources within the Town of Harwich; 

 

WHEREAS, Grantee is in the process of implementing an ecological restoration project 

involving approximately 49 acres of the 66 acre Property referred to as the “Cold Brook 

Ecological Restoration Project” described in the CWMP and as further described and defined in 

Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein (hereinafter, the “Project”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to enter into a License Agreement in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit B (“the License”), granting the Town access to the Property to, among other 

purposes, monitor the work of the Project pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and conduct 

its Nitrogen Monitoring Plan (“NMP”), which  NMP is also further described in defined in 

Exhibit A hereto; 

 

WHEREAS, the Town authorized the borrowing of up to $2,000,000.00 for the purpose 

of implementing the Project, including any land acquisition and other incidental and related 

costs, pursuant to Vote of the Town on Article 12 of the May 16, 2017 Annual Town Meeting 

(the “Vote”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C; 

  



 

 

 

2 

 WHEREAS, the Masschusetts Division of Ecological Restoration (“DER”) was awarded 

a matching grant for the Project of up to $1,000,000 provided through the United States Fish and 

Wildlife Services National Coastal Wetlands Conservation Grant Program (No. F19AP00287) to 

pay eligible Project costs, and for which HCT and Town are each designated as a sub-grantee 

and under which DER shall act as the awarding authority (the “USFW Grant,” a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit D and incorporated herein);  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town desires to grant to Grantee a portion of the tax-exempt borrowing 

proceeds authorized by the Vote in an amount not to exceed One Million, Five Hundred 

Thousand ($1,500,000.00) Dollars (the “Town Contribution”) to secure the full amount of the 

available USFW Grant for work comprising the Project, and also contribute funding for the 

design, permitting, construction,  implementation and monitoring services of the Project 

(“Eligible Project Costs”) in accordance with terms of this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Grantee desires to receive said Town Contribution to secure the USFW 

Grant and pay Eligible Project Costs in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

  

 NOW THEREFORE, the Town and Grantee wish to set forth in this Grant Agreement the 

terms and conditions of the Grant, and hereby agree as follows: 

 

Agreement 

 

1. Recitals.  The recitals above are true and accurate and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

2. Funding. The Town shall grant tax-exempt bond proceeds to Grantee in an amount not to 

exceed the Town Contribution on the condition that Grantee shall use the Funds only for 

Eligible Project Costs associated with the purposes of designing, permitting, constructing,  

implementing and monitoring the Project, as set forth more particularly in the Contract 

Documents, as that term is defined in Paragraph 3 below, and in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement. 

 

3. Contract Documents. The term “Contract Documents” as used herein shall include this 

Agreement, the CWMP, the License, the Vote, USFW Grant, the convenants relative to the 

bond proceeds issued by the Town pursuant to the Vote, all local, state and federal permits 

issued for the Project, and the procurement and bidding documents issued by Grantee for 

undertaking the Project in accordance with Section 3(d) below, including without limitation 

the General Construction Contract, Subcontracts, General and Supplemental Conditions, 

Invitations to Bid, Bid and Sub-Bid Forms, Bond forms, Certifications, Specifications and all 

other related procurement and bid materials (collectively, the “Construction Bid 

Documents”).  Copies of the Construction Bid Documents shall be provided to the Board of 

Selectmen’s office no later than 14 calendar days before the Project is advertised in the 

Central Register, and the Board shall provide any comments or suggested edits within the 14 

calendar day period. If no comments are received during that 14 calendar day period, the 

Construction Bid Documents shall be deemed approved by the Town. 

 



 

 

 

3 

4. Public Bid Laws and Process. The Parties agree that the Project will be bid and executed as a 

public works construction project within the meaning of the public bidding laws of the 

Commonwealth, including Chapters 30, 30B and 149 of the General Laws, as amended (the 

“Public Bidding Laws”). Prevailing wage rates as determined by the Commissioner of the 

Massachusetts Department of Labor and Workforce Development under the provisions of 

Sections 26 to 27G of Chapter 149 of the Massachusetts General Laws, as amended, apply to 

the Project. Once the Project is advertised in the Central Register, the Grantee will follow the 

procedures set forth in the Public Bidding Laws. The Town Contact (as defined in Paragraph 

5(f) below) shall attend the Sub-Bid opening and the General-Bid opening. The Grantee shall 

confer with the Town Contact within two (2) business days of the bid opening, and before 

awarding the General Construction Contract to the lowest responsible and eligible bidder 

pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c. 30, §39M. If the Town objects to the award of the 

contract to the lowest responsible and eligible bidder identified by the Grantee through the 

bidding process, the Town must notify the Grantee of such objection within five (5) business 

days of the bid opening, and in that event, Grantee shall have the right, in its sole discretion, 

to reject all bids and not proceed with the Project.  If the Town does not object to the award 

of the contract to the lowest responsible and eligible bidder identified by the Grantee through 

the bidding process within 5 business days of the bid opening, then the Grantee may, in its 

sole discretion, proceed to award the contract to said bidder, in which event the Grantee shall 

be deemed to have complied with the Bid Process provisions of this Agreement. 

 

5. Conditions. The award and release of the Town Contribution to Grantee is conditioned upon 

the following conditions: 

 

a) Work on the Project (the “Work”) shall proceed in accordance with the Contract 

Documents, including without limitation all local, state and federal permits issued for the 

Project, as well as all applicable laws and regulations. 

 

b) The Work shall be deemed complete and in full compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement upon the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance from the Harwich 

Conservation Commission on its Restoration Order of Conditions recorded in the 

Barnstable County Registry of Deeds in Book 35499, Page 151 (SE File No. 32-2505), 

notwithstanding any on-going conditions contained in said Certificate. 

 

c)  The Work shall be completed by January 31, 2028, unless further extended by written 

agreement executed by both parties hereto.     
 

d) Any Funds remaining upon completion of the Project as provided for in Section 3(a) shall 

be returned to the Town’s General Fund. 
 

e) Grantee agrees that, prior to the receipt of any Funds, Grantee shall grant and deliver to 

the Town a fully executed License in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 

f) Town Contact. The Town’s authorized representative for the Project is Town 

Administrator, Joseph F. Powers, who can be reached at (508) –430-7513, and 

jpowers@harwich-ma.gov, or his designee. 

 



 

 

 

4 

g) Grantee Contact.   Grantee’s authorized representative is Executive Director, Michael 

Lach, who can be reached at: 508-432-3997 and mike@harwichconservationtrust.org; 

and its Project Manager, Nick Nelson, ph: 617-852-7744, email: 

nnelson@interfluve.com. 

 

6. Project Budget and Schedule.  Prior to the commencement of the Work under the General 

Construction Contract, Grantee must prepare and submit to the Town Contact a complete 

budget and estimated schedule for the work of the Project (“Project Budget and Schedule”), 

detailing the estimated schedule for the Work of the Project and all Eligible Project Costs 

that will be expended from the Town Contribution, the USFW Grant, as administered by 

DER and/or from other sources of funding. The Town will have fifteen (15) business days 

from the date the Project Budget and Schedule is provided to the Town Contact to review and 

approve the same. If the Town does not provide any comment within the 15 business day 

period, the Project Budget and Schedule shall be deemed approved. If the Town determines 

that payment requests submitted in accordance with Paragraph 8 herein do not constitute 

Eligible Project Costs set forth in the Project Budget, payment may not be authorized.  

 

7. The Work of the Project and the Project Commencement Date. Grantee shall be responsible 

for obtaining from federal, state and local agencies all relevant permits, licenses, and 

approvals prior to commencing the Work.  No local permit or license or fee is waived by the 

award of the Funds. The Work of the Project shall be performed in a good and workmanlike 

manner, by contractors who are licensed in their respective disciplines and shall conform to 

all local, state and federal permits issued for the Project and all applicable laws, bylaws, rules 

and regulations. The Project commencement date (“Project Commencement Date”) shall be 

the date this Grant Agreement is fully executed by all parties. 

 

8. Payment.  In order to comply with the provisions of General Laws, Chapter 30, Section 39G, 

every thirty (30) days after the Project Commencement Date, the Grantee shall submit to the 

Town Contact a periodic estimate prepared by the successful bidder who has been awarded 

the General Construction Contract (hereinafter, the “General Contractor”), which periodic 

estimate will have been previously reviewed and approved by the Grantee’s Project Manager, 

requesting payment of the amount due for the Work performed during the preceding thirty 

(30) days and for any materials incorporated into the Work, or if not incorporated in the 

Work, delivered free of all encumbrances and suitably stored at the Property. The Town 

Contact shall have ten (10) calendar days to review and make payment on the periodic 

estimate to the Grantee and the Grantee shall in turn make payment thereon to the General 

Contractor within five (5) calendar days thereafter, who will in turn pay the subcontractors in 

accordance with the Contract Documents and the provisions of G.L. c. 30, §39G. Substantial 

completion and final completion estimates shall also be prepared, submitted and paid 

pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c. 30, §39G. When reviewing the peridodic, substantial 

completion and final estimates, the Town Contact shall have the right to ask for 

supplementary information and/or enter onto the Property for the purpose of inspecting the 

Work and/or ensuring that Grantee is in compliance with this Agreement and as otherwise 

accorded pursuant to the terms of the License provided, however, that such review and 

inspection shall be completed within ten (10) calendar days of the Town Contact’s receipt of 

the periodic estimates. The Town Contact shall review the periodic, substantial completion 



 

 

 

5 

and final completion estimates and reasonably determine that the Work has been done in a 

good and workmanlike manner and substantially in compliance with the Contract Documents 

and with legal requirements applicable to the Work.  Grantee shall use all such sums only for 

Eligible Project Costs, as described in the Contract Documents and set forth in the Project 

Budget. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the actual total cost of 

performing the Work is less than the Town Contribution (the difference between the two 

amounts referred to hereinafter as the “Excess”), the Town shall have no obligation to pay 

the Excess. 

 

9. Progress Reports.  Grantee shall provide the Town with progress reports at three (3)-month 

intervals beginning sixty (60) days from the date of the signing of this Agreement for as long 

as the Town Contribution remains unexpended. The Town reserves the right to require 

supplementary information from Grantee.  Grantee shall submit a final report to the Town, 

including digital photographs and other documents, if applicable, within ninety (90) days 

from the Project completion date.   

 

10. Record-Keeping.  Grantee agrees to keep, for the greater of a period of six (6) years after the 

Project is completed, applicable records retention schedules or the term of this Agreement, 

such records with respect to the utilization of the Funds as are kept in the normal course of 

business and such additional records as may be required by the Town.  The Town shall have 

full and free access to such records and may examine and copy such records during normal 

business hours and as often as the Town may deem appropriate.   

 

11. Termination.  In the event either party fails to fulfill any of its obligations under this 

Agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after the written notice has 

been provided specifying such failure, the non-breaching party shall have the right, in its sole 

discretion, to terminate this Agreement upon further written notice to the other party.  Upon 

termination, the parties shall be free to pursue any rights or remedies at law or in equity.  

Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, all rights and obligations of the 

parties hereunder shall expire and be of no further force and effect, except that the provisions 

of Sections 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 18 shall survive said expiration or earlier termination.  In the 

event either party takes legal action under this Agreement, for enforcement or otherwise, the 

non-prevailing party shall be liable for all of the prevailing party’s costs and expenses related 

thereto, including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs, including 

those incurred by the prevailing party on and from the date of default. 

 

12. Return of Funds.  In the event the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 9, any funds 

paid to Grantee under this Agreement and not yet expended shall be returned forthwith to the 

Town without further expenditure thereof.  If Grantee fails to fulfill its obligations under the 

terms of this Agreement as a result of negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Grantee, 

Grantee shall be liable to repay to the Town any unused portion of the Grant Amount already 

paid by the Town to the Grantee, and the Town may take such steps as are necessary, 

including legal action, to recover such funds. 

 

13. Liability of the Town.  The Town’s sole obligation hereunder shall be to make the timely 

payments required in Section 6 of this Agreement, provided that Grantee complies with the 



 

 

 

6 

terms hereof, including the conditions set forth in Section 3, and the Town shall be under no 

further obligation or liability.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to render the 

Town liable for any other obligation under this Agreement or to render any elected or 

appointed official or employee of the Town, or their successors in office, personally liable for 

any obligation under this Agreement.   

 

14. Indemnification.  Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town and its departments, 

officers, employees, representatives and agents harmless from and against any and all claims, 

demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, 

of any nature whatsoever arising as a result of (a) any breach of this Agreement by the 

Grantee, (b) any injury to person or property resulting from the Work, (c) Grantee's 

performance of the Work or the negligence or misconduct of Grantee or Grantee's agents, 

employees, contractors and invitees, (d) the failure of any contractor hired by Grantee to 

perform the Work or any other act or omission of any such contractor, and (e) any and all 

claims for the payment by the Town of any amount in excess of the Town Contribution.  The 

provisions of this paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

15. Independent Status.  Grantee acknowledges and agrees that it is acting in a capacity 

independent of the Town, and shall not be considered an employee or agent of the Town for 

any purpose. 

 

16. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto and their 

successors and permitted assigns.  Grantee shall not assign, subcontract or otherwise transfer 

this Agreement or its rights hereunder, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent 

of the Town, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 

17.  Compliance with Laws. Grantee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, 

regulations and orders applicable to the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement.   

 

18. Notice.  Any and all notices, or other communications required or permitted under this 

Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage prepaid, return 

receipt requested, by registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery service, to the 

parties at the addresses set forth on Page 1 or furnished from time to time in writing hereafter 

by one party to the other party.  Any such notice or correspondence shall be deemed given 

when so delivered by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or, if 

sent by private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited with such delivery 

service. 

 

19. Severability.  If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to 

any extent be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement 

shall not be deemed affected thereby unless one or both parties would be substantially or 

materially prejudiced. 

 

20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance 

with the laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Grantee submits to the 



 

 

 

7 

jurisdiction of any of its appropriate courts for the adjudication of disputes arising out of this 

Agreement. 

 

Exhibits: 

Exhibit A: Project Description  

Exhibit B: License 

Exhibit C: Vote 

Exhibit D: USFW Grant  

  



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement 
effective on the day written above: 

GRANTOR: 

Harwich Conservation Trust, 

By: . . ::,," 

-rk.o =;c.....~!.ll!'..I~-

COMMONWEAL TH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

, S.S. 

On this 3 cJ day of t\;v6--V t; ( , 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 
personally appeare~""'~N £~resident, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory 
evidence of identification, which was ~S,~ ~w~ to be the persons whose names 
are signed on the preceding or attache document, and ~wledged to me that they signed it 
voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

~(~··· 

Notary Public~, c~ w. t~-_ 
My commission expires:s~ ~~3 ·· . -

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

, S.S. 

On this '=s~ day of \JS'T" , 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 
personally appeareciA~&1..C. ,\~"'tice-president, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory 
evidence of identification, which was~~~\ \ci...ow~ , to be the persons whose names 
are signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that they signed it 
voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

~~ 
Notary Public t-,,\.\,c..H..a. i'.'L.. w. LJ..Ci-/ 
My commission expires:S~. C\.:z,c73 

8 



 

 

 

9 

TOWN: 

 

By its Select Board, 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

_______________, Chair 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

      

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

_________________, ss.  

 

 On this ______ day of ___________, 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared ________________, Chair of the Harwich Board of Selectmen as aforesaid, 

and proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was 

___________________________________________ to be the person whose name is signed on 

the preceding document, and acknowledged to me that (s)he signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose on behalf of the Harwich Board of Selectmen. 

        

       __________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       My Commission Expires:



 

 

 

10 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Project Description 

 

 

The Cold Brook Eco-Restoration Project (“the Project”) is an ecological restoration project 

involving approximately 49 acres of the Robert F. Smith Cold Brook Preserve (“the Property”), 

shown on the Harwich Assessors Maps as Assessor’s Parcel ID 23-C1-0. 

 

The Project seeks to transform 49-acres of a former working cranberry bog into a naturally 

functioning and self-sustaining wetland system, with the intention of reducing nitrogen loads to 

Saquatucket Harbor. The primary goal of the project is to create conditions that will allow the 

restored site to maintain ecological integrity over time without ongoing intervention. The project 

will accomplish this goal by addressing elements associated with the former agricultural uses 

that inhibit natural processes, including: an anthropogenic sand layer that separates the ground 

surface from the water table, a physically altered and simplified stream system with poor habitat 

value and water quality, and multiple barriers to natural surface hydrology (including earthen 

berms (dams) and water control structures). The project will restore multiple wetland types, 

enhance fish and wildlife habitat, restore fish passage, improve water quality, enhance storage of 

floodwaters on the site, and enhance nitrogen attenuation. The Project will also provide enhanced 

visitor access to the Property’s scenic walking trails, continuing the HCT tradition of connecting 

the local community with the natural world. 

The Project is more fully described and shown on the Project plans prepared by Inter-Fluve, 

entitled “Harwich Conservation Trust Cold Brook Eco-Rstoration Project 75% Preliminary 

Engineering Design” and dated July 14, 2022, the plans prepared by Stephen Stimson 

Associates, entitled “Harwich Conservation Trust Cold Brook Eco-Rstoration Project” and dated 

May 5, 2022, and in the Notice of Intent application materials filed with the Harwich 

Conservation Commission and approved by said Commission by virtue of the Restoration Order 

of Conditions issued on August 22, 2022 (DEP File No. SE-32-2505). 

 

The project also includes Nitrogen Monitoring Plan (“NMP”), wherein the water quality at the 

Property will be regularly monitored by the Town, in accordance with the terms of the License 

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B, as the Project is implemented and as it is managed after 

completion. Should data from such monitoring reveal that water quality at the Property 

associated with open water ponds, including but not limited to elevated phosphorus levels, is 

adversely affecting HCT’s ecological restoration goals as stated above, then the Town shall 

consult with HCT and their partners to collaboratively develop an analysis and proposed solution 

to the water quality problem through data collection, engineering study, and related work funded 

by up to $50,000 additional monies, over and above the Town Contribution, which monies have 

been reserved for said purpose set aside from the already existing 2017 Town Meeting project 

funding authorization. Said reserved funds shall be available for said purpose for a period of five 

years from the date of eco-restoration construction completion. If mitigation measures are 

needed, then HCT and the Town shall work cooperatively to fund and implement a mitigation 

plan to address the water quality issue.   If the reserved $50,000 is not needed for said purpose at 



 

 

 

11 

the end of the five year period, then the funds will be utilized to support the Town’s nitrogen 

attenuation effort through invasive plant monitoring and management that assists the growth of 

native plants in the shallow marsh, deep marsh, salt marsh, and riparian habitats which help 

naturally reduce nitrogen. 

 

The final Project scope and description will be defined by the final local, state and federal 

permits for the Project, and as conditioned in those permits by the issuing agencies. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

12 

Exhibit B 

 

License Agreement 

 

 



 

 

 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

 This License Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made this ___ day of ____________, 

2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the Harwich Conservation Trust (the “Grantor”), a 

not for profit trust established under declaration of trust, dated September 24, 1988, and recorded 

in the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds (“Registry”) in Book 6456, Page 222, and in the 

Barnstable County Land Registry District as Document No. 615918, as amended, having a usual 

place of business at P.O. Box 101, South Harwich, MA 02661 and a physical address of 947 

Route 28, South Harwich, MA 02661, acting by and through its Board of Trustees, and the Town 

of Harwich (the “Town”), a municipal corporation duly organized under the laws of The 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and acting by and through its Select Board, having a usual 

place of business at 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645 and, collectively the “Parties.” 

 

BACKGROUND 

A. The Grantor owns certain vacant land known as and numbered 0 Bank Street located in 

the Town of Harwich, Barnstable County, Massachusetts, as more particularly described 

in Deed to the Grantor recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds (the 

“Registry”) in Book 13958, Page 31, which property contains the 66-acre “Robert F. 

Smith Cold Brook Preserve” and is shown on the Harwich Assessors Maps as Assessor’s 

Parcel ID 23-C1-0 (the “0 Bank Street Property”); 

B. The Grantor also holds a 50% interest in the property known as and numbered 203 Bank 

Street, also located in the Town of Harwich, Barnstable County, Massachusetts, as more 

particularly described in the Deed to the Grantor recorded with said Registry in Book 

35530, Page 91, which property was formerly utilized by the Harwich Fire Department 

and is shown on the Harwich Assessors Maps as Assessor’s Parcel ID 23 - B2, B2-1, and 

B3 (the “203 Bank Street Property” and collectively, with the 0 Bank Street Property, the 

“Grantor Land”). 

C. Within the 0 Bank Street Property is a former working cranberry bog, which bog can be 

accessed through the 203 Bank Street Property. 

D. With financial assistance from the Town, as detailed in the Grant Agreement by and 

between the Town and the Grantor, dated August 7 , 2023 (“the Grant Agreement”), the 

Grantor intends to undertake an ecological restoration project to restore the 0 Bank Street 

Property into a naturally functioning and self-sustaining wetland system, with the further 

intention of reducing nitrogen loads to Saquatucket Harbor, which ecological restoration 

project shall be conducted in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement, all 

applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and all federal, state and local 

permits issued to the Grantor (“the Project”). 

E. The Grantor and the Town desire to enter into this Agreement in order to grant to the 

Town a license for access to the Grantor Land for the purpose of monitoring the work of 

the Project, and conducting certain post-construction nitrogen monitoring, which access 

is to be provided upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

  



 

 

 - 2 - 

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained, the receipt of 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Grantor and the Town do hereby mutually act 

and agree as follows: 

1. License.  The Grantor hereby grants to the Town, and its employees, officers, agents, and 

contractors (“the Licensees”), a non-exclusive license, upon the following terms and conditions: 

a) 203 Bank Street Property. The Licensees shall have access, by foot and vehicle 

on, over and upon the 203 Bank Street Property, which property is shown as 

Parcels B2, B2-1 and B-3(hereinafter, “License Area”) on the Sketch attached 

hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, for the purpose of access to and 

parking within the License Area and accessing the 0 Bank Street Property from 

the License Area shown on the Sketch. More specifically, the Licensees shall 

have: i) vehicular access for the purpose of passing and repassing over the portion 

of the License Area identified as Parcel B3 on the Sketch to access Parcels B2 and 

B2-1; ii) vehicular access for the purpose of passing and repassing over the 

portion of the License Area identified as Parcels B2 and B2-1 to access the 

parking areas on those parcesl; and iii) pedestrian access over Parcels B2 and B2-

1 for the purpose of accessing the 0 Bank Street Property (which is shown as 

Parcel C1 on the Sketch). Due to the ongoing construction on Parel B3, the 

Licensees shall not be permitted to park nor walk on Parcel B3 during the Term of 

this License.  

b) 0 Bank Street Property. The Licensees shall have pedestrian access, by foot only, 

on, over and upon the 0 Bank Street Property, for the purposes of monitoring the 

progress of the work on the Project, and also for conducting the 3-year, post-

construction Nitrogen Monitoring Plan (NMP) described in the Parties’ Grant 

Agreement. Access to the 0 Bank Street Property shall include the right to install 

the monitoring equipment and conduct the testing prescribed in the NMP, as 

detailed in the Grant Agreement. 

c) Access by the Licensees for the purposes set forth herein shall be at the Town’s 

sole cost and expense.  

d) Term.  This Agreement shall have a term of eight (8) years, commencing on the 

Effective Date, unless further extended by written agreement executed by both 

parties hereto.   

e) Notice of Entry.  The Town shall provide Grantor with at least two (2) business 

days’ prior written notice of any anticipated entry under this Agreement, which 

written notice may be sent by e-mail to the Executive Director of the Grantor. 

Said Notice shall include the identity of the person(s) seeking access, the scope 

and extent of their anticipated activities on the Grantor Land, the date and time of 

the anticipated entry, and the anticipated length of stay. 



 

 

 - 3 - 

2. Risk of Loss.  The Town’s entry onto the Grantor Land under this Agreement is at the 

Town’s sole risk and, under no circumstances, is Grantor responsible for any loss or damage 

arising from said Town’s entry, unless such loss or damage is caused by Grantor, its employees, 

contractors or agents. 

3. Insurance. The Grantee agrees to secure and maintain, for the Term of this License and at 

its sole cost and expense, general liability insurance coverage in amounts sufficient to cover all 

costs, claims, expenses, and damages arising from any personal injury or property damage that 

occurs in, on, or around the Grantor’s Land resulting from the exercise of the rights granted to 

the Town hereunder. In no event shall said coverages be in amounts less than $1,000,000 each 

occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. The Grantee shall name the Grantor as additional 

insured on such policies, and shall provide evidence of the required coverages to Grantor on an 

annual basis throughout the Term of this License. 

4. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute an original but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute but one 

Agreement. 

5. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be declared to be invalid or unenforceable, 

then the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term or provision to other 

persons or circumstances, other than those to which it would become invalid or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 

Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

6. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be terminated, released, modified or amended in 

whole or in part except by a written instrument executed by the Grantor and Town, or 

their respective successors in title.   

7. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the performance hereof shall be interpreted and 

governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

8. Headings.  The headings in this instrument are for convenience only.  The headings do 

not limit, expand or otherwise affect the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

[Signature page follows.] 



 

 

 - 4 - 

EXECUTED under seal as of the day and year first above written. 

       GRANTOR: 

        

Harwich Conservation Trust,  

 

 

By:______________________________ 

      _____________, President  

 

By:______________________________ 

      _____________, Vice President  

             

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

__________________, s.s.    

  

 On this _____ day of ______________, 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared __________, president, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory 

evidence of identification, which was ___________________, to be the persons whose names 

are signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that they signed it 

voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       My commission expires: 

    

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

__________________, s.s.    

  

 On this _____ day of ______________, 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared __________, vice president, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory 

evidence of identification, which was ___________________, to be the persons whose names 

are signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that they signed it 

voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       My commission expires: 

   



 

 

 

 

 

TOWN: 

 

By its Select Board, 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

_______________, Chair 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

      

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

_________________, ss.  

 

 On this ______ day of ___________, 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared ________________, Chair of the Harwich Select Board as aforesaid, and 

proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was 

___________________________________________ to be the person whose name is signed on 

the preceding document, and acknowledged to me that (s)he signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose on behalf of the Harwich Select Board. 

        

       __________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       My Commission Expires: 

 



 

 

 

 

 - 6 - 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Sketch of License Area 203 Bank Street 

 

 
 
6124458.1 



August 3, 2023

Data shown on this map is provided for planning and informational purposes only. The municipality and CAI Technologies are not responsible for any use for other purposes
or misuse or misrepresentation of this map.

Harwich, MA

1 inch = 70 Feet

211140700
www.cai-tech.com®



 

 

Exhibit C 

 

Vote 



COLD BROOK PROJECT 

ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from 
available funds, or borrow a sum of money to implement a portion of Phase 2 of the Town 
of Harwich Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan, approved by the Massachusetts 
Secretary of Energy and Environmental Affairs in a Massachusetts Environmental Policy 
Act Certificate dated May 13, 2016, consisting of the design, construction, and 
implementation of the Cold Brook Project, as more fully described in said Comprehensive 
Wastewater Management Plan, including any land acquisition costs and all other costs 
incidental and related thereto; provided that any borrowing authorized hereunder shall be 
contingent on the passage of a Proposition 2 and 1/2  debt exclusion vote; and to act fully 
thereon. By request of the Board of Selectmen. Estimated cost: $2,000,000 

FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS THIS ARTICLE BE ACCEPTED AND 
ADOPTED WITH THE AMOUNT OF $2,000,000 FROM DEBT EXCLUSION. 
THIS APPROPRIATION WILL PROVIDE THE FUNDING NEEDED TO MAKE 
IMPROVMENTS TO HELP MITIGATE WASTEWATER CONTAMINATION 
AROUND BANK STREET AND HARWICH CENTER. THE APPROPRIATION 
AUTHORIZED BY THIS VOTE SHALL NOT TAKE EFFECT UNTIL THE 
TOWN VOTES TO EXEMP FROM THE LIMITATION ON TOTAL TAXES 
IMPOSED BY G.L. C.59, §21C (PROPOSITION 2 %). VOTE: YES-8, NO-0. 

20 



N
•••••••••.°

0 300 Ft 

Hari ) OrMaSterS - 
WOrkSILOP 

A
T

M
 W

arrant A
rticle #12 

re, 

_L 

—Grassst:
-4j4.ond, st-
zkEttig 

Locus Map 

N 

S 

private 
etanbetty Bag' 

(No Access)/ 

bt 

tibyt-Rd-st 

ts 



 

 

Exhibit D 

 

USFW Grant 

 
 

 

6124491.1 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS - STANDARD CONTRACT FORM

Thls fcrm is lolnty issu€d and pLbllslred by h€ ofico of bs CompmH (CTR), he Exeortivo Offce fu Adnlnisfatio.r end Flunce (ANF), and he opeatjcnal S€ri,lc6s

on 0r by atlacim€nt (in he brm 0f addenfum, lotterr, conbad bme o. hvdcs bm.s) b ho teins
0r

by torms ney bo added Anadrm€nt an reqdred to ams publbhed brms at CTR Fonns: htbs:rlrww,mamlrolroller,orohrms.
Fums are also at OSD Foms:

CERTIFICATIONS: Notwihstanding veibal or ofie reprccantatjors by tre parties, he "Efhctho Drb" ol tris Cmhact or Amendmont shall be tre htest dale hat his Csrbad or
Amondment has b€en oxacubd by an aufrorized sQnotay ol he Cmbac'ior, tre Dsporbnen! or a labr Conbacl c Amendrrnl Start Dab specifed above, subjec{ to any requied

upm requ€st to support cofiplanco, 8nd agroos hat all tetms govEmhg prfuaunce d hb Contract and dolng fusinoss ln Mdsadusetb ero atbdt€d or incdporated by rohrenc8
herin acctrdhg to fe lolouing hi€rddly of doq,mdlt preced$ce, h€ ?plicable Cqnmonwoslh Tsms and Conditions, hb Slsndsd Confac{ Form, he Standrd Cqlfac{ Foff

made ushg he pocess orUhed in 8Ql-CMB 21.02, incorpomted hereh, pmviiod hat any anadod RFR c Reponse terms rosult in best value, lower cosb, or a mo.o co6t offeclivo
Conbac{.

ffi
in $is publsh€d tom or to 0p Strndad Conqdform lnetru
he Commonweallh lI Termr and Gonditiont wtrid are incorporabd

FOR THE C0trlM0llfl EALTH:AUT.XORT&NG SrcilarUne rOn rdGrRACToR:

,, //.rt .. k ^J,, '+,, 
^r", 

r/tekz
' (Signature and he Musl Be Ca4glod At Tlme otsigndturo)

Pannam' a'7-k)h 4e h . f t'4{4 . Ptht N8m€:

(Signdore
Beth Lam

rnd Drie
bert

p6t11116. Director

COilTRACTOR LEOAL MtlEl lhlwidr Ccns€rvatb0 Trust

land d/blal:
COIIMOIIIVEALTH DEPARTHETIT NAIIE: Div. ol Ecdogical Rgstonatioo

MMARS Deorilment Code: FWE

Lc$l Addrur: (W.9, tl{}: PO Box 101, Souh Harwid, 02661{101 Butincs Mailing Addru*; 100 Cambillge St, 6tr Floor, Boctm, M 02111

Contrtcl HsnNger: Midrael Ladr I Phone: (f,08) 432-3997 Bllins Addrsrr {lt dlffennt):

E.trll: mik@hanridrconssniationtuslorg lFax: Conbrc{ llanegon Davk, Gdlaohor Phonr: 6,l742$1547

Contnclor Vendor Code: VC6000l 93397 E lt il: david.gallaghr2@mass.go/ Frx:

IIIHARS Doc lD{o): CLDBRKGRTXHRT/VXFY2024Vcndor Code Address lD (e,9. "AD00l'): ADQ!!
lNoto: lhr Addr6! lD murt bo rel up for EFT payments,)

RFRlPtocurerBnt or Other lD Nurnbcr: RFR DER 201 I Ol & NOl 80132

lL NEIY Co}{TRACT

PROCUREMETIT 0R EXCEPIION TYPE: (Chech one opalon only)

- 
Staterlde Contract (OSD or an OSDdosigratod Depatnent)

- 
Collsc'tive Purchrrc (Atad OSD approral, scope, budget)

L Deparlment Procurement (includes a[ Oants - 815 CMR 2.00)(Sofcibtior
Notjce or RFR, and Respms€ or ofior proqJrem€nt supporti€ dooJtt€ntalion)

_ Emorgpncy Contr&t (Atadl ilslificalion ftr omorgdtcy, sope, bu{el)
_ Contnct Employoe (Attach EmploFrpot Sbhs Fofin, scop€, budget)

_ Ohor Procuromont Excrptlon (Altadr arhorizing 18.!uqe, logiCation wih
specific exsmption or eannark, and oxcootirn iustillcaticn. scoD€ atd hdootl

- 
CONTRAGT AiIENDHEITT

Entsr Cunont Contract End Drte P&rlo Arn€ndmmt _,20 ,

Entor Amendmont Amount: $ _. (o ho drango')

AtEt{oMEl{T TYPE: (Chock one opllon ont. AttNch doiallr of rmendment ctungca.l

_ Amendmsnt to D.b, Scop. or Budgol (Aladl updated scopo 6nd hldget)

_ lntorlm Contncl (Auadl iJstification lbr lnbm Cnnbac{ and upddod scop€,trdget)

_ Contracl Emdoyer (Attadr any updatas to smp€ d bu€el)

_ Olher Procursment Ercepllon (AUad afiaizi4 larguagollustifuation md updabd
rcopo and budget)

Thc slandard conttrc{ Fotm lnrtruc{bn3 tnd Contndor Ccrlificatbnr rnd tho foloring Gommonwer[h Tcrmr and CondJ{onr documsnt rra incorporrtod by lrlcrcncc
into tril Contract and rre logally Hnding: (Chect OllE option): -L Cg[tf.pr-rtlpl$ Terms and..gotditians Commfiwmh Tems and Cmditjons For Human etd Socid
Services _ Cornnnnmalh lT Terms and Cmditions

COIIPENSAIIO}{: (Check OI'JE oplim): Ihe Departrnnt certlies $al paytnenb fu auhorlzed perbrmancs aceptsd ln accordfce wih he terms ol his Contac{ will be $pport€d
in [e stste accountjng lystem by suficjent Qproprbtifis or ohor no-8ppmp]ialed funds, sutiecl to intero€pt for Commmu,eal$ oryod d€bb under 815 CMR 9,00.

- 
Rlte Conttacl. (No Maximum Oilgalton) Atadl detsib d all rahs, units, cela|ht'ons, condiuons ff tems and sny dlangs if rstos d tqms ue Ueing amatOeO.l

LMaxlmumObligatbnContract Entertdalmaxim,rmobligalimbtolnldrrationol0rismnbad(ornertolal ifCmtadis bcirE omend€d). i jLlqQJ@,]Q9.

pROilPT PAYIGNT DISCOUNTS (PPD): Commmweal0r paynenb aro issued hror4h EFT 15 days iorn invcice rcceipt Conbaotors requesting rccohratod payrnarb must identify
aPP-Dastulloss: Paymentissuedwihhl0daysJ.PPD; PaymartirsuodwihinlSdays_%PPD; Pa}rrrenlissuedwitrin20days_oAPPD; Paynrontissuedwihin30days_
% PPD. lf PPD percontags are lofl blank, identify reasan: -1agrm to shndard 45 day 6yde 

- 
stabtqynegal or Ready Paymar't ?M.O.t, .. eg. i fgn); _ only initial painsnt

(subsqquart paymmts sdredrled to support standad EFT tl5 day payms0l qde. See Prorrt Pay Dbccxinb Policv.)

BRlEFDEscRlPTloNoFc0tlTMcTPERF0RMANcEorREA80NF0RAMENDlCllT:(Entertrocolrb
perlomanco or wh€t is bei4 amonded fr a Cmbacl Amendnrent, Atbdr all supportu doornrartalion and iustifcatims.) Undor hb grattmnbact tro Haridr Conservatjqr lrust
will advarce he Cdd Erook EclR€stoaticn Pded as outhed in tre tasks wiUrin tre mnpargng Athdrm€nt The Haruidr Conservatm frust wil porhrm tre bslo as specilei
in Attadmot A. Pbso se6 Atadrn€nt A hr Bre approwd Scope rrd Budssl

AIITICIPATED SIART DATEr (Comdsto ONE Atio.r cnU) Tho Dopadnent ard Conbador ceilify br
L 1 . may be indln€d as of he Eftclive Dab (lstest signshirs datg b€los) and !o oblbatims hs\a b€on hdned prlor h he Elbclve Date.

- 
2. may be hclrod as of 

-, 

20-, a date I-ATER han trs Efiodive Date bobr ad na obligalhns haw been inoned prhl lo ho Effedjve Date.

- 
3. were hcunod as of . . . , 20- , a date PRIOR b 0rs Effodive Dab belor, rld fio pailies agr6 hat payrnarb for any oHigolims inonod prior lo he Efrclivs Dab ars

auhsizad lo be made oiher as se0ement paymanb or as autpdzod reinbusenrent paynenb, and hat tre detab and ciromiances of al oblilabns under his Ccthad are
atadod ald incorporalcd into his Colbact Accsptanco of payrnonb ftrever rehasos trc Commqrwealtr fom fufier daims rslated to tresa oblioations.

Conta4 or ContadAmodmenl hat Cmbad obligations:

COIITRACT El{D DATE: Conbad perfsmancs shall tarminale 6 ol -[td-!l,202{ . wih no new obligalkns being incuned after fr's date urtms tre Ccrbact b prwody
dnerded, prwiJed bat ho tems ol this Cmtrad and perfornunca expodations and oblqntims shall survive its lsmination for tre purpca of resdving any dain c dispute br

P.lrt Tltle: TPE a l^rffi

(Updated 7122m211 Pag€ 1 ol I



Attachment A CLDBRKGRTXHRWXFY2024

Scope of Services

Harwich Conservation Trust
Cold Brook Eco-Restoration Project

Harwich, Massachusetts

I. PROJECT INFORMATION AND APPROACH

Statement of Qualifications

Harwich Conservation Trust (HCT) has demonstrated excellent leadership throughout the visioning and
development ofthe Cold Brook Eco-Restoration Project. They successfully developed a key partnership
with the Town of Harwich, applied for project funding, managed contracts with project consultants, and
facilitated public outreach opportunities before and during the permit process. Their high level of
engagement has been critical to the Project's success to date, and DER expects this to continue, HCT will
be supported by other engaged partners including DER, the Town of Harwich, and the project
consulta nts.

Purpose

The purpose of the Cold Brook Eco-Restoration Project is to restore healthy, self-sustaining natural
wetland and stream system within a former commercial cranberry bog, and integrate the restored
aquatic ecosystem into the broader landscape. This grant will help advance this DER Priority Project
through implementation and implementation oversight.

Backsround

The Robert F. Smith Cold Brook Preserve (project area/site) is a 66 t acre parcel of land, located within
the Town of Harwich in Barnstable County, Massachusetts. The site is owned and managed by the
Harwich Conservation Trust and consists of a retired flow-through cranberry bog, small coastal stream
(Cold Brook), and associated upland areas. As HCT's largest and most visited property, it represents a

key connection point between the community and the natural realm. The existing bog was created in
the 1890's within a former wetland and was managed in some capacity for agriculture until 2001, when
HCT purchased the land. After considering a potential return to cranberry farming, HCT elected to
pursue conservation, and eventually, holistic ecological restoration. ln 2011, HCT applied for, and
received, DER Priority Project status for creation of a self-sustaining, high quality wetland system.

Fundinp

This project was selected as a Priority Projecf though RFR #DER 2011-01.

this contract provides $1,O00,OOO.OO in funding from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) to DER

to support project lmplementation. Funding for this award is authorized under the U.S. Department of
lnterior, Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) CFDA 15.614 for CoastalWetlands Planning, Protection and



Attachment A

Restoration. The award offunds was made through the National Coastal Wetlands Conservation Grant
(NCWCG) Program to DER, under Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN) F19AP00287 for the Cold

Brook Eco-Restoration Project. As a sub-recipient of this grant, DER is maklng these funds available to
the Harwich Conservation Trust who will ultimately be responsible for implementing project
construction. A request for grant extension was approved in December 2022, extending the grant

through March 37, 2024.)i

II. SCOPE OF WORK

This award is intended to be used for the implementation ofthe Cold Brook Eco-Restoration Project.

Harwich Conservation Trust will contract with a construction contractor whose qualifications will be

accepted by DER and project partners to implement the work described in the final stamped 100%

design plans and technical specifications developed by lnterfluve (June 2023).

All NCWCG program funds, sub-awarded to Harwich Conservation Trust, will be used for contractual

services and pooled with the other project funds to complete restoration activities. Activities covered

fully or partially by NCWCG funds include:

. Englneering and Consultant Services
o Mobilization and Demobilization
o Clearing and Grubbing
o Erosion, Pollution, and Water Control
o Berm and Upland Earthwork - Cut and Fill

o Bog Earthwork - Cut and Fill

. Mlcrotopography
o Rock
o FES Lifts

Large Wood - Logs and Snags and Rootwads

Slash

r Seeding
o Marsh Plugs and Live Stakes
o Container Plants
. Recreational Path - Cell 2
r Footbridges - Cells U2 and 2/3
o Boardwalk - Cell 8

. Observation Deck Near Cell 1

. Construction ltem Contingency (25%)

r EscalatlonContingency
o Land Acquisition

Any deviations from the final 100% stamped and contacted plans must be approved first by Harwich

Conservation Trust (landowner), Town of Harwich, project engineer (lnterfluve), and DER. Any request

for support of activities outside ofthe plans, bid documents, or addenda deemed necessary for the
successful completion of the Project should be submitted in writing to the DER for approval of the use of
these grant funds for that purpose. lAny activities not consistent with the terms ofthe award and not

approved in writing by the DER prior to implementation will not be reimbursed. 
'

a

o

2



Attachment A

:

The Harwich Conservation Trust will: barry out the design, permitting, bidding, and construction of the
project and cooperate with DER in a manner consistent with the goals and policies ofthe DER and all

applicable permits and laws.

For deliverables associated with draft and final versions, the grantee assumes one round of DER and

partner review and feedback. DER assumes all deliverables will be provided in editable and final formats

including (but not limited to) raw data files, models, AutoCAD files, Word documents, PDFs, etc. DER

requires all raw data files. All deliverables will be provided to DER in electronic form unless otherwise

noted.

Deliverables:

1. DER must review and approve all contracts involved in the implementation phase ofthis project
prior to execution.

2. HCT will provide DER with final slgned contracts with contractors involved in the project

implementation phase, including the (1) project engineering firm and (2) construction company.l

3. :HCT will provide DER with monthly updates via email from the issuance date of the notice to
proceedtotheconstructioncontractorthroughcompletionofconstruction. Theupdateshallbe
no more than one page in length, detailing the month's construction activities, issues raised

during construction, solutions to same, and any potential future issues. construction meeting

minutes may substitute for this update and may be provided by the project engineer on behalf

of the Town. i

4. HCT will invite DER representatives to attend and participate in pll construction meetingsj

throughout the duration of the project.

5. HCTwillforwardtoDERtheregularwrlttenupdatesprovidedbytheprojectengineerduring
implementation.

6. HCT will provide DER with ilnvolces from the contracto(s).

7. HCT will provide DER one (1) final report during the duration ofthis contract period which shall

summarizeexpendituresunderthiscontract. Thefinal reportshall besubmittedwithinone
month after receipt of a final invoice from the construction contractor.

Harwich Conservation Trust shall comply with all other reporting requirements as established in Section

lll below.

III. REPORTING AND MATCH

Matching funds from the Town of Harwich in the amount of 51.000,000.00 were used to secure this

federal grant by DER. These funds will be transferred from the Town of Harwich to the Harwich

Conservation Trust under a Grant Agreement signed by both entities.

:l



Attachment A

IV, DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Harwich Conservation Trust
Michael Lach
Executive Director
P.O. Box 101
South Harwich, MA 02661
(s08) 432-3997
mi ke@ harwichconservationtrust.o rg

DER Project Manager
Eric Ford
Ecological Restoration Specialist
Division of Ecological Restoration
100 Cambridge Street, 6th Floor
Boston, MA 02114
(508) 269-s478
eric.ford (o mass.gov

DER Grants Coordinator
Rhonda Battey
Division of Ecological Restoration
100 Cambridge Street, 6th Floor
Boston, M402114
DE Rinvo&ine@ mass.eov

V, BUDGETAND PAYMENT

Harwich Conservation Trust will submit a Request for Reimbursement to DER's asslgned Project
Manager and DER's fiscal team (DERinvoicins@mass.sov) using DER's Reimbursement Form. Requests

must be submitted electronically. Requests for Reimbursement should be submitted no more than

lbimonthlyi The date that a complete Request for Reimbursement and associated deliverables are

received electronically by DER is considered the submission date. DER defines a complete Request for
Reimbursement as one that includes all required documentation of expenses, including receipts,
invoices, and photographic or other backup for charges shown. Mileage charges associated with travel
costs will not exceed the current IRS mileage reimbursement rate.

This contract and scope of work will extend through the Commonwealth Fiscal Yeat 2024. Project costs

are based on thd scope of work presented hereln i^rlth a not-to-exceed total of S1,OOO,OOO.OO.

Payment will be made on a reimbursement basis.

Table 1:

4

Categorv Amount
Personnel So



Attachment A

Eouioment So
jContractual s1,000,000.0c
Materia ls/Supplies So

Travel So

Other So

Total Sx,ooo,ooo.oo

The grantee is required to submit any budget amendment requests in writing to DER's designated
project manager and DER's federal Grants Coordinator. DER will reply in writing to either allow or
disallow said request. Any changes to Scope of Work that are not preapproved by DER in writing will not
be reimbursed. The grantee is required to request a budget amendment via the following steps:

1. Submit a request via email to reallocate a portion of budgeted expenses

2. Provide specific amounts for which predetermined budgeted expenses will change
3. lnclude changes to tasks and/or deliverables tied to these expenses

VI. SCHEDULE

Work may begin after the grant contract is fully executed by the Department of Fish and Game, Division

of Ecological Restoration and a Notice-to-Proceed has been provided to the grantee. AlllU[dglglhi!
srant must be depleted bv March 31, 2024, As such, all work must be completed bv Februarv 28. 2024.

Final invoices must be received by July 31, 2024.1

VII. SPECIALPROVISIONS

Credit

Harwich Conservation Trust shall credit The Massachusetts Department of Fish and Game, Division of
Ecological Restoration forthe contribution offunds and technical assistance in any public

communication regarding the project including, but not limited to signage, press releases, dedication
events, etc.

Terms and Acceptance

Funding for this project is from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service National Coastal Wetland Conservation
Grant Program (CFDA #15.614) awarded to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Ecological

Restoratlon, Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN) F19AP00287 in the amount of S1,000,000.00.
DER is in turn, awarding these funds to sub-grantee, Harwich Conservation Trust to implement the
project. Acceptance of this sub-grant award from the DER carries with lt the responsibility to be aware
of and comply with the terms and conditions applicable to the award including terms and conditions
incorporated into contract either by direct citation, within lAttachment Bf or by reference to the
following: Federal regulations, program legislation or regulation; and special award terms and

conditions. The terms and conditions of the USFWS and DER grant contract likewise flow down to any

the sub-awards and sub-recipients to Harwich Conservation Trust. Note this includes reporting Veteran

5



Attachment A

and Youth hires (see special provisions wittrln $1i.iilt1$ffitff). ln addition to the number of applicable

veteran and youth hires, the sub-contract lD and dollar amount ofthe sub-contract must be included in

the report due to DER on a bi-annual basls.

Additionally, the following must be submltted to and approved by the Divlslon of Wildlife and Sport Fish

Restoration before any restoratlon actlvlties can begin as detailed in this grant contract:
. Permits
r Coastal Zone Management - Plan Consistency

r NEPA Compliance
t State Historic Preservation Office recommendation
o Tribal Review
. Section 7 Evaluatlon
r Shapeflle for restoration project
. RestorationDesigns/Plans

DER will work with Harwich Conservation Trust to convey this information to the USFWS Division of
Wildlife and Sport Flsh Restoration. DER will provide a written notlce to proceed when all

documentation has been approved and work can commence.

6



Attachment A

Appendix: Approved Budget from USFWS National CoastalWetland Conservation Grant (NCWCG)

I'abls J: (lold llr$ok ilcrr..lierl0r$ti.rr froj{{t'l'$l$l Brdgrt

.iry the l'n* oi
) l'ht othet niliAtpate..IJinltng souree lor tha frc,ler &d 1hd Td\ra t!flht\,kh itiu! $P:R.

,lqbf Td{!CorlMlbllt

s200,{J{x) $t{tf.(){x}and Cnrsriltmt Scruices

s2:"1-r)63

s5.000

il00,000
9?,Jfi]

$124,0d3

$3,501t

t80.6:5

$ r s9,625

$s1.500

*t,53$,ooo$?50"{100

sl:,oul

$1fi.o{t{t

tl. Iirtxion |tolluhol and lVrtcr Conlrcl

Fcrm nnd UplaNl Earrfi.rnrk * ftitifill
Eartlln ork * Crl,{i'ill

$l

2.

t.

5.

s.

md
145,6]5:

hlobi li zntiullDstobi l iratiot

582,50{:

$600,3?5

sr,rm s5,000

$30,000 5{0,fi,0
s?.J{Xtfi. Rmk

9. IrES l-iifie s2o,0o0

$40'ri00 $230,0u0 $1u0,0fl{t

fr0,000 t8,0a0 5J6,tr0
\{ood "

$rs,txj0I l, Slarh

i0.

$1 5,000

511,0s4t $13,000

$r s,s00 s30,800

tffi,0$*
$20,00$ $l{,,otxl sr 6,700 s"*6,?&l

550.txxl$50,000

525,00S 515,r54 $J0,l 5,f

$50,ffis s50.66{' 5r00,6{i{,

s,$fll$e

5310.000

${73,8$q

$r,93?,r24 $3JJ?,rrd$1,0rxr,000

1?" Sccding

I 8. e)b*cnation f)cck l'inor Cctl I

T{rtsl*:

{35{/t'i

14.

15.

113 rrls i13

$

t.

Mmh md Livc Sitakc*

Planrs

Prth - Cell !

]1. l.rud
20"

$t,0oo,ull0

1



Created:

By:

Status:

Transaction lD:

2023-07-13

Anthony Lucivero (anthony.lucivero@mass.gov)

Signed

CBJCH BCMBMiPeYgXkNp2S2ERPx 1 uH Ll1 z0mlOgl--Z

Final Cold Brook Grant Contract FY23 SIGNED
FinalAudit Report 2023-07-13

"Final Cold Brook Grant Contract FY23 SIGNED" History

* Document created by Anthony Lucivero (anthony.lucivero@mass.gov)

2023-07-13 - 6:58:52 PM GMT

fl* Document emailed to beth.lambert@mass.gov for signature

2023-07-13 - 6:59:32 PM GMT

* Emait viewed by beth,lambert@mass.gov

2023-07-13 - 7:06:09 PM GMT

*r Signer beth.lambert@mass.gov entered name at signing as Beth Lambert

2023-07-13 -7:06:43 PM GMT

dh Document e-signed by Beth Lambert (beth.lambert@mass.gov)

Signature Dale:2023-07-13 - 7:06:45 PM GMT - Time Source: server

ffi Agreement completed.

2023-07-13 - 7:06:45 PM GMT

f,l nOoUe Acrobat sign



 

 

 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

 This License Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made this ___ day of ____________, 

2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the Harwich Conservation Trust (the “Grantor”), a 

not for profit trust established under declaration of trust, dated September 24, 1988, and recorded 

in the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds (“Registry”) in Book 6456, Page 222, and in the 

Barnstable County Land Registry District as Document No. 615918, as amended, having a usual 

place of business at P.O. Box 101, South Harwich, MA 02661 and a physical address of 947 

Route 28, South Harwich, MA 02661, acting by and through its Board of Trustees, and the Town 

of Harwich (the “Town”), a municipal corporation duly organized under the laws of The 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and acting by and through its Select Board, having a usual 

place of business at 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645 and, collectively the “Parties.” 

 

BACKGROUND 

A. The Grantor owns certain vacant land known as and numbered 0 Bank Street located in 

the Town of Harwich, Barnstable County, Massachusetts, as more particularly described 

in Deed to the Grantor recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds (the 

“Registry”) in Book 13958, Page 31, which property contains the 66-acre “Robert F. 

Smith Cold Brook Preserve” and is shown on the Harwich Assessors Maps as Assessor’s 

Parcel ID 23-C1-0 (the “0 Bank Street Property”); 

B. The Grantor also holds a 50% interest in the property known as and numbered 203 Bank 

Street, also located in the Town of Harwich, Barnstable County, Massachusetts, as more 

particularly described in the Deed to the Grantor recorded with said Registry in Book 

35530, Page 91, which property was formerly utilized by the Harwich Fire Department 

and is shown on the Harwich Assessors Maps as Assessor’s Parcel ID 23 - B2, B2-1, and 

B3 (the “203 Bank Street Property” and collectively, with the 0 Bank Street Property, the 

“Grantor Land”). 

C. Within the 0 Bank Street Property is a former working cranberry bog, which bog can be 

accessed through the 203 Bank Street Property. 

D. With financial assistance from the Town, as detailed in the Grant Agreement by and 

between the Town and the Grantor, dated August 7 , 2023 (“the Grant Agreement”), the 

Grantor intends to undertake an ecological restoration project to restore the 0 Bank Street 

Property into a naturally functioning and self-sustaining wetland system, with the further 

intention of reducing nitrogen loads to Saquatucket Harbor, which ecological restoration 

project shall be conducted in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement, all 

applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and all federal, state and local 

permits issued to the Grantor (“the Project”). 

E. The Grantor and the Town desire to enter into this Agreement in order to grant to the 

Town a license for access to the Grantor Land for the purpose of monitoring the work of 

the Project, and conducting certain post-construction nitrogen monitoring, which access 

is to be provided upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

  



 

 

 - 2 - 

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained, the receipt of 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Grantor and the Town do hereby mutually act 

and agree as follows: 

1. License.  The Grantor hereby grants to the Town, and its employees, officers, agents, and 

contractors (“the Licensees”), a non-exclusive license, upon the following terms and conditions: 

a) 203 Bank Street Property. The Licensees shall have access, by foot and vehicle 

on, over and upon the 203 Bank Street Property, which property is shown as 

Parcels B2, B2-1 and B-3(hereinafter, “License Area”) on the Sketch attached 

hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, for the purpose of access to and 

parking within the License Area and accessing the 0 Bank Street Property from 

the License Area shown on the Sketch. More specifically, the Licensees shall 

have: i) vehicular access for the purpose of passing and repassing over the portion 

of the License Area identified as Parcel B3 on the Sketch to access Parcels B2 and 

B2-1; ii) vehicular access for the purpose of passing and repassing over the 

portion of the License Area identified as Parcels B2 and B2-1 to access the 

parking areas on those parcesl; and iii) pedestrian access over Parcels B2 and B2-

1 for the purpose of accessing the 0 Bank Street Property (which is shown as 

Parcel C1 on the Sketch). Due to the ongoing construction on Parel B3, the 

Licensees shall not be permitted to park nor walk on Parcel B3 during the Term of 

this License.  

b) 0 Bank Street Property. The Licensees shall have pedestrian access, by foot only, 

on, over and upon the 0 Bank Street Property, for the purposes of monitoring the 

progress of the work on the Project, and also for conducting the 3-year, post-

construction Nitrogen Monitoring Plan (NMP) described in the Parties’ Grant 

Agreement. Access to the 0 Bank Street Property shall include the right to install 

the monitoring equipment and conduct the testing prescribed in the NMP, as 

detailed in the Grant Agreement. 

c) Access by the Licensees for the purposes set forth herein shall be at the Town’s 

sole cost and expense.  

d) Term.  This Agreement shall have a term of eight (8) years, commencing on the 

Effective Date, unless further extended by written agreement executed by both 

parties hereto.   

e) Notice of Entry.  The Town shall provide Grantor with at least two (2) business 

days’ prior written notice of any anticipated entry under this Agreement, which 

written notice may be sent by e-mail to the Executive Director of the Grantor. 

Said Notice shall include the identity of the person(s) seeking access, the scope 

and extent of their anticipated activities on the Grantor Land, the date and time of 

the anticipated entry, and the anticipated length of stay. 



 

 

 - 3 - 

2. Risk of Loss.  The Town’s entry onto the Grantor Land under this Agreement is at the 

Town’s sole risk and, under no circumstances, is Grantor responsible for any loss or damage 

arising from said Town’s entry, unless such loss or damage is caused by Grantor, its employees, 

contractors or agents. 

3. Insurance. The Grantee agrees to secure and maintain, for the Term of this License and at 

its sole cost and expense, general liability insurance coverage in amounts sufficient to cover all 

costs, claims, expenses, and damages arising from any personal injury or property damage that 

occurs in, on, or around the Grantor’s Land resulting from the exercise of the rights granted to 

the Town hereunder. In no event shall said coverages be in amounts less than $1,000,000 each 

occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. The Grantee shall name the Grantor as additional 

insured on such policies, and shall provide evidence of the required coverages to Grantor on an 

annual basis throughout the Term of this License. 

4. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute an original but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute but one 

Agreement. 

5. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be declared to be invalid or unenforceable, 

then the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term or provision to other 

persons or circumstances, other than those to which it would become invalid or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 

Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

6. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be terminated, released, modified or amended in 

whole or in part except by a written instrument executed by the Grantor and Town, or 

their respective successors in title.   

7. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the performance hereof shall be interpreted and 

governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

8. Headings.  The headings in this instrument are for convenience only.  The headings do 

not limit, expand or otherwise affect the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

[Signature page follows.] 



EXECUTED under seal as of the day and year first above written. 

GRANTOR: 

Harwich Conservation Trust, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

'6A:\2:i-J~l<~£_'t., , S.S. 

'W'd 
On this ? .,. day of Av6-v-S I , 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appearedTh.-M~ ¾.fv'tl~resident, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory 
evidence of identification, which wa$c~~ ltw-w~ , to be the persons whose names 
are signed on the preceding or attachedocument, and acknowledged to me that they signed it 
voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

~~ NotaryPublic ~'C.."A"fL~cJ./ . . 
My commission expires: SUT: C},WU- · _ . 

COMMONWEAL TH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

~A;Q.--r-lS~'o Lt , S.S. 

On this ~Y4 day of ~$Y , 2023, before me, the undersigned n~tazypnl,lic;-
personally appeare~rf4C.. .S:i; vice president, as aforesaid, proved to me through ·satisfactory 
evidence of identification, which was~~ ~~ , to be the persons whose names 
are signed on the preceding or attache document, and acknowledged to me that they signed it 
voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Harwich Conservation Trust. 

-4-

~~.~ 
Notary Public M1(f('Afl- w. tJl4,I 
My commission expires: ~. "I ,-z.c:sz3 



 

 

 

 

 

TOWN: 

 

By its Select Board, 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

_______________, Chair 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Name: 

      

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

_________________, ss.  

 

 On this ______ day of ___________, 2023, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared ________________, Chair of the Harwich Select Board as aforesaid, and 

proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was 

___________________________________________ to be the person whose name is signed on 

the preceding document, and acknowledged to me that (s)he signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose on behalf of the Harwich Select Board. 

        

       __________________________ 

       Notary Public 

       My Commission Expires: 

 



 

 

 

 

 - 6 - 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Sketch of License Area 203 Bank Street 

 

 
 
6124458.1 



August 3, 2023

Data shown on this map is provided for planning and informational purposes only. The municipality and CAI Technologies are not responsible for any use for other purposes
or misuse or misrepresentation of this map.

Harwich, MA

1 inch = 70 Feet

211140700
www.cai-tech.com®


	01 - Revised Agenda - 08.04.2023
	02 - Consent Agenda
	03 - Select Board Meeting Minutes - 07.24.2023
	04 - Select Board Meeting Minutes - 07.31.2023
	05 - Appointment of two Student Officers
	05 - Misc. Reappointments for 23-24
	06 - Gift to the town
	07 - Final Recommendations from the Select Board Interview Committee
	08 - Pilling, Sophia - Conservation Commission
	09 - Hinote, Bradley - Real Estate and Open Space Committee
	10 - New Business
	11 - New Business Items B & C - Committees
	Memo to Select Board re Committee Review Process 8.7.2023
	Town of Harwich Committee Highlights - 8.7.2023
	TOH Committee Governance Details 8.7.2023
	TOH Select Board Committee Review

	12 - Proclamation
	13 - Ribbon Ceremony Invitation  Training Opportunities
	14 - cape media center bylaws
	15 - Memo to Selectboad Channel 18 Channel ID Change
	16 - Comcast
	17 - Old Business
	18 - Notice of Intent to Sell 7.11.23
	19 - Notice of Intent recomendation
	19.1 - Information from Assessing Director
	20 - Easement request
	21 - Contracts
	22 - Contract Amendment - Spencer Preservation Group
	23 -  HCT Signed Execution Version 08.03.2023 Final Grant Agreement
	24 - HCT Signed Execution Version 08.03.2023 Final License Agreement

